X
BRARNED ENFIELD‘% Camden

LONDON BORGUGH Council

5
(]
#ISLINGTON &

Haringey

NOTICE OF MEETING

NORTH CENTRAL LONDON SECTOR Contact: Robert Mack

JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW AND

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Monday 31 October 2011 10:00 a.m. Direct line: 020 8489 2921

Council Chamber, Enfield Civic Centre, E-mail: rob.mack@haringey.gov.uk
Silver Street, Enfield, Middlesex, EN1 3XA

Councillors: Maureen Braun and Alison Cornelius (L.B.Barnet), Peter Brayshaw and John
Bryant (Vice Chair) (L.B.Camden), Alev Cazimoglu and Anne Marie Pearce (L.B.Enfield),

(L.B.Enfield), Gideon Bull (Chair) and Dave Winskill (L.B.Haringey), Martin Klute and Alice
Perry (L.B.Islington)

Support Officers: Sue Cripps, Shama Sutar-Smith, Robert Mack, Pete Moore and Melissa
James
AGENDA
1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
2. URGENT BUSINESS
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (PAGES 1 -2)
Members of the Committee are invited to identify any personal or prejudicial interests
relevant to items on the agenda. A definition of personal and prejudicial interests is
attached.
4. MINUTES (PAGES 3 -10)
To approve the minutes of the meeting of 19 September 2011 (attached).
5. NORTH CENTRAL LONDON PRIMARY CARE STRATEGY (PAGES 11 - 102)
To consider the development of a primary care strategy for north central London.

6. BARNET, ENFIELD AND HARINGEY CLINICAL STRATEGY (PAGES 103 - 118)

To note the response of the referral of the Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Clinical
Strategy to the Secretary of State for Health by Enfield Health Scrutiny Panel.



7. STRATEGIC AND QIPP PLAN
To consider the Strategic and QIPP Plan for North Central London. (TO FOLLOW)
8. CANCER MODEL OF CARE (PAGES 119 - 126)

To consider the implementation of the new mode of care and, in particular, the
development of integrated cancer systems.

9. FUTURE WORK PLAN (PAGES 127 - 128)

To consider the JHOSC's future work plan.

18 October 2011



Page 1 Agenda ltem 3

DECLARING INTERESTS FLOWCHART - QUESTIONS TO ASK YOURSELF

What matters are being
discussed at the meeting?

\ 4

Do any relate to my interests whether You can participate
already registered or not? NO »| in the meeting and

vote
v YES 7y

Is a particular matter close to me?

Does it affect:

me or my partner; NO

my relatives or their partners;

my friends or close associates;

either me, my family or close associates:

e job and business;

o employers, firms you or they are a partner of and companies NO
you or they are a Director of
or them to any position;

e corporate bodies in which you or they have a shareholding of
more than £25,000 (nominal value);

> my entries in the register of interests

VVYVYY

Personal interest

more than it would affect the majority of people in the ward affected by the
decision, or in the authority’s area or constituency?

Declare your personal interest in the matter. You can
YES| remain in meeting, speak and vote unless the interest is
also prejudicial; or

You may have a If your interest arises solely from your membership of,
personal interest or position of control or management on any other
public body or body to which you were nominated by
the authority e.g. Governing Body, ALMO, you only
need declare your personal interest if and when you
speak on the matter, again providing it is not prejudicial.

|

YES Does the matter affect your financial interests or
relate to a licensing, planning or other regulatory

matter; and

Would a member of the public (knowing the

relevant facts) reasonably think that your

YES personal interest was so significant that it would

prejudice your judgement of public interest?

\ 4

A 4

You may have a
prejudicial interest |

Prejudicial interest

A 4
Do the public have speaking rights at the meeting?

L YES v NO

You should declare the interest but can remain You should declare the interest and
in the meeting to speak. Once you have withdraw from the meeting by leaving
finished speaking (or the meeting decides you the room. You cannot speak or vote
have finished - if earlier) you must withdraw from on the matter and must not seek to
the meeting by leaving the room. improperly influence the decision.

Note: If in any doubt about a potential interest, members are asked to seek advice from
pECcaB/ak/1 | Democratic Services in advance of the meeting.




Page 2

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 3 Agenda ltem 4

North Central London Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee
19 September 2011

Minutes of the meeting of the Joint Health Scrutiny Committee held at the Civic Centre, High Road, Wood Green,
N22 8LE on 19 September 2011 at 9.30am.

Present: Councillors: Councillor Gideon Bull (Chair) (L.B.Haringey), Councillor John Bryant (Vice-
Chair) (L.B.Camden), Councillor Alev Cazimoglu (L.B. Enfield), Councillor
Alison Cornelius (L.B. Barnet), Councillor Kate Groucutt (L.B.lslington),
Councillor Martin Klute (L.B.Islington), Councillor Graham Old (L.B. Barnet),
Councillor Anne Marie Pearce (L.B. Enfield), Councillor Barry Rawlings (L.B.
Barnet) and Councillor Dave Winskill (L.B.Haringey).

Officers: Rob Mack (L.B.Haringey), Peter Moore (L.B.Islington), Sue Cripps (L.B.
Enfield), Melissa James (L.B. Barnet) and Shama Sutar-Smith (LB Camden)

WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Item 1)
Councillor Gideon Bull welcomed everyone to the meeting. Members of the Committee and officers
introduced themselves.

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Maureen Braun (L.B. Barnet), Councillor Peter
Brayshaw (L.B. Camden) and Helena Kania (Haringey LINKk).

Councillor Graham Old substituted for Councillor Maureen Braun (L.B. Barnet). Councillor Barry
Rawlings also represented L.B. Barnet). It was noted that in the event of there being a need for a vote,
each borough was entitled to one vote irrespective of the number of representatives that it had present at
the meeting in question.

Apologies for lateness were received from Councillor John Bryant (L.B.Camden).

URGENT BUSINESS (ltem 2)
None.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (ltem 3)
Councillor Gideon Bull declared an interest in that he was an employee at Moorfields Eye Hospital but did
not consider it to be prejudicial in respect of the items on the agenda.

Councillor Kate Groucutt declared that she was a governor at University College London Hospital but did
not consider the interest to be prejudicial in respect of items on the agenda.

Councillor Alison Cornelius declared that she was an Assistant Chaplain at Barnet Hospital but did not
consider it to be prejudicial in respect of items on the agenda.

MINUTES (ltem 4)

In respect of the item regarding Out of Hours GP Services — Re-tendering of Contract, Councillor Winskill
noted that it had been agreed to circulate the independent auditors report into the financial problems of
Camidoc. Martin Machray reported that he had been awaiting a view from the Committee on how the
report should be distributed. The Committee requested that the complete report plus summary be
circulated to all Members.

RESOLVED:

1. That NHS North Central London be requested to circulate the full report and summary of the
independent audit report commissioned by Camden PCT into the financial difficulties of Camidoc.

2. That the minutes of the meeting of 15 July 2011 be approved.

TRANSFORMING CHILD AND ADOLESCENT MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES (CAMHS) IN-PATIENT
SERVICES FOR YOUNG PEOPLE LIVING IN BARNET, ENFIELD & HARINGEY (ltem 5)

1




Page 4
JHOSC - 19 September 2019

Emma Stevenson, Andrew Williams and Claire Wright from NHS North Central London, Maria Kane and
Eric Karac from Barnet Enfield and Haringey Mental Health Trust and two young service users of the
Northgate Clinic were present for the discussion of this item.

Ms Wright reported that the consultation period had been extended until 2 September. There had been
concerns expressed about the fact that the consultation period had included August which it was felt
might limit responses due to it being the peak holiday period. However, the consultation with young
people that had taken place had proven to be effective. 10 focus groups had taken place with young
people and parents. 263 responses had been received on behalf of individuals and 9 on behalf of
organisations. This compared with only 80 that had been received at the time of the last meeting of the
Committee. The report on the results of the consultation exercise had been submitted to NHS London
and would be considered by the NHS North Central London board on 29 September.

Ms Kane reported that the Mental Health Trust (MHT) had been involved in responding to some of the
issues that had been raised. In particular, they had further developed the clinical model that the
proposals were based upon. Their view was that it was better to provide care in the community than in
hospital and modern models of treatment were based on this principle. Mr Karac reported that the model
used in the proposed restructuring had been reviewed and, in particular, phase 1 of the transition plan.
Views that had been expressed during the consultation process to date had been incorporated and there
would now be a single pathway model with service users only requiring a single referral. They would
move through the pathway and back into the community when appropriate. There would be a small
number of high dependency beds for those who needed them and these would be available for as long as
required. There would be intense interventions by community teams available and a menu of different
treatments. Community based patients could also join in with groups that would be based at the new unit.
Education provision would be integrated into the daily programme. The model was tried, tested and cost
effective. Young people had also been involved in helping to develop it. The number of high dependency
beds would be subject to periodic review. If it was necessary to find in patient accommodation elsewhere,
efforts would made to identify appropriate provision that was local.

It was noted that approximately 35% of expenditure by the Mental Health Trust was for in patient care,
amounting to approximately £6 million per year. The budget for Northgate was £1.2 million per year.
£650,000 of this would be re-invested in the development of community teams whilst the remainder would
be used for QIPP savings. Whilst efficiency savings would be delivered, the main objectives of the
proposals were clinical through the implementation of an improved service model.

In response to a question, Mr Karac reported that there were a range of views about the proposals
amongst psychiatrists. The two psychiatrists from Northgate were understandably disappointed by the
proposal to close it whilst several others based elsewhere were positive about the changes. A number of
consultant psychiatrists were now reluctant to refer to Northgate.

It was noted that the reducing the number of beds from 24 to 15 was feasible because under the new
arrangements patients would not stay in hospital as long. In addition, Northgate was frequently not full.
Intensive community support would significantly reduce the demand for beds. The latest analysis
suggested that even 15 beds might prove to be too many. One option that could be used if there was a
need for additional beds would be to use Simmons House, which was based in Haringey.

Mr. Machray stated that the full report on the response to the consultation would be shared with members
of the Committee. Ms. Wright reported that the Alliance model of care that was being piloted in Enfield
appeared to be working. There had only been the need to admit three patients to hospital since the last
meeting. However, it was noted that performance figures were only available until the end of March. She
stated that the new arrangements were not entirely reliant on Alliance, which only currently operated in
Enfield. Other community based measures were being operated in other boroughs. Simmons House
represented the successful model of in patient care that the current proposals aimed to emulate. It was
accepted that up to date performance figures for the Alliance model needed to be produced. Work was
still being undertaken on educational provision, which would be integrated into the care of patients.
Assessments would involve the mainstream schools of children and young people concerned. Provision
would be dependent on their needs.



Page 5
JHOSC - 19 September 2019

Members of the Committee were of the view that, based on the figures that were available for overnight
bed days, it was not clear yet that demand for beds was going down and, even if they were, whether this
was a long term trend. The figures that were available showed fluctuations in demand. They also
needed more evidence to reassure them that people were getting better more quickly. It was noted that
demand for bed days was not always determined by clinical need alone.

It was noted that referrals to Northgate had been stopped. Due to the long length of stay of patients, this
was felt necessary to do this in order to avoid the possibility of their care being interrupted due to the clinic
being closed. It would be possible to re-open the unit if necessary. 51% of respondents to the
consultation had been in favour of the proposals with 43% against. Amongst service users, there were
roughly equal numbers in favour and opposed to the proposals. Mr Karac reported that a report had been
drafted that described fully the whole of the patient pathway, including phases 1 and 2.

The Committee received evidence from two service users. The following issues were raised:

¢ It would be difficult to re-open Northgate. Many of the staff had moved to new jobs elsewhere.

e The focus groups that they had attended involved a lot of questions being asked about the Alliance
model that operated in Enfield which, as they were from Barnet, had not been relevant to them. The
largest number of service users came from Barnet so it would have made more sense to pilot the new
arrangements there.

e |If some psychiatrists were reluctant to refer young people to Northgate, this was likely to have an
impact on occupancy figures. The reduced number of in patient beds commissioned would lead to
greater use of hospitals outside of the area which were more expensive and not as good.

e Some people required longer stays in hospital and could be at risk of relapse if discharged too soon.
Problems at home could also make it difficult for some people to recover in the community.

o Some of the questions raised by service users had not been answered during the consultation. They
had responded by letter to the consultation and had yet to receive a reply.

¢ Northgate had recently been refurbished. However, the premises had not been properly secured .

¢ A number of service users could not cope with mainstream schools. The school on the site addressed
the needs of such young people very well and the closure of Northgate threatened its future.

The service users agreed to share their response to the consultation with the JHOSC. Members of the
JHOSC were also invited to visit Northgate. It was noted that there were no plans to close the school on
the site, which operated as a pupil referral unit.

Ms Stevenson stated that there was a need to ensure consistency in the questions that were asked in the
focus groups and this was why not all of the questions would have seemed relevant to respondents from
Barnet. Other service users had been satisfied with the engagement process

Ms Kane stated that the refurbishment had been necessary to maintain the high standards required for
premises by the Care Quality Commission. No staff had from Northgate had left the Trust’'s employment
yet. Responding to concerns expressed by the Committee that the proposed changes might lead to a
greater use of expensive private sector provision, she stated that the Mental Health Trust was committed
to working with commissioners to ensure that out of area provision was only used when absolutely
necessary. It was noted that the site on which Northgate was located was leased by the Mental Health
Trust from Barnet PCT.

Ms Stevenson stated that there were risks associated with delaying implementing the new model.
Admissions to Northgate had stopped and therefore alternative provision outside the borough was having
to be used. The Committee were of the view that the closing of Northgate had undermined the
consultation and pre-empted the decision.

In conclusion, the Committee expressed its concern at the consultation process which they felt had not
initially been adequate. The Committee had not yet received full details of the results of the process but
noted that there was no evidence of their being overall support amongst service users. They were of the
view that the evidence base in favour of the proposed changes was still unclear. In particular, the latest
figures performance figures for the Alliance pilot in Enfield and overnight bed days only went to the end of

3



Page 6
JHOSC - 19 September 2019

March 2011. The success of the proposals was at least partially dependent on there being a substantial
drop in demand for beds and, if this was not achieved, there was likely to be an increase in the need for
expensive out of borough placements which would put at risk the savings that were aspired to. The
Committee also had not as yet received full details of the care pathway and its phases. The proposals
required the de-commissioning of provision before the new service was fully in place and there were
therefore potential risks. As yet, the Committee had not received the necessary assurances that these
had been fully addressed as part of an effective transition process..

The Committee therefore concluded that it had still not received the evidence necessary for it to be
convinced that the new arrangements were in the interests of the local health service.

RESOLVED:

1. That the Chair be requested to write to the NCL Board urging it not to take any final decision on the
proposals until all the relevant information required for them to take an informed decision was available,
namely:
¢ Up to date performance figures for the last two quarters on overnight bed days and the effectiveness
of the Alliance pilot model in Enfield
o Clarity on the evidence base
Full details of the consultation programme and response
e Clear details on the transition process and its phases

2. That NHS NCL be requested to circulate the full consultation report to Members of the Committee.
3. That a visit to Northgate Clinic be arranged for all Members of the Committee.
QUALITY, INNOVATION, PRODUCTIVITY AND PREVENTION (QIPP) PLAN - PERFORMANCE (Item

6)
Liz Wise from NHS North Central London was present for the discussion of this item.

Ms Wise outlined the current performance figures for the QIPP programme. It was noted that there had
been a significant under performance against targets to reduce spending on acute care. It would be
difficult to address this through slowing down referrals as patients had a constitutional right to receive
treatments within a specific time frame. There were many and varied reasons why QIPP targets for acute
services were not on track. GP referrals had increased in one PCT area whilst there had also been
pressures from demand for emergency treatment. In addition, there were also issues arising from how
some treatments were costed and charged. Analysis was being undertaken on the number of referrals
that led to treatment. In some cases, there were charging issues to be resolved concerning how patients
were dealt by hospitals after initial referral.

It was noted that efforts had been made to protect staffing levels in contract management and
informatics. Consideration was being given to whether there was a need to strengthen officer support for
a period of time as staff were currently very stretched in dealing with contracts. The acute portfolio of
contracts amounted to over £1 billion. In the short term, consideration was being given to bringing in
turnaround specialists.

Patients did not always get to see the right consultant first time and referrals from one consultant to
another were quite high across the sector. There were 167 projects that were currently showing green.
However, 80 were showing red and total QIPP slippage was currently forecast to be £30 million. The
forecasts had been prepared using a worst case scenario. Each borough was now being asked to
produce a recovery plan. £10.4 million of the slippage was from the stretch target and £22 million from
acute productivity. This included £2 million over performance by UCLH on referrals from Islington.
Savings on procedures of limited clinical effectiveness had proven difficult to realise. Expenditure on
these was led by referrals and more work was needed with clinicians and the acute trusts. Part of the
slippage was due to fact that the measures had been implemented later than planned. There had been
some success in addressing the issue of medicines management although more could still be done. It
was noted that it was not possible to mandate clinicians to only prescribe certain medicines. The

4



Page 7
JHOSC - 19 September 2019

overspend on continuing care was currently being looked at as well as Islington PCT's budgetary position.
Variations in GP referral rates across the cluster were also being analysed. In particular, referrals from
Enfield PCT were 15% higher than elsewhere. 1200 referrals from Enfield had been processed in April
and May rather than March and this had compounded the problem.

It was noted that patients still had the right to choose where they wished to be treated and that there were
no plans to cut Islington PCT's budget by 12.5%, as had been suggested. Although it was proving very
difficult to balance to books, failing to do so by the end of the financial year was not an option.

RESOLVED:

That the update on the performance of QIPP Plan be noted.

SAFE _AND SUSTAINABLE — REVIEW OF CHILDREN’S CONGENITAL HEART SERVICES IN
ENGLAND (ltem 7)

Simon Williams and Peter Kohn from the NHS London Specialised Commissioning Group was present for
the discussion of this item.

Simon Williams outlined the work that had been undertaken to reconfigure congenital heart services in
England. The aim of the review had been to ensure:

o Better diagnosis and follow-up care closer to patients’ homes

Fewer deaths and complications following the surgery

Shorter waiting times for surgery

Better trained surgeons

Excellent care for all children with no postcode lottery.

A number of different options had been developed and consulted upon. The intention was that every
centre chosen would have two full time surgeons and a throughput of around 500 — 600 procedures per
year. In addition, it was intended that no centre would be more than four hours away from any patient by
whichever mode of transport was the slowest.

Two centres were proposed for London. These were at GOSH and Evelina (Guys). This entailed
services at the Royal Brompton/Harefield being discontinued. The forecasted number of procedures that
would be undertaken in London was approximately 1250 per year. The minimum level that was required
was 400 per unit per year and the ideal number 600. GOSH currently undertook over 500 per year. If
three centres were maintained in London, the remainder would be split between Evelina and Royal
Brompton. The numbers involved would mean that they were both beneath the threshold of 400. The
intention was to increase work loads to ensure critical mass and, through this, improve outcomes,
recruitment and retention of skilled clinicians and service development. A three centre model would not
provide enough patients for all of the centres and result in an uneven distribution. In addition, the
catchment areas would need to increased. However, the consultation had not finished and people were
entitled to express a view contrary to this.

Concerns had been expressed that the discontinuation of services at the Royal Brompton might threaten
the viability of other paediatric services there due to the absence of a paediatric intensive care unit.
These services were children’s respiratory services, including cystic fibrosis services and asthma. An
independent review had been undertaken on this issues and had concluded that the services in question
would remain viable. There were no significant concerns regarding the continuing viability of some other
paediatric services at hospitals where it was proposed to discontinue surgery.

Ipsos Mori had undertaken a consultation exercise which had generated 70,000 responses. Strong
support for two centres in London was expressed with only 12% against. There was some support for 3
centres for London as well as some for only 1. GOSH and Evelina were the two hospitals that were most
strongly supported but there was a lot of support for all the units across the country. The Royal Brompton
had been the 10™. best supported.

The Royal Brompton was mounting a legal challenge to the proposals through the judicial review process
5



Page 8
JHOSC - 19 September 2019

and the verdict of this would be given in October. The expectation was nevertheless that the new
configuration would become operational in April 2013.

It was noted that work was still continuing on the catchment areas for each hospital. Many hospitals had
outreach services in other hospitals, including GOSH at Peterborough. However, patient choice had to be
respected and many undertook considerable research before deciding which hospital to choose. The
setting up of a single network of care for London was currently being considered by the Specialised
Commissioning Group. Any changes to configurations within London were unlikely to have a significant
affect on travelling times but it was likely to make a difference elsewhere.

Mr Williams stated that it was not expected that the changes would yield major improvements across the
board. However, it was hoped to improve outcomes for cases where survival rates were currently very
low. The longer term outcomes aspired to were concerned with a range of quality measures and not just
mortality rates. Each of the units chosen would have 4 surgeons working together and undertaking
approximately 125 operations per year. Services would be available 7 days per week. Some hospitals
currently only had 2 consultants.

The Committee expressed their support for there being two centres for London and the two locations —
GOSH and Evelina - that were proposed. However, they were mindful of the possible long term effects of
the loss of services from some providers on their future viability and of the view that measures should be
taken to minimise the impact of this. They were nevertheless supportive of the direction of travel and the
development of more integrated patient pathways following surgery.

RESOLVED:

1. That the Chair be requested to write to the Specialised Commissioning Group with the Committee’s
views, as outlined above, in response to the consultation.

2. That copies of the health impact assessment and of the independent report reviewing if children’s
heart services and respiratory services could continue to be delivered safely at the Royal Brompton
Hospital in the absence of an on-site paediatric intensive care unit be circulated to all Members of the
Committee and

HEART FAILURE COMMUNITY CLINIC — PILOT (Item 8)

Caroline Cook and Dr Neel Gupta from North Central London Cardiovascular and Stroke Network were
present for the discussion of this item and gave a presentation on the setting up of a pilot project to deliver
a community based multi disciplinary integrated service in South Camden. This would be extended to the
remainder of the cluster if successful.

Services were currently disjointed and there was often duplication of work. It was hoped that the new
service would provide seamless care. The new model was based on NICE guidelines and was hoped to
facilitate earlier diagnosis. All the necessary tests could be undertaken on the same day during one visit
with a treatment plan sent to the GP, also on the same day. The specific venue for the location clinic had
yet to be identified.

It was noted that there were a large number of people with heart failure who were not diagnosed.
Although age was probably the most significant factor, the were a number of other risk factors including
hypertension, diabetes, smoking and high cholesterol. Some communities had a slightly higher
susceptibility, including the African Caribbean and South Asian communities.  Diagnosis could be
undertaken by blood test. However, increasing the percentage of those diagnosed was only one part of
improving services. There was also a need to provide better care for those who were diagnosed.

In terms of location, various options were being explored. It was suggested that Stevenson House would
be appropriate. It was noted that it was not clear where the service should best be located
organisationally — whether in the acute or community sector. One option would be for it to be managed
under a free standing n umbrella organisation.



10

11

Page 9
JHOSC - 19 September 2019
It was noted that work was being undertaken by public health officers in NCL to address the low level of
diagnosis and that they were also undertaking work on addressing low diagnosis rates for hypertension.

One particular challenge that needed to be addressed as part of this was the transient population in many
areas of the cluster.

RESOLVED:
1. That the pilot project be welcomed.

2. That the option of managing the service through the establishment of an umbrella organisation be
supported.

3. That concern be expressed at the high numbers of undiagnosed patients in the community.

MEDICINES MANAGEMENT (Item 9)

The Committee noted the response received from the Secretary of State to the Committee’s earlier letter
regarding drug tariffs.

BARNET, ENFIELD AND HARINGEY CLINICAL STRATEGY

Members from Enfield expressed their disappointment at recent decision by the Secretary of State in
response to the referral by Enfield's Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee. The Council was now
considering its options. The Secretary of State had nevertheless acknowledged that not all of the
infrastructure required for the changes outlined in the strategy was in place. Enfield Council was of the
view that primary care in Enfield was significantly underfunded and were looking for support from the
JHOSC in pursuing this issue with the Secretary of State. Without the necessary investment in primary
care, the over reliance on acute care could not be addressed successfully. The 15% increase in GP
referrals from Enfield bore this out. They were also of the view that any money from the sale of land at
Chase Farm should be re-invested in the infrastructure.

RESOLVED:

That the issue of Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Clinical Strategy be placed on the agenda for the next
meeting of the Committee.

DATES AND VENUES OF NEXT MEETINGS (ltem 10)

e Monday 31 October — Enfield

e Monday 5 December — Barnet

e Monday 16 January — Camden

¢ Monday 27 February - Islington
FINISH:

The meeting closed at 13:30 pm.

CHAIR:



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 11 Agenda Ite%

North Central London

NHS NORTH CENTRAL LONDON BOROUGHS [delete any that aren’t
relevant]: BARNET, CAMDEN,
ENFIELD, HARINGEY, ISLINGTON
WARDS: ALL

REPORT TITLE: Report on the development of NHS North Central London’s Primary
Care Strategy

REPORT OF:

Tony Hoolaghan

Associate Director Primary Care
NHS North Central London

FOR SUBMISSION TO: DATE: 31/10/11
North Central London Joint Health Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

SUMMARY OF REPORT:

The report tells the story of the identified need for a NHS NCL primary care strategy, the
purpose of the strategy and the initial work which has taken place to begin the process to
develop, and finally implement the strategy.

The report gives an update on the work which has taken place, thus far, to evaluate,
analysis and assess the level and quality of primary care services across the five NCL
boroughs, concluding with possible recommendations for a primary care strategy from
this work.

Please see Appendix A for an overview of what patients and the public can expect from
primary care services.

CONTACT OFFICER:

Elizabeth Stimson

Senior Communications and Engagement Officer
NHS North Central London

RECOMMENDATIONS: The Committee is asked to comment on the report and update

To note as part of the overall primary care item questions on Out of Hours process and
CAMIDOC can be raised.

Tony Hoolaghan
Associate Director Primary care

Report to Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee



Page 12

DATE: 31/10/11

Report to Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee




Page 13

Report to Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 15

Interim Report

Development of NCL Primary Care Strategy

7™ October 2011



Page 16

1. Introduction

This report sets out the background work currently undertaken to develop a draft Primary
Care Strategy for North Central London. This work is at an early stage and is presented to
involve the JOSC early in this important work.

The purpose of the Primary Care Strategy is to further improve quality, capability and
productivity in Primary Care and to create capacity within Primary Care through
transformational change. This will be through the joint development of borough plans to
implement the Primary Care Strategy for North Central London. The strategy will
underpin the subsequent development of our 5 borough-based primary care plans by
defining the medium/long term goals, priorities, principles, investment criteria and
performance expectations. It will be a strategic shift from the previous premises-led to a
quality-led agenda and will focus on:

e Promoting health, well being and iliness prevention

e Addressing health inequalities

e Further improving the quality of primary care services, particularly in General

Practice, to enhance the patient experience with better outcomes

The combined strategy and plans will determine how NHS North Central London and the
successor organisations will invest in primary care in each of the 5 Boroughs over the
coming years.

This is an interim report that identifies the emerging themes to date. The emerging themes
are being discussed with provider groups (e.g. GPs, Dentists, Optometrists, Pharmacists
and other providers), NCL boroughteams and stakeholder groups (including LiNKs and Joint
OSC) and will help inform the development of the strategy.

2. Programme of Work
The following activities were set out for the initial 4 weeks:

2.1 Desktop research
¢ Reading existing documents provided by NCL
e Creating the macro picture by starting the first draft of the NCL Primary Care Strategy
document
o Compare/contrast/challenge the 5 PCT Borough strategies to inform the “Synopsis
and Analysis”.

2.2 Stakeholder engagement

We agreed to run Borough-based workshops to include GPs, Dentists, Optometrists,
Community Pharmacists and LiNK representatives at which the strategic questions will be
posed to the attendees.

We are talking to local stakeholders prior to wider engagement at the borough level.

3. “Starter for 10 NHS North Central London case for a Primary Care Strategy”

This document, written by Dr Douglas Russell, followed an introductory discussion at the
Senior Leadership Team on 9" July 2011. He undertook to produce a very basic “starter for

10” document around which to frame a further discussion about the need to develop a
primary care strategy. He sets out the argument for the definition and measurement of both



Page 17

activity and quality prior to engaging in a developmental programme with primary care
contractors.

Universal, accessible high quality general practice supported by well developed primary care
teams integrated with social care and third sector is likely to be more capable of addressing
the QIPP challenge than our current landscape.

We need to engage the clinical leadership with a new vision of a transformed supported
developed high quality GP and primary care landscape across the whole sector attracting
and retaining the highest quality staff, both clinical and support.

We need to be clear about what we mean by quality. The “Darzi” definition is still useful —
with the 3 domains of Safety, Effectiveness and Experience, all predicated on cost.

There are a set of core documents published that fill out a lot of background detail and
evidence of the vision of what we would like to achieve over the next 5 years, from sources
such as the RCGP, Kings Fund, Information Centre, Primary Care Commissioning.

Access is one dimension of care quality for the acutely ill but as important if not more so to
patients with long term conditions is continuity.

Kings Fund report on improving quality in general practice is a key resource document. We
should not simply measure process but also consider structure process and outcomes
(Donabedian).

At the heart of the clinical contact is the consultation, with consultation skills, communication
Skills, diagnostic skills, skills in interventions such as high quality prescribing and appropriate
and timely referral, team work, handovers, risk reduction, and clinical governance all
important components of quality that are more difficult to measure.

Most difficult of all is one of the most vital — care and compassion. This starts from a sense
of vocation but needs nurtured by a culture of professionalism and continuing professional
development and support, peer comparison and personal reflection.

As a starting point we need data on what we currently have with benchmarking on matters
such as have appeared on a number of “dashboards” — but these need to be developmental
and implemented with collaboration of GP leaders and not used as a blunt managerial “stick”
alone.

4. North Central London Primary Care Strategy — Facts and figures, findings to date

There are a total of 258 general practices with registered patients, excluding the 3 GP Led
Health Centres where there are no lists.

Number of practices, by list size, by Borough, at July 2011 (January 2010 figures in
brackets).

List size Barnet Camden Enfield Haringey Islington Totals
< 2,000 9 2 4 7 2 24
(10) (4) (6)) (7)) (4) (31)
2-5,000 27 19 35 28 14 123
(29) (19) (36) (31) (15) (130)
5-10,000 23 9 16 12 17 77




Page 18

(21) (13) (16) (14) (15) (79)
>10,000 9 9 5 7 4 34

(9) (5) (5) (6) 4) (29)
Number of practices 68 39 60 54 37 258

(69) (41) (63) (58) (38) (269)
Total registered 373,715 251,016 299,119 272,236 217,000 1,413,086
patients (366,367) ||| (235,187) ||| (292,819) ||| (280,887) ||| (198,993) ||| (1,374,253)
Patients % change +2.0% +6.7% +2.2% -3.2% +9.1% +2.8%

The average number of patients per practice varies from under 5,000 in Enfield to almost
6,500 in Camden:

July 2011 Barnet | Camden | Enfield | Haringey | Islington Total
Ave. registered

patients per 5,496 6,436 4,985 5,041 5,865 5,477
practice

A more detailed analysis shows the varying number of patients registered by size of

practice:

Number of patients by Practice
Size at 1st July 2011

Barnet

Camden Enfield Haringey

Islington Totals

Practices <2,000 16,148 4,541 6,878 8,424 3,959 39,950
% of registered patients 4% 2% 2% 3% 2% 3%

Practices 2,000-5,000
% of registered patients 89,126 63,356 121,098 87,331 44,714 405,625
24% 25% 40% 32% 21% 29%
Cumulative 28% 27% 43% 35% 22% 32%
Practices 5,000-10,000 158,129 68,078 112,386 82,142 120,588 541,323
% of registered patients 42% 27% 38% 30% 56% 38%
Cumulative 70% 54% 80% 65% 78% 70%
Practices >10,000 110,312 115,041 58,757 94,339 47,739 426,188
% of registered patients 30% 46% 20% 35% 22% 30%
Cumulative 100% 100%  100% 100% 100% 100%
Total registered patients 373,715 251,016 299,119 272,236 217,000 1,413,086

From the above analysis we can see that:

Just less than 40,000 patients (ie 3%) in NCL are registered in practices below 2,000

patients, with the largest number (16,000) in Barnet (but still only 4% of Barnet total)

In Islington the comparable figure is only 22%

compared with the NCL average of 30%.

General Practices (with lists) by type of contract

43% of Enfield patients are registered in practices with less than 5,000

In Camden 46% of patients are registered in the largest practices of over 10,000,

Barnet Camden Enfield | Haringey | Islington Total
GMS 26 20 28 23 35 132
PMS 42 16 31 30 2 121
APMS 0 3 1 1 0 5
Totals 68 39 60 54 37 258




GP prescribing costs per weighted average list size (Rank order)

Page 19

2010/11 Camden | Haringey London NCL Ave | Enfield | Barnet | Islington
Ave

Cost per

Astro PU £21.94 £22.06 £23.40 £24.15 £25.33 | £2547 £25.93

Overall QOF Scores by Borough PCT 2009/10 (2010/11 figures awaited)

Borough Number | Exception| PCT Ave Number of Practices by overall QOF scores 2009/ 10
PCT Practices| Reporting <50% 50-80% 80-90% 90-92.3 924 924936 937 >93.7
Barnet 68 4.49% 93.9% 0 6 9 London 6 Engand 46
Ave. 9% Ave  68%
Camden 40 5.76% 92.1% 1 5 3 7 23
18% 58%
Enfield 63 4.19% 0.9% 0 14 10 9 25
14% 40%
Haringey 52 5.33% 90.8% 1 11 7 6 24
2% 46%
Islington 38 6.16% 93.9%
8% 76%
London 5.13%
England 5.41%
261 147
%of Practices by band 1% 4% 5% 1% | 12% [ 56%|

e 68% of NCL practices score above London average and 56% above England average
e Barnet, Camden and Islington are the highest scores, with Enfield and Haringey lowest
¢ Islington have very high exception reporting, with Barnet and Enfield both very low.

MORI Patient Survey March 2011 — Overall Satisfaction Levels by Borough PCT

MORI 2010/ 2011 Scores

Satisfaction with care
received

Results England asa
whole

London SHA

Barnet
Camden
Enfield
Haringey
Iinng_ﬁon

Recommendinga
GPsurgery to
someone moved

into area

¢ On the two overall satisfaction questions, none of the Boroughs achieves the England
average, but Barnet, Enfield and Islington all equal or better the London average.
e Haringey fail to achieve the London average on both questions.



Page 20

Other independent contractors - Dental, Pharmacy and Optometry at April 2011

April 2011 Barnet Camden Enfield | Haringey | Islington Total
Dental 70 42 44 51 23 230
Practices

Optometrists 88 77 72 33 53 323
Pharmacies 71 65 61 56 46 299

There is more data available on contractors in each borough, but it is not in a standard
format to enable comparisons to be drawn.

5. NCL Primary Care Strategy — Emerging Themes

Themes

Previous/existing
strategies

There is a common theme that 5 years ago most strategies were
looking to develop care pathways based on hub and spoke
models. Healthcare for London led to most plans being re-
packaged as “Polysystems” including new build locality centres.
Over the past year, without any new build financing, plans have
been modified to take account of the original hub and spoke
model plus any polysystem developments that were approved.
Undoubtedly, the strategic focus and planning over the past 5
years has been premises-led.

However, despite extensive planning, implementation has been
slow. Strategically the picture across NCL has not changed
dramatically.

In Barnet, and Haringey there were detailed plans to reduce the
number of practices substantially. But these plans generally did
not have the support of GPs and were not implemented.

Enfield GPs had agreed to reducing practice numbers by
relocations into new premises, but became disillusioned when this
was not fully implemented

Camden and Islington seem to have had most impact by focusing
on implementing their local plans, irrespective of external drivers.
At its best, Practice Based Commissioning has tended to focus on
pathway redesign and has delivered improvements in some
areas, but it has been variable across NCL.

Quality of service
and care

How we really measure true quality?
“Quality is complex and multidimensional. No single group of
indicators is likely to capture all perspectives on, or all dimensions
of, quality in general practice” (Improving the quality of care in
general practice The King’s Fund March 2011)
We currently have Balanced Scorecards (5 different), QOF
(generally good), MORI Survey (not so good) and Prescribing
Data. We will be implementing the London-wide GP Outcomes
Framework from April 2012.
Anecdotally we know that there are issues in all boroughs and
some more so than others
Access is a proxy indicator for outcomes

Data

Data rich, information poor. Data sets are often incomplete,
inconclusive, different form, different content, hard to find, locally




Page 21

specific or non-existent.

¢ We need both hard and soft data.

e Islington Public Health Informatics team currently produce disease
profiles by practice and have the ability, but not the capacity, to
extend across all practices in NCL.

Premises e There is variability in the quality of the premises across North
Central London
IT There are 4 dimensions to the lack of standardisation in IT systems:

e Practices across NCL using different systems and suppliers

e Practices within a Borough using different systems and suppliers

e Practice systems not able to communicate with Community
Services systems (Usually RIO)

¢ The extent to which practices are (un)able to communicate with
Acute and Mental Health provider systems

GP Productivity

How we really measure productivity?
¢ Need to be able to measure productivity in General Practice.
e Value = outcomes/cost
e “2006/07 UK General Practice Workload Survey” is the most
recent definitive study
o See “Improving the quality of care in general practice” (King’s
Fund March 2011) for links between Quality and Productivity

6. Summary

The facts and figures and the emerging themes will be discussed with stakeholders and an
underpinning strategy will be developed through this discussion.




Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 23

The future landscape of Primary Care

A patient’s view of primary care in North Central London in the Boroughs of Barnet,
Enfield, Haringey, Camden and Islington in the year 20xx.

I’'ve just moved into the area and I’d like to find out about what’s available to me from
the local NHS.

Welcome to North Central London from the primary care part of the NHS. Firstly, we want to
get you registered as a patient in our area. We make it as easy as possible. You may
already have had an information pack from your estate agent or letting landlord, but if not
just call in at any of our NHS-signed premises — Doctors, Pharmacies or Clinics - or at your
local council office. You'll need to bring with you a proof of your identity and of your new
address and we’ll get you signed up straight away. It will then take a few days for us to
complete your registration and to send you full details of what we can offer you. This will
include:

- Names and addresses and full information about local general practices who are
ready, willing and able to offer you registration. You can then choose the one that
best meets your personal lifestyle preferences. Be assured that the quality of care is
uniformly high at all of our practices, and that the differences in location, premises,
size, languages and gender are the criteria by which we want you to choose,
according to what suits you. Some patients prefer a small practice where they will
know, and be known by, all the staff. Sometimes this means that they may have to
go to another nearby practice for care that cannot be safely delivered in a small
practice. Other patients prefer a larger “one stop” centre where they may not know
all the staff but a wider range of services will be available. It's your choice!

- Aninvitation to book a new patient health check at the practice of your choice. We
want to ensure that the practice get to know about you so that they can offer you a
total health service. This invitation will also be extended to your family members if
you are also registering them.

- Alist of pharmacies in your area, with opening times and additional services. Do
note that our pharmacists are able to offer you advice and a wide range of services
which could save you having to go to your doctor.

- An information pack on the full range of services we can offer and how to access
them, for example, dentistry and optometry. Also it will explain how to find your way
through the local NHS when you need us urgently. We offer a range of urgent care
and the Hospital A&E Department is reserved for the most serious cases. Most
urgent care can be delivered by your doctor or pharmacist. If you're not sure you can
always phone us (see attached details) and we’ll signpost you to the most
appropriate care centre. Do be aware that if you do go straight to the Hospital A&E,
they may re-direct you back to your local primary care service for the type of care
that you need.




Page 24

| So, as a new patient, what can | expect from my general practice?

Firstly, we can assure you that the premises will be fit for purpose, irrespective of the age
and type of building. We have a mix of new and old, large and small, buildings but they are
all clean, bright, and tidy and will display only current relevant information about our
services. The building will be accessible for all, including the disabled, and will conform to all
health and safety and requirements and be a safe environment. There will be a comfortable
waiting area and all of our practices are child friendly, understanding the needs of both
parents and children, at what may be a stressful time.

All consulting and treatment rooms will be appropriate for their use, and there will be decent
WC facilities should you need them.

The practice opening hours will be published and they will offer you a choice of pre-booked
appointments or, if you are prepared to wait, a walk-in service. From the information we sent
you, you will already be aware of your choice of clinician, including gender and language
preferences.

On arrival, the practice reception staff will be welcoming and will offer you a confidential
check-in process. As a new patient, you will be introduced to our health advisory service,
either face to face or virtually, to guide you through the things that you may find useful
including:

- How to get your personal health profile

- Self care and lifestyle advice

- Exercise on prescription

- Housing, benefits, employment, healthy foods and cookery advice

- Specialist advice on drugs and alcohol abuse

- Details of how to access all our services

Your practice health care team will view you as a member of the local health community and
will provide you with public health information about disease patterns, likelihood and
symptoms. We know the expected patterns of ill health in a community and can advise you
on healthy living, prevention and early diagnosis.

After my initial visit, how will | be able to contact the practice?

Between 8am and 6.30pm you can contact any of our practices by phone, e-mail or in
person. Some of our practices are open until 8pm and on Saturday mornings. They will
always respond to phone calls and e-mails within 2 hours and often immediately. Outside
these hours, please ring the Out of Hours Doctor Service on the number that we have given
you in our information pack.

We offer consultations with doctors and nurses by phone, by e-mail and face to face. When
you phone or e-mail to make an appointment the practice will agree with you which is the
most suitable option for you. If you prefer continuity, then practices will always try to offer
you an appointment with the clinician of your choice. Sometimes, particularly if you require
an urgent consultation, they will offer you a consultation with the first available clinician.

Whichever type of consultation you have, and whatever the time of day or night, with your
permission, we can arrange for your medical records to be available to the clinician so that
s/he can see all relevant information. If you have an out of hours consultation, we will
ensure that your registered practice is aware of it, and they will update your records
accordingly within 12 hours.



Page 25

What services do you offer in your practices?

All of our practices work within a network of 15,000 to 30,000 patients across a number of
practices. The network principle is that you will always be able to access the services that
we offer as part of our guaranteed standard services list (see enclosed). If you are
registered with a small practice, you may have to attend another nearby practice in the local
network for some services.

Every practice offers, on-site, as a minimum the range of “core” services that you would
expect from any general practice. Some larger practices offer a wide and growing range of
additional services. Here are some examples of how the network functions:

- All practices offer a range of patient diagnostic tests in-house. If you need a blood
test, then the sample will be taken in the practice and sent the samples away for
analysis. The practice will advise you of the results within 72 hours.

- Some larger practices offer more specialised testing, such as ultrasound scanning,
for their own patients and for those from nearby smaller practices in the network.

- If you require more specialist support and advice for a condition such as Diabetes,
we may ask you to attend an appointment with a Diabetes GP or Nurse locally in the
network.

- If you need an X-ray, there is a community-based X-ray service available in each
borough.

Communication between practices is usually electronic. Most practices use the same
computer system, but those who have a different system can still communicate with each
other across the network. Practices are also able to communicate with other community
based clinicians and hospitals to ensure effective transfer of relevant patient information
across organisational boundaries.

You will also be able to log on to check your own health record at any time. If you don’t have
a computer available to you, you can use the surgery patient computer to check your
records, make future appointments or re-order your medication.

In addition to the above services, practices provide home visits for housebound patients.
We can also offer these patients self-monitoring equipment to measure blood pressure,
blood sugar levels and other routine regular monitoring tests.

Dentists, Pharmacists and Optometrists are all an important part of our primary care
services. Our information pack will give you full details of your nearest practitioners and how
to access them both routinely and in an emergency. Often, they will be co-located with our
general practices or will be in nearby premises, and can offer a range of services to support
your health and wellbeing.

Our GPs will only ever do what they know they can do safely in their own practice, and
sometimes it will be necessary to refer you for further advice or tests. Your GP will be able
to offer you a consultation locally with a specialist consultant or will arrange a hospital
appointment for you.



Page 26

What if | need to go in to hospital for an operation?

Our GPs will do as much as they can in primary care to avoid hospital admissions.
However, if they decide that an operation is necessary, they will:
- Advise you on what to expect
- Offer you a choice of hospitals
- Increasingly, arrange for you to be a day case patient without any overnight stay
- Ensure that, if you do stay in hospital, it will only be for the minimum time and get you
discharged as soon as it is safe to do so
- Support your rehabilitation and convalescence at home or in a community setting.
- Arrange any follow up consultations with the most appropriate clinician, who may be
the GP, the hospital consultant or another specialist clinician.

I’'ve got what is known as a Long Term Condition — how will you manage that?

When a patient is first diagnosed with a long term condition, all our practices will:

- Provide you with full educational information about your condition soon after
diagnosis

- Introduce you to our nursing team who lead much of our long term conditions
management

- Advise you of additional support services, who will often be patient groups or
charities, who are expert in the management of your condition

- Agree a package of care based on your needs. This will include a written Care Plan
with mutually agreed goals and periodic and annual reviews.

If you need more specialist advice, all our practices work as part of a local network known as
the Extended Primary Health Care Team. The team will service a population of 15,000 to
30,000 patients across a number of practices. The services include:

District Nursing, including Community Matrons to plan and oversee your care
Specialist nursing including School Nurses, Paediatric Nurses and other specialties
Health Visiting

Midwifery

Physiotherapy

Podiatry

Speech and Language Therapy

Occupational Therapy

Primary mental health services, including psychology and a range of counselling and
therapy services

Social services care

V VYVVVVVVVVYY

If you have a complex condition, our team will appoint a named care co-ordinator, to work
with you and the rest of the team. They will then work with you to implement your Care Plan.

All community members of our teams have modern technology, including telephones with
GPS navigation, so that colleagues can locate them and they can locate you as quickly as is
necessary.

What about my medications?

For those patients with long term conditions, we offer repeat dispensing from your named
pharmacy without the need to request a repeat prescription from your practice. The
pharmacist is an expert in medicines management and will advise when you need to see
your doctor again for a review of your medications.



Page 27

Your pharmacist will also advise you on any side effects or concerns that you have arising
from your medication and will consult with your doctor about any recommended changes.

What services do your practices offer to pregnant women?

Hopefully, your practice will already know you and have offered you pre-conception advice
as part of our normal service. The practice will seek to confirm your pregnancy as early as
possible and offer you advice about your choice of birth settings. They will then offer you,
and your partner, a range of ante-natal services including exercise and parenting classes.
Our team of midwives will work closely with you and your GP to monitor your pregnancy and
to support you in a safe birth.

After the birth, the practice team of doctors, nurses, midwives and health visitors will provide
additional support services for the first two years. This will include:

- Immunisations

- Child development monitoring

- Parenting skills support

- Ongoing conception advice

What can you offer me if | am diagnosed with a terminal illness?

We will agree a Care Plan with you based on the MacMillan Gold Standard for end of life
care. In addition to your GP, our extended Primary Health Care Team nurses will look after
you and support and advise you on your options requiring decisions.

IHow do you assure the quality of your GPs?,

All of our GPs are committed to ongoing professional development. They all have written
personal development plans, and take part in an annual appraisal of their performance with
a qualified GP appraiser. They attend regular education and development programmes on
key GP skills.

All GPs are now required to apply for professional re-accreditation every 5 years.

GPs arrange for their practice staff to attend regular professional development training and
education programmes suitable to their role. In addition to professional clinical training this
includes customer care training for our reception teams. Our practices aim to build a culture
of high standards of clinical care and service.

How do you know whether your GPs are doing a good job?

There are a number of statutory measures by which we can assess the overall quality of
service provision by our primary care colleagues. In addition, we encourage a culture of
incident reporting and group learning.

Our practices actively seek and welcome feedback from patients on their experience of our
services, and view complaints as an opportunity to improve services.

Our aim, and that of all our practices, is to offer you a high quality primary care team
service which will enable you to live the best possible lifestyle in respect of your
personal health and wellbeing.



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 29

NHS

North Central London
Stephenson House
75 Hampstead Road

Direct Line: 020 7685 6243 Euston
e-mail: martin.machray@nclondon.nhs.uk London NW1 2PL
web: www.ncl.nhs.uk

Tel: 020 7685 6300
Date: 22 September 2011 Fax: 020 7685 6210
Clir Bull
Chairman

North Central London Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Haringey Council

7" Floor, River Park House

225 High Road

London N22 4HQ

Dear Clir Bull
Re: Independent Business Review of Camidoc Limited

As promised please find attached a copy of the above report for circulation to Committee
members. As you know the report was jointly commissioned by Camidoc Limited and the
Commissioners representing the four Primary Care Trusts of Camden, City & Hackney,
Haringey and Islington. The purpose was to explore the financial position of the company
following their request for extra funding at the beginning of 2010. It did not look at broader
issues such as service quality or the commissioning process.

| realise that members have waited a long time for this and it is now old but it is only
recently that we have received permission form the authors to release this.

Yours sincerely

~ ) f(><.' Jrome—————g
\\/ Y X

l

Martin Machray
Deputy Director — Governance and Communications

cc
Mr Rob Mack — JHOSC Committee Clerk, Haringey Council

Chair: Paula Kahn NHS North Central London is a collaborative working arrangement between
Chief Executive: Caroline Taylor Barnet, Camden, Enfield, Haringey and Islington Primary Care Trusts



Page 30



Page 31

O —.ON >_3ﬂ. @ _. wod Mb@bu's'ueng 3
805z 5987 02(0) #¥+ L
Jabeuey

BN ueug

PBIIWIT 00PIWEY) JO MBIASY SSeulsng Juspuadapu

wooyMb@uewmau st 3
£5¥E 8222 02(0) vy+ L

uspwed SHN weuma so15

uojuIOY | JueID) o



Page 32

JTT 3] uoluIoy ], JUBIS)

Aqryvarey SMOX

(8052 §98L 0Z0) SN UeRg 30 (£54€ 8TLL 0T0) UEWASN,
SA[ID) FPYMP 198300 3se3[d uay) 130das ST SSNOSTP 01 3] pom no4 J1

- xpuaddy ur 1odar
ST Jo £yemdoe [enioeg oy JunuA UT PIUIUOD 970§a19Y) 24Ty oga Luedwor)
213 3o Juswadenewr ayj Aq paMITAST U33q SAEY 170dI ST JO SIUIUOD Y,

‘fuedwor) ap yo ArqrsuodsaT 3 SUTEWST YOI A UOREWTOJTT

yons 703 Apqrsuodsay 3d3052 Jou Op a4 “sn 03 apew suoneuasazdas

T pue g xipuaddy ur paisyy Luedwoy) a9y jo JuswaSeuews a3

£q papraoxd uonewzoyur UdAq sey 3omos Lrewad mo r0dax yno Fumedard oy

-2)ep Je1 391J¢ FUISUE SIDUTSIWMOID
70 53u2A9 103 310dar MO Syepdn 01 UIYEITIPUN 10U IABY 34\ "010Z Amf
6 GO p239[duwod sem 3oMP[3Y MO PUE (](Z SUN{ 97 UO PIJUIWWOD YI0A M)

AN UOIOYI-URIE MMM
20€Y veLL 02(0) v+ 4
0045 £8€4 02(0) tp+ L

NAZ d203 uopuo
asenbs Aingsuty e

JeUGeLIBIU) UOJLIDY ) JUBIE) JO JagLuBW Y

SJUBIUNDI2Y PAIBHEYY
dT71 NN uojoy) jueig

[eDU2PJUO.) PUE IBALL]

§58U|SNQ JUBWISAAUL IO} M10YINY SBOIAIBS (eloueld oy} Aq pajeinBal pue pasuoyIne S| 477 df LojUI0Y | WBID
*g21o pausysifal ano

WO} S|ejene St SIagUWaW Jo 18 ¥ "dIZ LMN UOPUOT "a1enbs U0isna ‘Jaalls LoJSH 'SNOH UOIUIoU] Wess) 3910
paisisiba 2p/40800°0N S3FeM pue pueibu3 i paisisibas diysiauyed Aljiqel) payjuil e s1 77 Ny Gojwoy L JuRID

"JUISUOD

uapna Jopd mo oy wred ur 10 sjoym o L1ed 15130 UL 01 PaIENOID

10 ﬁuu—.—ﬁOu&uu ‘pasn aq 30U proys y70da1 STy JeY1 ‘9I0JaIaY] ‘9)JBIadRT AN
-fuveduor) a3 03 BoRE[Rr T axyew fzws Loy Jey) uorsIp Lue ur rodar Mo To
a571d feuwr sanred asatp 1eyp sdueErar fue Jo 1adsar uT T9a30sIEYM LMNIqIsuodsas
Aue 1da0e Jouwes o Jep) ssans am 3x0das sugy jo £doo e Suraraoar

Ut paIsaruT 9q Aew sopaed I5GI0 ISTYA\ “USPWE)) SHN F0J APAISOPIXA
paredard uanq seyq pue [enuapyuod s1330da1 sTYY  {Iom o jo adoos
ssugap yoma v xrpuaddy ur 39119] 1uawsFedus Mo 0] BARIP ST UORUINE INOK

*G 0} g SUONYAG UT IN0 328 ATPJUSUWIUIC) PI[FEIIP MO s uondunfuod
TT STy} peas 0) £1vssa031r ST 31 SUTpUESISpUN [NJ € I0F Jerd $sams jnq ‘fTewumg
2AGNOAXY Y TAHA PIPT[UL 91% SGONEPUSMWIOIST PUE SUOISI[IBOD N0

‘podar mo 3ursopua
ur amsea|d 2aey pue g1 AUN{ pZ PAIEp T315] Jusuradedus mo 03 13731 I

(,/fuedwmo) am,, 30 ,ooprwe),,) payrwr] doprare)
STIQ B3

UBW{INg I319 JO TUONUINE Y] IO

Hd0 TAN
uopuo

Aep serdUR ISt
rerdsopq seueg 15
Bapwe]) SHN

010z 4mf 91 Ng/ND 993319537 MO

uojuloy | Jueio)



Page 33

ajeq oL Jeap

1OBIUCD HOO M3U 38U} JO JUSLLISIUSWILLIOD
1O 9]Ep 9Y) WoLj Spouad WUOW-Z | PJIYL PUE YJUOLW-Z| pUOdIs 3y |

0102 /1390120
1 s1 uopepoadxa Juaund ay| “(AsuyoeH pue AiD SHN pue AabuueH

SHN ‘uojBulis] SHN ‘Uspwed SHN) S10d N} JO WNILIOSUCD au}
pue oopiweD usamloq paaibe aq o} 194 S} YoIYM JORJUCO HOO MdU
54} JO JUSLLIBOUBLULLIOD JO 3jep ey toy) pouad Yjuow-z| 181l 8yl

(ue1s) wsjeanb3 awiy 3oYMm

peywiIT ooplwe)
JUSpIoU| pIEMOJUN SNOLBS
juawealby |aA@7 3dIRS

aoIMag HOO 84 4o
SIDUOISSIWWO? 3 ale yaiym (KauwyoeH pue A0 SHN pue AsbupeH

SHN ‘UolBulis] SHN ‘uspwed SHN "8'1) sisni) aed Arewid ino4
alua) aie) juabin Aewnd
winuue Jad

JUNOJ%e SSOj pUe J§oId

alA

€ pue Z 1BaA

} JeaA
ERE

aopiwes)
Jo Auedwo? 3y}

Ins
Yis

S$12d 2W
o0nd
ed

18d

SINOH 0 IO

1S} a1 Alewld uspwed

£uedwon ay} j0 S10}031Ip ay} Jo/pue juswsbeuew Jousg
sI0je2Ipu] @auewlIopad A9)

000,

d11)>iN uojwoy] juel

sIpuoloeld [EDIPIN [B12UdD)

XX0Z Y21ew L€ Buipuaspapus Jeak jeloueul

SIK'YoIEP MO YseD J0pIWLED |ind

uonesiHoWE pue uoleasdap ‘xe} ‘jsasajul 210599 sbujwes
Xej pue jsalajul aiojaq sbuiwes

uspwe) SHN Aq pauoissiwwod ajdoad
SS8|aWOY 10} 30JAISS B ‘a0)oeld Juswaaoidul] yieaH uspweg

180JO BAIN0BXT JOIUD
3jey YIMoIS) [enuuy punodwod

Aouabiawe pue JuapIOdY

HOO
uspiue) SHN
juawabeuepy

Sid)

A

19

d9

XXAH

|3pO [eioueuly
vaiig3s

11g3

diHO
039
YOV
Iy

Axesso[n)



Page 34

€S JeJi9] uogBULPUCD AJBINOOE jBNjded Q)
zs 0102 JequiasaQ o} 0LOZ AInf WOl JSEIAI0) MOY} YSeD Ajyjuoly "D
S uogeuwojul Jo seoInos |edpulld g
Sy wawebebus jo Jeye] -y
abed seojpueddy

38 8

sl

JUSWIUOHALIS [QRUOD [erusuly

€ JeaA O} | JBSA 10} SUOloafold

193YS squRieq puE MOy YSED [BILCISIH
soueunopad Guipesy [eoucisi
Aewuns annoaxg

uondssg

v o M & 8

SIUUO))




Page 35

UEULANAL OALCD FROUEULY

£ Jod) G | JBBA JOj Su0oal0ig

195U 3OUBIG PUB MO YD [ROUCISTH

aoyruLOpRd BUtp=Il EIU0sE

Arewiwins aAlnoax3

| UOI}93S

uojuIoy | Juelc) o



Page 36

passalippe

ale sanssi A3y ay} jey; ainsua 0} Ajoedes juswabeuew Jeuoneiado Jusioyns aAey jou saop Auedwo) ay) Ajuaungd
JOBIJUOD 3Y) Ul pajoayal

aq 0} paau sanssi Jayun} Aue Jaylaum Usijqe}ss pue SjoRuod [eloueul) pue jeuciiesado JO [8A3] 3y} M3IABI PINoYs S1Dd 8yl
poaibe sbuneaw juswabeuew (psajejeass Ji Ap@am ‘Ajyjuow)

1enBal 1o} paasbe sBuieaw Jo 9[Npayds e pue ‘JoBijuod mau ay) ojul Ind pue paaibe aq pjnoys syoed Bupiodalr Alyjuopy
sjuawannbal Ayenb Jo souerdwos suodas pue spuag) Ajaoe sapiaoid Yyaiym Hoday Ajfenpd saueunopad Auspenb

8y} uey} Jayjo ‘Yidap pue Aouanbaly JuaIOYNS JO UOHEWIOUI UM S ] Dd 34} apiaosd Jou saop Auedwo) ay; Ajusun)

aoueuwuouad [ejoueul pue Ajjigelyold 1oeiuod

[enpIAIpUI JO JUBLISSaSSe 9|qeua O} JORIJU0D yoes 1o Ajjiqejyo.d podas pue spoenuod Aay jno yids pjnoys juawabeuepy
SBU0)Sa|IW Ad) pue Sajep pue

Apqisuodsal aoads yum Buoje ‘sjuswaaoidwi pasinbal ay) aasiyoe o} Buiob si Auedwo) ay) yoiym Aq poyjow ay) pue
syabie} Aianonpoud Jo sjeas| paalbie wnwiujw e se Buipnjaul pauoijoe aq o] spaau ue|d juswsAolduwl S0 palspISLod
suieb Ayaonpoud paiijuapl JUNOSoE OJU| 9)E] O] SISED3I0) [BlIoUBUY S]l }SEDS) PUB JOBJUOD

2y} Jo sieak om)/JeaA 1Sl Ay} 18A0 asealou] ||im AJAIIONPoId Moy SISUOISSIWLWOoD Yiim aalbe o] spasu Auedwio) ayy
Ajgeoid pue Ayaionpold uo S8jejuasuod i Jey} ainsua o) Ajoedes |eusbeuew s} Ul }S3AUI 0) SpaaU J0piwE)

Angoe

Kjleioadsa ‘suoneuea Buipel) ysiqe)}sa 0] Smainal Jeak Ul 10} adoas S| 818y} ainsua 0} JOeuod ay) yelpal ‘Alessaosu i 'pue

| oopiwes yym 3oeiuod ay) Buisiieuy a1ojaq palepisucd aie podal siyy ul pajybiybiy sysu ayj 1ey) ainsua pinoys s190d a4yl
_ sw9) Joenuo? pajenjobisual Jo sjuawAed |euonippe
Jayyia Jnoyum aniny ayj ojul Aiqeyjoid opel) 0} JopIWEeD SIGBUS [jIM JOBIJUOD MU Y] JOYIBYM UleHadun s )l ‘)nsal e sy
saniAlIsuss

JuBIaIp O Jaquinu e o} uado si JI Jaramoy ‘pyoid [[lews e axew o} Auedwog) s} Jo} Mojje SS0P JOBJJUOD MBU BY |

10BJJU0D MSU 3Y] JO JUBWS2USWIWOD 8Y) 0} Joud Juawieal; sy salbe
pue AJjiIge) Siy} JO JUS]Xd By} PUBISISPUN O} Pasu S1Dd 9y} ‘|ended Bupjiom se sy asn o} senujuod Auedwol ay) ISy

30203 SEM 0102 UdJBW LE Je Se Aljiqel| uoisuad |ejo] “8jep anp e 9ABY 0} Waas Jou Saop 010z Ae
LE 18 %2623 Bunejo} suoisuad 4o Joj sdn-doj Jo SuLe) Ul SWSYIS Uoisuad SHN @Y} 0} pamo junolwe ay) ‘A)[iqel| ulew sy |

3/€3 AQ seniIqel| [e10} UBY) SS8| 91e S}aSSE [e)0] S| SE 0L0Z ABW L€ JE SE JUSA[OSU A||EDIUYDS} SEM D0pIWED

uoioBILUI
|ENJORIU0D pUB Jusiusbeuep

SIanlp ssauIsng Asy

1984JU02 BulobuQ

SQUIPEoH

AJeWWNS 3AN2aXT



Page 37

oL0g
yosew L£ uo uoneubisal siy [gun Aiejaioesg Auedwo) ay) sem (03D snolaald

ay}) Buip|og) |seyol ‘@snoy ssiuedwo) Lwolj PSUIRIGO SP10D3I By} UO paseq
Auedwo) ay) jo siojoalip Alojnje)s se pa)s) ale

(g xipuaddy uo pajs)|) wes) diysiapes| JuaLnd sy} jo auou ‘109 1q UeY} JBUYI0
uosuIqoy JOA| UG —

109 unkep 1q —

:9snoH saiuedwo) wol}

pSUIE}qO SPIOD8] }SajE| BUY UO Paseq Siajoallp AoJniels Z Ajusiino ae assy |

siop0au1q Aioyniels

JAA0D JUBAS JO) PUB JB3A0D ¢ WBiuiano

‘siepdsoy |eo0] je sjuawpedap 33y 0} Joddns ‘uspwe) Ul sjuapisal ssajawioy

0} S30IAISS 49 SB Uons Sa01AI9s 91e0 Asellid jeuolippe 10j SJoeJju0d woly

SI SOpIWEY) JO} BWODdUI JO %€ Bulutewas ayj ‘1oeJUOD HOO Ui UBY) 18410

Ayanoe o} suawAed xul| [|im Yyoium (010Z 390 | woy

souBsWwWod 0} paedioNuE) J9eRUOD HOO Mau 8y} 1o} ssad0id juswainaoid

ay} Jo uonesijeuy Buipuad L0z 1dag OF Uy} 18je| Ou 0} papUd)Xa Useq

sey 'g00z O} 500z woly Bulaaod 19..u00 Ho0[q B '1oeRUOD HOO IUalnd 8y
juswissasse

auoydaja) [eqiul ue Jaye paunbai j s10}00p oopiwe) AQ SUSIA dwoy -~
juswssasse suoyda)a} e Huimoljo} paanbal Ji S10}00p J0pILED USIA

sjuaned aioym S94UID [ES0| 0PILLED JB SSDIAISS 8DB}-01-998) JO uoisinoid —

sJ0}00p dopiwes) AQ uoljelnsuod auoydajel —

:JO WO} 9Y} 9)E} UBD SSIIAIBS [EDIUID BY L

Spudaam pue

sBujuana e 1o Aep ay} Buunp Jayye ‘pasojd s| aoioeid 4o Jiay) uaym sjuaned

10} JOAO9 [B21UID puE sadiales Buemsue auoydaja) sapinoid Auedwo) ay ]

10eU0D HOO Y3 0} SajE[S1 0L A4 Ul Jaaousn) sAuedwod auy Jo %02 AlJesN

‘AsuxoeH pue AN SHN pue AsBupeH SHN ‘uoibulls| SHN 'uspwe)d SHN

- 5] Dd [e90] 1IN0} 0} IIAIBS (HOO) SINOH 1O INQ JO J8piAoid 8y} s J0piwed

MBINIDAO SSauisng

1OAOUIN | e 14osd BN mm——m

OLAd 60Ad 80Ad L0Ad S0Ad
04 (€18)

000t 1
000 -
000°€
000'% 1
0005 -
0009 -
000'2 1
000°8 1 o'
0006 - ‘05t

- 000°4)

- (005)

T
(=]

r 005

Turnover (£'000)

(0003) (ssapauord 18N

+ 000'L

0LAd 01 90Ad oy s}nsal |eldueuy Alewwng

Sd9 |B90] osudWOoD s1IsquWsl e
oAjesadood 49 e Aq usyepspun sem

80IM9S HOO 40 uoisiacid ay} ‘1eyl o} joud e
3211u9s (HOO) Sinoy Jo 1no Jo uoisiraid

ay) 1o} GOOZ 140y | woy Buipes pasuswiwod e
uopesiuebio

1yo1d-10}-jou ‘asudialua [|00s B palapIsucd e
Kiepisgns Jo Auedwod

wased ou ypm AuedwiOO BUCIBPUB)S e

|endeo aseys e Buiaey
jou pue aajuesenb Agq papwi Auedwod e e

uonewuojul Aoy

ainjonJys jeban

POIWIIT JOPWIED) JO ANATIAQ)

Alewwins sAnoaxg



Page 38

Buipel; jnyBuoim o} 10adsal yum suoisiroid sejnoiped ul pue gge)
10y AouaAjosu| ay} pue goog 19V Saiuedwog ay) Jopun sanjiqisuodsal Juaung 1iay} o} se aoiape jebs| ajeudoidde aye)
A3y} 18y} a1nsus piNoys dopiwe) Jo siojallp 3y} ‘01.0Z ABW L€ 18 se Auedwo) ayj) jo uonisod yseo aamsod ayj aydsag
sSMoy yses pue Ayjiqejyold Auedwo) ayj aonpal [[IM SWN|OA Ul 8sealdap Jueoyiubis
Aue ased yoiym U1 awnjoa Kjaoe 0] aARISuas Ajjuesyiubis s| 1oe1juod ay) Jey) ajou dm ‘JoAsmoH “AJIAOe O} awIodul
NUIl 1A UDIYM JoBIJUOD HOO M8U ayj 0} Bulaow Aq pajebiiw aq |im uoilisod [elouBul 9SISAPE SIY] S9A3)jaq Juswebeuely e
joenUo2 Mau ay) Bulubis a10jaq pomles aq JIIm AJjigel siul moy sealbe oopjwe) ainsus
0] paau S10d 941 0102 Aei LE 18 Y26.3 S|ej0l Ajua.ino uopnquuod Bulpuejsino ay| -oopiue) Ag uoingijuod
uoisuad 94| |[BUOYIPPE O} Pajijus aie jjE]S pue SI0J00p A0USY ‘BWdYdS uoisuad SHN 9y} jo ued siooplwedy  —
saseaoul AJAo. se s10)00p 0} sjuswAed uoissas u) jeuoljippe  —

siapiaoid HOO 184jo
0} patedwoo 9juenb Jamo] 9y} Je 201d Jun Ju1IND 3y} PAJESIpUl UoKEpPUNO4 a1 AlBWld 9y} AqQ Jno palued Apns
Buppewysuaq v ~awnjoA AjAioe uey) Jayiel uoieindod uo peseq st 821d Jun YoIym Ul 1oenjuo) HOO ulew ayj 1o}
Juswebuee ¥20|q ay) Aq papunodwon sj siy] “Aljgeded aimponasenur pue Ajjenb sajaes sy asealou) o} Jybnos
Auedwon) ay) se speayIaAo pue saue|es ‘6'a s)sod paxy pue ainjpuadxa paseaioul 0} anp Ajjiqepjoid jo uoisold  —
SN20} pue asueulaAob jeioueul Jo Yoe| se [[om se juawabeuew pue Guuueld [eoueuy jood  —
:apnjoul AYNouyp |elouBLy SIY) pulyaq suoseasay] e
juaA|osul A||Bo1uyos} alojalay)
s Auedwion sy ")Z¢3F Aq senijiqel; [2}0} Uy} SSI| Sle sjasse (B0} ‘01L0Z ABW L€ Je Se Sjunoode juswsebeuew uo paseg e

sanigei| je1ol Ley; sss) buisg
S]28SE [€10] S} Q) anp 0L0Z AN L€ 1e
SEe JUaAjOS Ul A||BCIUY D8] SEM ODpIWwe))

Aouanjog

$onssT A9]

Alewuwins aagnoaxg



Page 39

sasodind Ajpinbi| Joj oopiwe? jsisse 0} (300p3) Buipuny

awooul jeuonippe pue (il L 3) Buipuny ny sums Jo 10adsal Ul 0LAH Ul YL GF Bull|ejo} awodul o-aUo paAI3dal J0pIWED e
S]oBU0D MBU woJy pajelaush

800U SE [joM SB paniasal Bulpuny 8Woou} JO-3Uo [euonippe 0} anp Ajuiew S| 60AS WOl 0L Ad Ul SBSSO| 18U paonpaisy] e

$dO

8y} 0} uoRNQLISIP 10} A19AI0BYS S| UOKNQUIUOD uoisuad
SiY} 10U 10 Jayjeym Jeajpun si )i ‘1eramol ‘Auedwo auy
Aq anp Ajjige)| e se sjuawihed uoisuad asayj pajunodde
sey juswabeuepy “Auedwod ay) Aq uayepuapun AjAjoe
{ Jo}nsa1 e Se uoPNQUIUoD %L [euohippe yim dn paddo)

SJUNCoaE PAUIPNE G0AL 2 SIUNCCOE 1AWSGRURIU WBIP QLA L SRANOS

| aue suoisusd Jojoop (e Jey) seinsua osje Auedwo) 8y e | %L sot 68 (000, (Se0) Ausnoe feioL
wiapiou) NS ised e o} asuodsal %98 (bt wioel) uibiew yQ11g3
i %2k %568 %898 wibrew ssox
u; Ayjenb [esjud pue sadiAles Jayeq ) 51198 10 Ajenh
apiaoid 0} Japlo ut ajueulanob |eoIUl0 l0z2) {085) (o) $S0| JoU Pasj[RULION Jaybiy pue saneq A2l E 18Aiep 0]
(sesinu 'sis|puey ||eo) yejs |euoljesado e ol'p2) (egs) (142 el e G 11 S0 e yoiym oopiues AG S9CUN0Ss.
2IMONISEAUI || Ul JUSLWISIAU) . o{6°95) _Goc (e18) mmo_ﬁz_ pue || Ul JusW}saAul [EUOHIppE
%0°69 (g2} {z1) XE} PUE 1S0I5JUl ‘ungedatag pUE 3LINIOA AltAIIDE DSSE3IJUI 8Y]
_ J0 nsal e se SpesyIano pue sjsoo Aed saubly  — %(s'25) (seg) (962) vaus3 LA 21RINSLIBWILI0D 10U PIP 821 U
awn|joA ApAloe paseeloul %L 9P (022 (e68) SpEaYIanD J3I0 5} S8 PSPUN|-JSPUN SEM JOBIILOT
2y} YIMm SJBINSUSLULIOD Jou pip yaiym uojejndod %0'9¢ (6592) (8¥6't) sabem pue saueeg HOO 2y} SISpISU0d juslusbeuey
jueied paisysifial 1od ajel padnpalue)suod %2 ¥8 080'E S¥'t \joud ssa19
e Je Jos sem aoud Jun se s Dd 8y} %p'e (£r9'F) (z6w'%) Safes 01500
£q 10B1U0D HOO SY Jo Bupunj-1apun jueayubls - %0'52 £182 819 awoau| (2101 SOAISSS!
:0} anp aq 0} ssueuiopad Buipel; esIoApe Tod ul uonanpe: Ajpesh e u Bunnsa:
ay) panqupe sey Juswabeuely "Ajoanoadsal gLAL pue reed pauneu paypny SE_ QUZER w_,m@ﬂ £ 1SB| 3y} I8N0 S8350]
60Ad Ul Y9GEF PUB %E | 83 JO SISSO| JaU SpeU J0PIUED e Fuo-2ak % 0LAd 60AL 19U JueIudis paiodel sey JCPILED

T8d Aewwng souewWiopad Buipel)

(panunuod) sansst A3

AJewwins sanoaxg



Page 40

ol

_ 10B1UOD HOO MBU 8l WOl SMOY YSED UO Juejje
| Ajaeay s pue Q10g 1equisjdes u aped) o} YSeo jualolynsul aAey [im Auedwiod ayj jey) s1sabbns jseoalo) mojy yseo jsayxy

010z 1snbny aAisays yuow sad %093

_ 1O junouie ue je Apjiqel| uoisuad Buipue)sino ay) Aedal

0) pajabpnq sey Auedwo) 8y “326.3 SEM 0102 AeW L€

1e Ajjiqer uoisuad |ejo] ‘S10J00p 1O} UONGLIUOD SWBYIS

uoisuad SHN piedun o} uonejal Ul %0293 40 Autiqe|
uoisuad |10} e pey Auedwod 3y} ‘0L0Z UDIBN LEIV e

%(1°501) 0g (z85) MOJ} 4SED 18N

198p Jo poddns Jo swio} Jayjo uey) Jayjel s dd 8y} lo26) W i ot (D

woJy poddns 1o souggsisse Ybnos sey pue Ajjioe} [epdes - 18 (ev3) -~ .ﬁmu By L&o

Bunpiom Jo Ajjioe] YelplaAo ou sey Ajualing Jopiwed e :o_.h oy
woospeay yses pue jyoid 94(€706) 6¢ SO spjoud paureley LoQpesy yses
Juaioyns ajerauab 0] spaau )1 yaym woly Joenuod Hoo %8 286 168 Saoureleq YseD [481314Ns pue Joid 81e13uad 0) 19pIo
MB3U 8y} JO JUBLIBoUBWIWOD ay) uodn juapuadap Ajaeay wirion (9 ee e el Ul 10e4juc) HOO Mau eyl pue 1ocdns
51 Waouod Bujob e se anuiuod o} Aljiqe sAuedwo) ayl e [#iiee) 144 7] §jesse paxl4 10d uodn justusdep s u182u0d

32€3 Aq saijiqel| [e10] ueyj ss9j 1a9ys aaueeg mc_w_w mt%..éw_wE mu = il

aue SIaSSE [E10} JeU} P3edIpUI 0L0Z AW | Je Se sjunoooe _.n.z.?\e : peipny 0003 o A s S R R
juowabeuepy JusAjosul Ajueund s) AuedwoD ay| e tAd 60Ad SRIEERIZIEREITRUIY Al 22
Mo|} ysed pue }a3ys aduejeq Alewuwing MO|l USED pue 188ys adueleg

(ponunuod) sonsst A93]

AJBWWNS 3AN23XT



Page 41

M

suapinoid HOO Jayio 0} paledwiod ||am asedwod Jou saop eale siy} Ul asuewouad pue ‘siesh saiyy

JSE| 3y} Ul 8oUo pieog ay) 0) papodal uaaq sey Auedwo? sy} Jo aouewsopad Ayagonpold -eoeld ui usaq jou sey buipodal
aul| 821AI8S pUE 21jusd 150D "Bunjelw UoISIoop paseq ouUapIAg SWIOUI YOIym Aem e ul Jou Jnq ‘preog ay} o} papodal

_ uaaq aAey sadueul] ‘sjabie; pue aoueusanob [eojulo uo Uadqg sey pieog 8y 0} Buipodas asueunopad Jo snooj ayl
yodas souewouad B an89al ||IM SI0J031Ip

‘pajnpayos si Buaaw pieog ou AIBUM SYJUOW Ul pue ‘(ased 8y} skem|e Jou sem si} 1sed ayj u1 seasaym) Bunsaw

ay} Jo aoueApe i Buasw pieog Aiaas 0} of jjim spodas adueuLIOpDd “| LA Ul droiduwl 0] SNp S| iy} pue ‘asealoul pjnoys
sbueaw pieog Jo Asuanbay ay) jey) asiubooal AuedwoD ay| "siseq AjSLUl} B UO p[ay U33q jou dAey sbunsaw pieog

) Jaquiaw pJeog ,Ae|, B SE JuBjuNodJe payienb
ﬂ_ e Jo juawyinuoal ayy Buipnoul “1eak 1si| ay) BuLNp ¢ 0) | WoJj pasealdul sey 9siuadxa pue 8ouauadxe aoueUll YiMm Jels
JO Jaquinu 8y "s}eayspealds |99x3 UO p|ay aiam spiodal Bupunodoe siy} 0} Jold -abesoed Bununosoe abeg ayj asn o}

h papels 1s1y Auedwo) oy} ‘6002 JOqUIBAON | "eam uaag aAeY S|oNUOoD [ejoueuy dUoISYY jeuy} abpajmoLyoe Ss10}0aNq Ay L
| ueld Juswanoidw] 821A13S B UIYlim pa)asyal pue epeuwl aq ueod sjuawaAodwl
_ JIayyuny yey) pasiubooas si | “sjuswabueue aoueulanoh sjeiodios paroidw Buionposul ussq SAey siaquisw pieog 8ssy |
slaguisw pJeog ,Ae|, mau 331y}

paonpoJjul pue sjusiwabueLie 30ueuISA0H [eatuld pasocidwy Auedwod 8y} ‘2002 Ul uonebisaAul NS sslanpe ue Buimojjo
“JUSLIUOJIAUS JOJJUOD SY) pue sjuswabuelle aoueulanob Buiroidwi ul sagoeal uaaq sey Auedwo) sy} ‘Alleouoysiy

syuawesbusue

|04UOD [BIDUBLL pUE 80uBUIEA0D

anciduwl Jayuny 0 sudijoe seu

ueld juswanosd 18S 8y esseul

SS3IPPR 0] UdYEl UEAQ 8nkY SUDIDY

“(0JIUI0D [BISURUIY PUE 20uBUIBA0D ul
pesiuf003s UssC aney SasSaUNE

|04JU0D
[eIouBUI} PUB 9DUBUIBAOK)

(ponunuod) sansst 493]

AJEWLWINS BAIINJI3X]



Page 42

44

POl |ElouBUl4 3y} Ul suondwnsse J1ayjo 0} Joedul JIdy) JSpISU0D

pue sabueyd asaiy) pajepdn 194 jou sey juswabeuew ‘JaAOMOH

I JORNUGD PIEMOH UYor jo ualjessao pue Buibesseajy
| @sinN Jousiq Jo} swadul paseatou] "6 sjpoenued Jayio u sebueyo

S10}00p 10} Ajjiqe| uoisuad JU2031 ale a1sy} Jey] puejsiapun osie ap (8w Ayajonpoud €) auwy
predun ay; jo JuswAedal psuueld ay} apnioul YaIUMm (SalIjIgel| pue SJaSse) ssouejeq Ayanoe jo yibus| pue sajel Jojoop ‘swnjoa Ajaoe Gulpnjoul [spolw
_ Buiuado pue synsal BuIpeI) JUSLING Sy} O} YUI| O} PaaUl SJSE2810) 8y} ‘UORIPPE U] o | 8U} Ul 3pew suojdunsse UIRpSo payisinl Apuasal sey judwabeusiy o
oopiwe) PeRUOY HOO
10} |apow |eioueuy pajelbajul ue aonpoud o} Japio U] S}oejuo9 J3yjo o} sebueyo MBU 29U} JO UoISSILQNS PIq 8y} Jo} Juswabeuew Aq pasedaid japopy _
| juedal pue suondwnsse Jsajej }oaal 0] SJSeIalo} ay) ajepdn o} spasu Jualusbeuely e [e1ouBUlH JEaA-284Y} 8Y} UO paseq Usaq Sey S)SEJ2I0) UO YoM INO e S1Se29104
. uojjepadxs _
1suiebe sasueleA |eusiew Aue pue sdeb Ajjuspi o} usyepapun agq asueuuopad
10enuod Inobia pue Jejnbal ypm saoueuy sy Buibeuew ul yoeoidde jerosewwod alow @ouewiopad jorNUO jO sisAjeue
e Jdope 0} ¥93s p|noys }| ~10}oas ajeaud e U] Jou pue SHN 2y} jo ped } paispisuos @)epspun 0} UcHeuLIojU| paulejulew Jou Ajleouoisiy sey juswabeuey e
| ®eAey o] pesesdde juswabeuew ‘Auedwoo pajiwi| ajeaud e s Auedwo) ay; ybroyyy, azis
Buiuue)d [etoueuy pue sjunodoe juawabeuew Ajyuow Buuedaid jo Ajigisuodsal SIY} JO ssau|snq e 10} }93dxa Jybiw auo 1.y} {2AS] Su} . JoU S| S3uRnol
| a)e] 0} Jobeueyy aoueuly awy} ped e pajinioal Ajjuasal sey Auedwo) ay) e Ajgyuow pue sassasard Bujjunoooe ay) jo Ayjenb ay) ‘siapjoyayejs
fAuedwoo ay; Aq papinoid aq o} pajoadxo aAey AjjELLIoU 0] s)nsa1 podal 0} Juswalinbal ou ‘10}03UIP SUBUY OU UUAA _
pinom am Jey} ejep pue >lom sisA|eue Gupjepspun swg puads 0) pey 9AeY om pue Z0Ad Ijun ipne Aoime)s woly pajduaxa Sem yoiym uoneULIoU]
_ QNSS| UR US3Q SEY }10M JNO 10} S|GB[IEAR UCHEULIOUI JO AJjEND pUE SSBUllBWI 34l o | AuedWwoo ||ews e paJapISucd Sem pue Ssaulsng sjeAld e s| JoplweD) e juawabeuely |
_ ] AL6L3
oopiwe) 0} Joeduwy ay) Japisuod o} pue A)igey _._o_mc& Sem 010z AeW L€ 1e Ayjige) uoisuad [ejo] "S10)00p 10 Uo)NqLiuod
Buipuejsino ay) uonejas ul aoiape jeba) Buyaas s10d a2y} 1eyl puswiwodal 3 uojsuad predun y0/93 pey Auedwaod) ayl ‘0LOZ YoIe LEIBSY e
sasodind feyd * awayas uoistiad 10j00p ay) 0} uonNqUuod Aqe
Buniiom 10} suoisuad Jojoop Buifed jou uo soueljRl Juawabeuew s)sebbns st 1 uoisuad se sas} 10100p JO %tr| [EUCHIEPE Ue Aed 0} 3|qel| S JopIWE] e uolsuad
SuoOpeEAIasqo Alewuing senss| |

UOJJEPUAUWOIAIAUIWIWOD

/

(ponunuod) sanssy £o3]

Aewiwns aanoaxg



Page 43

gl

Koedes juswabeuew

SYJUOW $Z-Z| 1Xau ayj ul SHN 3y} ulyim pajoadxs sabueya
ayl yim jeradsa uswiuiodde ayj Bupiew uaym O30 8y} 1o

|euopelado sy Buiseasour Auedwio) ayj 0} dajs Juepodw)] UB aqg |IM uswjuiodde ayy e 195 [ 2U} Jopisuod Auedwiog 8y 1ew Juepodw i) ‘siseq swy yed
uomisod sip o} psjulodde aq o} ajepipues ajeudoidde jsow etfj Buisooya e uo jsod siy) Buij|i Si SI0}034IP SANIaXS-UOU 8y} Jo auo Auaun
ul pieog ay) djoy | sIUL 03D 3y Jo} pauinbal s| jey; aousuadxa pue sjIs "} 10z Aienuer £q siseq juaueuvad e uo pajuiodde 24 | 03D uonisodwod
Jeguassa pue palisap al Buyjielsp uogeosyioads gol e dn MeIp pinoys plecg 8yl e e jey; padoy s| } ‘Jusujuiodde 03D SAJUEISNS JUBLINO OU S 3S3Y| o pieog
_ apew aq ued sjuswabueue Buiodal [eloueuy _
, su0}e31pul [eojuO pue Apagonpoud au Ul SjuswancidLl JBYHING Jey] SOUBINSSE SWOS SOAIB Yaium
SE yons ‘uogeunojul soueunopad JSYI0 pue soueuy Jo uohesBal  — ‘panoidwil usaq Aguaoas sey Ajigedes pue Ajoedes soueul syl e _
§]S09 pue awoaul Aq sjoenuoo juesylubls jo uoyeoyyuapl sjejedas  — - sBuneaw pJeog jusnbaly
_ S1SB09.10) pUE MOy Ysed Buyjal 'sjunodoe asow BuiAey pue wajsAs abeg sy ojuo ejep [eioueul Jo uonelbiu
juawsabeuew Ajyjuow jo uoissiugns Buipnjou uojjeulIojul Jo ssauldBwWl  — se yons ‘Bugyiodal [ejoueuy anoidw) 0] padojansp USaq SABY SUOHIY e |
:Juncooe ojul Bunyey pieog ay) o} papodal Rem Jes|o Buipodas
S1 UORBULIDUI 90UBUY JBY] Insua 0} sassadold sdajs utjnd pjnoys pleogayl o eul pajuasaid 1o Ajowy uaaq jou sey Builodas (ejoueul ‘AjjeouoisiH e leoueuly |
[ Auagonpord | _
apm-Auedwod uo pieog ayj O} 3PEW USaq JoU dABY SHOARY o i
Jaquiawl pieog KIaAe Joj sajol suyag —
S9aYIWWOD
S]I pue pleog 8y} 0} pajuasaid AjJUBLIND UORBULIOJUI MSIASY  —
isepojou |
uaaq aney sassa001d pieog aacidwi 0} USXE} 8q 0} SUOIOY -abueyd
IaAlep o} payelp ueid Juswenoidw) a9jA9s e sey Auedwod ay] e |
Aem JuaIoLy3 aI0W B Ul SJOBIIUCD [ Ajjuanbaiy
Koy Jonyep pJeog ay) djay [im yoiym Juswanoidu) 1o} seale Apjuapl [|im siIyL “siseq | aJow pjay aq pjnoys Buneauw pieog jey} pasiubooas sey Auedwod Buipodals
apw Auedwo) e uo soujaw ANARONPoId UC UOREWLIOJUl BNISJI pINoYs pieog 3yl e ay] "siseq Apeuenb e uo pjay a1em QLA Ut sBugeaw pieog e pieog
SUONEPUAWIIOCIJUSWLIOD suonealasqo Alewiung i senssj

JUSUoIIAUS

|0JJUOD [BIOUBUIS

(penunuod) sINssT A9

Alewwns sAlNoax3y



Page 44

¥l

Bunesw yoes je preog ayj 0} apewl aq pjnoys ueid siy}

Jaquiaw pseog AIans 1o) sajol sulaq —

S9a|WIWOod
s} pue p1eog 2y} 0} pajuasald AJUSLIND UOELLIOM] MSIASY —
‘se pajou

SUOHEPUAWWIOIAJUBIRIOD

jsujeBe aosueuuopad jo Buipiodal siyj aASIYOR 0] “palsAljep ale ue|d Juawaaoidul| ueaq aAey sassasold pieog aaoidull o} uaye] aq 0} suoloy “abueyo ainypnns
S2IAISS Y} UIYM PSUIEJUOD SUOJJOE BU) jey) amnsua pjnoys Auedwo) sy e JoAljop 0} payelp ueld Juawanoidwi 891U9s B sey Auedwo) 3y e 9JUBUISA0D)
suogeasasqo Aiewung sonss| __

JUSLLILOJIAUS |04JU0D [BIOUBUIH

(panumuod) sansst A33]

Alewwins aAlnaaxg



Page 45

aouewopad Buipes) [eouoisiH

2 uonag

uojuIoY | JUeIS) o



Page 46

9l

[9POW [e1oueUi4 Sy} ul suojdwnsse Jaylo 0} Joedull Jj8y) JOpISU0D

pue asay} pajepdn 384 jou sey Juswabeuew "JOASMOH "JOBJIUOD PIEMOH

uyor jo uonessad pue Buibessaly 9sINN joLISIQ 10} SwodUl paseasoul “6e
S]oe1U09 Jaylo Ul ssbueyo Juadal ale aiay) Jey) puejsiapun osje apA “(ouew
Aaonpoid g) swi Anaioe Jo yjbus) pue sajel Jojoop ‘swnjon Ajanoe Burpnjour
pIq 9y} ul apew suondwnsse Ulepad pa)siasl Ajuadal sey Juswabeuepy

uoissiuigns piq sy Jo asodind ay) Joj apew suopdwnsse juawsbeuew
uo paseq paauap sem aysoddo 8|qe} ay) Ul pajussald Sjseaalo] € 0} | JBsA

JaPON |B12URULH 3y} O] ajepdn

(podas siy} Jo  uonoeg 2as) asealoap s|aad] AJAoe Ji Ajleloadse ‘spei;
Burobuo 1o} wooipeay jusioiyns apiroid Jou ABLU J0RNUOD U] ‘PBSHISUIS USYAA
€ JBa) Ul uoljiw ¢z 03 01 Buionpal '} JeaA ul uoljiw

£°03 Jo 1jo.d J8u aaaiyoe o} Hupsesslo) S| J0piwe) JORJUOD maU auj Japun
010Z 42G0J20 | WOy HE]S 0} S| JoBJUOD HOO Mau ay jey) uondwnsse

ay} uo jseoa10} [eueuy Auedwos) ay} pasapisuod sey juawabeuepy

JoB1UOYD

HOO Mau 3y} 0} uoljeldl Ul s Dd 8y} Yyim uojenobsu ul Ajuauind s sopiwed

19e1U0D) HOO MaN

uonesado 4o ¢ 0} | JeEaA ul yseo anoidwi pue woid
slelauab 0] Spaau )l YoIYM JoeIu0D HOO Mau auyj jo Buguelb uodn Juspuadap
s1 U19ouo2 Bulob sy pue jJuasaid je Juaajosul Ajjediuyoa) si Auedwo) ay |
juapioul
INS 1sed e o} asuodsal u) Ajjjenb [esjulp pue sadiaes 1ajjeq apiroid
0} JapJo Ul 9oueUaA0B feoluljo pue (sasinu ‘sisjpuey ([ed) Jiels [euolesado
‘aInjonSelu) || Ul JUSW]SOAU! JO JNS8) B SB SPEaYIan0 paxiy Jaybly -
AWNJOA APAIOR PISEAIOUI Ylim S]BINSUDUILIOD J0U
pIp yoiym uonendod juaped passysibal Jad ajel paonpai/jUe)suod e je }8s
sem 291d Jun se s] Dd ay} Aq Joesuo] HOQ SH 40 Buipuni-1apun jueoyiubls —
:0] anp 9q 0} asuewlopad Buipen asisApe ay} pajnquyle sey juswabeuey

Ajanjoadsal QL A4 PUE GOAL Ul 99EF PUB YE|8F O} pajunowe
Apuaosi 1sow ‘1eaA ay) 104 SasS0| 19U Bujpodal s) soplwes ‘G0A] 9oUIS

M3IAIBAQ

; SE2IN0g

1SRDA10] 12315 JOUR[RY @U) PEOMILI0S DIOMIIY] QAR AR (DLW SUl DULECS I [0 AU 4] 1E UMOURUN ST BIICD KOO
a3 AL 0] A} we ). REQ Buni@do gy yum [#nony 14 JEBA ¥ AUL PRIEDAN 10U $FY uAusbEIER | SEJON
00L 00L 0L 9'p01 6'88 (000,) (swea) Apoe eiog
%S %Ey %G %(pt) %(0°EL) ubrew ya 1183
%6'0§ %0°LS %0°LS %866 %0'92 ubsew sso/9
Sid)
602 892 (621) o (265) MOJ} USEO 13N
(08) (0€) (0g) (1) (09) anypuadxs [epden
6€2 262 (66) 1e (9v5) moj yseo BunessdQ
Moy ysed
2y B Bu [ SO¥ syjoud pauleiay
BN e BU 188 .58 Saoueeq ysed
e e B (s) See (sanpiqen)/siesse ualna jaN
e e B/ 14 V] Sjosse paxiy
Jo3ys azuejeg
661 S92 (3 (s9g) (e18) Woidyiseo)) 13N |
(5¢) {28 {ve) (82) (1) Xe} pue Iseiajul ‘vogenaidag
8€3 962 S8 (8ee) (962) vales
{999} {8ga) {0s9) (oz2) (€6 SPE3ANO D
(6292 (6258°2) (825'2) {6v9'2) (ev6'1) sobiem pue sauees
£65'e £E5'C €es'e 0£0'e 5p9'L Woud ssag
{sov'e) (sorg) {s6e'e} (epe's) (265'%) S[es §0 1500
8E6'9 £66'9 626'9 £19'2 19 auwodu) [0
1%d
522804 15203104 IsECal04 psypneun  psypny 0003
TeoA (ALY | Jeap 0JAd 60A4
L——{2BUa3 HOO MBN —> <=12e1U02 HOO piOo—>

s|eidueuly Arewwng

AITATIAO [EIDURBUL]

aouewlopad Buipely 1eoU0ISiH



Page 47

wsajqoid moy ysed ainjny pioae o} ybnous
Apsnqo. psbeuew Bulaq a1e saoueul 8y} JeY} 32USPYUOD aplAoid 0} Jo4 sey
Auedwon ay; ‘aoeid ur Ind ale JuswaleuBW [BIDUBUL JO S|9AD) Jojealb ISIIUM

s10d @y} woy Apisgns

uo uspuadap Auedwo) ayj Ya| sey BULIOJUOW [BIoUEUY JUSIOYNS JO 3OB| dYL e

03D snoiaaid sy Aq pajeLu}ss 1Sesalo)

|elouBuly UaAa)EaIq SjUasaidal 9jge] aA0qe BY) Ul LINJNO pajewlisa LA 9YL e
siseq Jejnbal e uo }ebpnq jsuiebe souewuopad s} Jopuow
J1 saop Jou ssaooud Bujyebpngq [enuue a)epapun jou ssop Auedwo) 3yl e

)X [Z) 0L-60 |BSOG01g 186pNng ‘uonzuL ol

MIIAJIBAQ

Jaabeucyy | S301N0g

%) %0'SS %V'LS aW0dU] 0 % Se $334 8101000
leel) £ 90l (000, (sre2) Ayagoe fe1o).
%(6't) %S0 %(vy) uifrew yQ1ig3
%(p'1) %8°0% %566 ubrew ssos9

599; (2UOISS30)d ‘Saa) [ED3| patoadxa ueyl Jaybly »
apeibdn pue juawdo[aA3p 3ySqam ‘SOUBLRUIBW WIISAS *3') 23nIpuadxa PRjejal-1t « — SidX
189/ oMl SNoIAaId ay) o) Buleal (494 | 3) SasIwaId o} sabiseuod adIAas pue 1uas jo Aed-yaeq . _SE t (998) wosd(ssol) 1aN
— (€) (se) (82) uoiiezaudag
2 62 (eee) vaue3
pPAUIRIQ0 SIOBALIOD MAU 133U 0] (SJO PalIe[ES 'SI|pueY (e ‘S8Sinu) JUN0apeay [BUOIIPPE « (z50) T iss2) I7IT) SPRAAD

0LA4 Wi ybrioay JesA wed pauiol oysm pea] S0UBWIAACE [BotUIjo PUE J01081] [BIIPAYY MAU JO WBYINIDES »
8 (eo1) sy
(2v0°2) (6v9'2) safem pue sauees
{uoddns [endsoy pue 4iH7) 6°9) aroge passnasIp Se SIBNHUOD M3U |0 UOISIALG » 809 [ 7444 080'c 1youd ssoun
19BAUOY HOQ OuL S0} BWNIOR = | ) (a1}) (zon) sI8Uj0

iAnoe Ui 8Sea10Ul [eJUsb PUB (YE0L3) NI dUIMS Wolj puewap Jaubiy 18aw ol $33) 1000p uo ainjipusdxa Jaybiy «
, : w - " ITE (821 (er) saddng eaipayy
= - leein (z92°€) (so9'%) s394 510100
60L3) — , s9|es J0Js0)
8l1U87) 8/8]) DIEMOH Uyl H,Em (302 13) rendsoy :9@1_:_55 ‘(42223) 1endsoH xasa|ppily YHON 1e EmEcﬁmn _ Jf: ¥ | SE6' €199 ewoau] [E101

J9V 1B S30INIBS g 0 uoisiaoid ‘(4897 3) 19B1IU0D JIHD 371 palewnisa Aisnoinaid 10U SWEsJ|S 3LOJU! MAU XYTZ L3 « (— - —
AUA9E UO Ny 9UMS |0 19edWI 3} SSBIPPE O} 3WO3U| Jj0-3U0 Yyl L3 » QUBLEA ewsy Enoy 0003
uonisad Apinbi) 20pILUEY 8AidwI 0} S [ D N0} Ay wou) Buipun) 8Wodul |0-8U0 00L3 - LAd bAd OLAd

UONELLIIS? SNSIIA [enjoe - douewsopad Buipesy QLA

uInyINo payewns? IsuteSe aouewroysad Surpen 0T XA

goueuwopad Buipesy _motoﬁ__.._



Page 48

el

sIajew |
jeuonesado pue aonas dopiutes) BuipieBas aiqnd |erauab woi) yoeqpaa) 4385 0) SUBA3 UOIEYNSUOD

€91 90 a3uejeq ysea pos|[euoN|

(vee) 6% S)uowysnIpe jususafieuew g0

I8¢ 16€ aduejeq ysed pajtoday

i aous|jeq ysey

10BIU0D HOO MBU 34} 40} PIQ J0PILIBY JO UOISSILIQNS pue ucgesedaid 8L 01 UONBJS) Ul PaLNdY| SIS0 F—

(z9s) (epi) VQLIg3 pasiieuLon|

(¥ez) [ | Suaulsnipe awabeuew o] |

{souijo pue uojeysiujupe) | | . ' v

_ $3)EI300 20PILES YOIYM Ul [ENGSOH SBIUR.d 1S T8 S3siuaid 3y} Joj ssuadxa jual jo juawked yoeg [ | (A SJUaAS UOBNSUOD
- jua1 o fed yoeg

- TIj} SUIMS O] aNp S}S02 [RUOHPDY

- anppuadx3

vopsod Aypinbij sh BurAcswl J0pILE?) 1SISSE O S| Dd Ay wos; Buipuny Jayun4 b——— . Buipuny swoau; [BuoIPPE |o-8UQ)

i Buipuny awoau! (o-3U0 Njf SUIMS

Bwo|

= (s62) vallga peuoday

SIB|puBRY ||E3 puR S83)
yauez

10170p JeuCIPP. J0 dn apew AjaBie| SBM YIIUM ¥t L3 3G Ol Ny SUIMS 0] PAJRIJCSSE JSOD 3U) paljuent
SEY J0PIWRY) ‘B}iSGaM DU Bulld|SH Njd [RUOIiEN BY) JO Lels SU 0} Joud 6002 Anrudy usamiag
Jwapida ny sums o} Buiejas Aaloe L sseaw dajs oy} SSAIPPE O} S1Dd duj woy uoddns awoou)

paupny 0003
60Ad

sjusiujsnipe uoijesijewiou payljuapi jJuswabeuepy

ysed pue s3uTuTed Jo Aeng)

aoueunopad Buipel) (ESLOISIH



18 DLOZAINM BL 1 UBPWED SHN | J7T7 N Woluwoy | eI 0102 &

e BL9°Z 0LAd U) 3wodu| [go)
B/ 01 YlesH [eluay uopuo 1583 YLON yoddns premoy uyop

g fouyoeH pue 19 SHN

u 0ov

pue Aabiuurely SHN ‘uoibul|s] SHN ‘Uepwed SHN Bujpuny feuolppe yo-suo

Jeaj1ano papinoid s| Ajaoe uo sishjeuy e fep - fiouoey pue A9 SHN
b pue AsBuired SHN ‘uoiBuls) SHN ‘uepwed SHN Nl uims 1o} Buipuny feuotippy
Aypinbi| 19B1}U03 Pasead B pue Buuindai-uoN
20p|WED JSISSE 0} SJUBAPE U] SISEq A[UJUOLU B UO Pasiel 3JoMm S32J0AU| U3aUm e T —T
fo)) 010z Aenuer un asueape u; siseq Apapenb e uo sadioaut Auedwio) sy e %o |8 g ePED SHN Jon00 10oA3 10
< 010z ¥des og Aq %20 sl yoolg uoibuls| SHN 19/09 Uosid HOO
() PUS ||IM JOBJUOD PSPUBIXS BY} ‘JUasald Jy "JORIUO HO0iq B UBY} JSYel puBwap %0 €2 yoo)g  KeBuueH SHN pue uoiBujs| SHN ‘USpWeD SHN abey) feluaq
(@] Auanoe Aq usAup 8q ||im YoIYMm JOBIU0D HOO Mau 3y} Jo} ssa20id Juswamnooid w0 | oe yooig uojbul|s| SHN Pue uapwed SHN UaKey ajeg

Dﬂuu 8y} Jo uoisnjouod Buipusd )sanbal s] Dd 9y} 1B papud)xe uaaq sey adjAIeg fouyge
HOO jo uoisiacid By} ‘JOASMOH "800Z YoieW LE 01 S00Z udy | woiy sieak %Ll st ¥oo|g  pue A1 SHN Pue ucibuys| SHN ‘USPWED SHN Buibessojy asInN UISIa
@31y} jo pouad e Busaaod oopiwe) o) papieme AjjeuiBlio SEM JOBJUOD YL e |4 02l Yool uoiBLIlS] SHN vodddns (eydsop uoIBuILA
SLWIN|OA >a_>_«om |enjoe ay} Jo %0'Y 082 Yoo|g fouyoeH pue AuJ SHN aied Jybiwano 9oNd
anlpadsall 0Ll A4 Ul uoljjil 843 JO SNUSASI |BJ0) B m:_uﬂ._m:mm ‘eale ay] ulyym %ly 182 yoolg [BUdSOR Xasajppiyy YuoN  Boddns (endso xasa|ppI YUON
uonejndod paiajsibal 1ad | £'GF JO 901d JUN pJepue]s B Uo paseq Sl 3wodu| e | %98 009 PugAH jussaid je sauebuns gg| aWoaul 80goeld
uswabue.Le JoORIJUOD HO0|q JOPUN PSJOBIJUOD S| SIS HOO JusLno ey e | %0H |89 1008 uapwe) SHN dIiHO
19e5)uod Bulunsal JayiQ

S10d 1820| JNn0j Yjm 32AI3S HOO

fowjoey pue Au) SHN
%589 | ¥8LY Jooig  pue AeBuyreq SHN "uoiBuisi SHN ‘uepweg SHN (Buysixs) 19e409 HOQ
juswabeuew YIm UOISSNISIp Uo paskeq 0| A 1o} umopyealq wosw 0003 adf SIBUOISSILWC) anjnag

SWOSUI PUB S}ORIU0D S,00pIWEY JO 1S1| 8y} sapiaoid aysoddo sjqe} ay| e ﬂa..\_. [poaul 0} A4 | joeNu09

MIIAIBNO sjoe1UO0D Aq sisAjeue awoou|
dWIOdUT

aouewliopad puipely |e210ISIH



Page 50

010Z 3unr Ul pajeulula) uaaq Ajjuadsal
sey AQUyIBH Ul 81)u37]) plemoH uyor o) 8siaas aleo Asewnd jo uoisinoid 8yl e
0L0Z 2UNf Ul }DRIUOD € JO UOIBSSID

jendsoH uolBumiy 1e Juswuedsp 3y Joj Hoddns do) sepiaold dopiue) e
10enuod Aay 18410

[endsop uouawoH je jsiuondasal

pue poddns 4o ybiusano sapiaald sopiwed alaym AsuxaeH pue Al1D
SHN yim joeuog HOO Bunsixa ayj 0) uohippe Ul 821AISS |[BUOHIPPE UB SISIY] o
a.ed ybruiano DONd

1eb.1e} 38V INOY-

[ejidsoy ay; Buileaw pue Ajianoe 38y 40 AuaAlep ul (e}dSOH Xasa]ppIN YHON 1e
Juswuedsp IV sy} Hoddns 0} S10J00p S0PIWED JO UOISIACId O} SAje[al SIY| e
Hoddns |eldsoH X3S$3IppIN YIHON

$J0Jo0p 2opiwen Aq papiaoid SOIUND [BUCHIPPE WOJ) SWOOUI [BUORIPPE

snid jJuswabuewe Bulpuey |(e2 1o} is) Juaned Jad soud pirepue)s e jo Aem

Aq swoou sajeiauab copjwes) ‘uasald Jy 'S1Dd 9y} AQ pauoISSILLUWIOS 831AI8S
HOO 2y} WoJj no pajdo jou aARY yoiym saiabins 4o woly awoou| ale 8sayj e

awodu| 821)0eld

juswabuelle 10e11U0D 320|q B Uo SieaA ¢ jo pouad
B 10} 6002 duUNnf" | Wol uspwe) SHN AQ POUOISSIWILWIOD SBM 9JIAI3S 3| e
usplIE) UI SJUSPISAI SSA[BWOY O} 3IIAISS dO) JO UoIsiAold O} saje|al Syl e
diHO
sjoeljuoo A3y 18410

ajwspida ny aums ay} o} Bupejes puewap [euoldeaxs Aq pasnes Ajulew
S| %€ €1 40 600Z Ul AJIANOR-19A0 Jsaybly ay | "Jeak Jod %E €L+ PUB %6 0+
woJj BuiBues Ajiaoe-1aa0 ypm uonejoadxa papaaoxs A(jessusb AyAioe [ejo] e
6002 PUB G002 uaamisq %S| | JO YDV € YIIM JUSWSJUSWIWIOD JOeluUod
8y} souls 1eaA-uo-1eak AJIAOR Ul asealoul ue psausuLsdxa sey Joplue) e
Jeak ayj jo Buuuibaq
ay] 1e sopiwen) Aq pajoadxa |9A3] ay} 0} uosiiedwos ) siesh 1epuajed
BAl} 1S€| 8Y] JAA0 19eNUCD HOO 2Y1 10} AJIAIIOE |B]O) 8} SMOYS SA0GE UBYD Y| e
(PanNuUNUO2) S19d [B20] JNOJ YIM 331A13S HOO

papadxg ENoY B
6002 8002 2002 9002 5002
i i ‘ > -

- 00002
- 0000y i
53
8
- 00009 =
<
%8G b~ ) 2|
wzL+ - 00008 &

e % Y+
«60+ L 000001
%EELT
2 ¢ - 000°02L

spuaJ) ANAnoe - 19e1u0d HOO

(ponunUod) JWOdU]

souewioped Suipes; [BOLOISIH



e

Hodai Sy} JO ¢ UORDDS Ul SSJel JOJO0p JO asealoul Jayun; Jo joedw
[eloueuy 8y} paJapIsuod aaey ap "0L0Z AINr | 0} 0L0Z 1990120 | W0} 8Sealdul
ay) pJemuoy Jybnouq sey pue spiys (i 03 Buyjim jou sio}oop Jo ysu ayj jsurebe

ajebiiw 0) S9jE) J0JO0P SSEBIOU] 0} paau ay) pasiubodsal sey juswabeuepy e

60A4 0} pasedwiod g} A4 W uibtew yyosd panciduwi ul pajnsal yoiym Jnoy

Jod S99 J0J00p Ul 3SE8II3P ||EIAA0 31} O} SAINqUIUCI SIY] "010Z Aew Ui ulebe

pue 500z Jo Buiuuibaq sy Je sio0}00p 0} pied sajes Ainoy ay) pasnpal sey
wswabeuew ‘Auedwon ay) Aq peousiadxa sainssaid [eloueuly 0] asuodsal u]

Biupiw Jaye syiys o} sajed Jsaybily auyp 03 J3S0JO SI YoiyM Jnoy
1ad 273 je pabesoae 01,02 YoIB 0} S1esk ¢ Isk| au) 1o} Jnoy Jad s} 10j00(Q] e

083 0.3 283 we Q"2 03 yBiupius wioy
— 0.3 093 043 yblupiw o} we QQ’ L Woy
[p] Aepung pue Aepinjes -
Q 6.3 0.3 93 we 008 0} JyBIupIL Woly
w 093 GG3 093 WwBiupiw o} wd ppZ woy
o :Buluans Aepuq o) Aepuopyy -~

0l02Z 0L0e oLoz
Anp woiq asunp-Aepy Aepy-aid
10102 U1 asaud je sopiwe) Aq ajqeAed ssje. J0J00p 8Y) 1B MOj3g e
1noy Jad sajel io}oo(Q

0l Ad Pue §0Ad Yjog ut ssjes Jo }S0D JO
%66 Buguasaidal ‘Auedwog ay} 1oj s}sod ajgeueA Jsabiie| ay) ale $93) S10j00Q  »

$934 sJoj00(Q

Inoy Jad sa8} Jojoop U} 3sea103p Jau e Aq uaaup Apueulwopaid OLAd U %9°9¢
01 60Ad Ul %8 9 woly uibiew ssoib paroidwl ue umoys sey Auedwo) ayl e

M3IAIBAND

ol

SIRBIILBR
{3} noy Jed seay Jojoop ebesary

1noy 13d gg'923 abeiany
00}

inoy 1ad seay J0320Q
EL'vid §2'623 {3) Inoy 230 s33} J0J0OP FEsANY
we'19 %569 BUI0OU| 0-3UO SBPNIOXA - AWIOUL JO % S $83) SI03I0(
RECA %569 paiodal SE - BUI0DU JO %, S S35} ,8i0}00(]
1.9'98 %8'92 3UI0DU] J§0-3UO SBPNJIXS - UIfIBW $301)
G B8 %8'92 payodas se - wbiew sseig)
Sid)
0g0's Spo'L woud ssor
(ev9'y) (280w SS[ES 4O 1507 20|
(82) (09} saliseyd J8wiay pue auoydaia
(€2 (s€) [9ARI] pUe SasLadxg JO10p
(seh) (oe1) saddng Eopan
(cor's) (992't) saa4 810120
sajes Jo §503
£29'L 2819 awoau| ol
ppneur paypny 0003

A 60Ad

sisfjeue }jjoid sso19

UISFeW SSOF0)

moﬂmELotma Buipe. |e3I01SIH



Page 52

ajqeyjo.d pue aaadwod Ajbuisealoul awoaaq o} sopiwe) moje

pinom a210p310M 10j0p SY1 10 AJlAonpold ay) asealoul o} Ajige Juswebeuey
siepinoid HOO Jaylo jo ajienb Jamoj auy) Je [9A3] Alaonpold dopiwed

Ind YyoIym uoijepuno aren Aewld ay} Ag jno paiueds Apnjs Buppewyouaq
Y} Ym aull ui st siy) "(siseq 1eak 1epus|eo) 00Z Ut 1noy Jojoop Jad sjeo g jo
abelaAe ue sey sopiwe) Jey) s}sabiins ejep ay) woy sisA|eue Jno ‘uoiIppe uj
0102 UdJe| Ul %gS 0} 8002 1Ay Ul %G Wwoy

juswaAcIdLI [|RISAC UB YlMm uole)nsuod juaned yum |esp o} Juads a1sm sinoy
pred ,s10300p 10 %/ jo abelaae ue ‘aysoddo pajuasaid sisAjeue ay) uo paseg
SHIYS HOO 8y viuim wiaped AJIAIJ0E UM 30UepIodoe

ul aw sJojoop sy sebeuew Auedwo] ay} [[am moy pue Ayaionposd

$10)00p JO Axoid e sjuasaidal JuswaINSEaW S1Y) 'Ejep Jayjo Jo aouasqe ay) u|

siseq Ajyiuow B uo 00z Yalep o} sieak g jsej jo pouad e Jo} UonEe)NSuUcI
juaped tonjap 0} Juads awiy S10}00P JO JudIXa ay) sasAjeue ajisoddo Heys ay
ApAnoe puewsp ay) jo Aiaajjep ui Ayanonpoid

10J00p JO |9A8| 3y} asAjeue Jo Jodal AjuaLng jou ssop Auedwod ay |

Aynonpold

(penunuo9) s934 si10100Q

OLAd
ZD | D209l T2 DS|IDI =IO Bl | >
=
£|2|5|8|2|2|8|5 5|2 |8 |E| 2|2 |2 2 |2|8|5 |5 |2 |2
. ———t osp
%OLS|. o00

+ %55

A

= %0

10BJU00 Jueped v,

sinoy pajedsojie 10)20p Jad uonensuos Juaned Jo 9,

(panunuod) UISFew $SOI0)

MQFME._.oth Buipely |eolio1sIH




Page 53

SIUN0DSE [UBWRREUEW L A- PUE SIUNADD2 PAPNE BOAL L (5301N05
SPEaYIan0 IBYl0 sabem pue sauejeg m
paypnEun paypny
0LAd B0Ad
0
05
004
QSt b
L o0z 8
28 052
00E

:MOJ2q HBYD 3y} Ul UMOYS SB 0L Ad
0} sieak oM} ISE| By} usamjaq pasealou] sey ainypuadxs Ajyjuow abersAe 3yl e
ainyipuadxa A|yjuow sbeiary

[endsoy seoued 1S je sasiwaid ay} 1o} sieak om} snoaid ayy Joj sabieyd
s0IAJ8s pue Jual Jo Juswded yoeq o} Buljejal s}so0 sesiwaid [BUOIIPPE JO JNSal
e se Ajulew QL Ad Ul 487723 O} 60Ad Ul ¥8ZGF WO PSSEAIOU] SPESYISAC [B]0L  »
SpEeE3YIaN0 134310
}i0m 1o 1o} ajqejieae Ajipeal Jou Ajualing si S3LAAUNCIpeESY Jo sisAleuy e
01 A4 Buunp pesj asueusaaob [edw0 pue Jojoallq [edIpajy mau  —
poddns jeydsoy ‘dIHD “6°8 S}0BJUO0D/SIDIAIDS MAU JO
uoisiacid pue Joeiuo) HOO 3y} 10j AJIAIOE Ul puewsp Buiseasoul yjoq
YA [BSp 0] S9SINU PUE SIS|pURY [[ED SB YONS S90IN0Sal JYe)ls [euoljippe  —

:Buimoljoy sy 0} anp Ajurews
S1 0L A4 Ul UOI||IW 9°Z3F 0} 60AS Ul UOIjjiwl '3 woyy sjsod Aed u| aseasoul 8yl e
0L A4 PUB 60Ad Ul einyipuadxa (10} JO %8/ 0 10} pajunoooe |joihed e
s)s09 Aed

Heb P %" O aulodu| |ejo) J0 &,
(28e'c) {are'e) 2inypuadys [E10)
(ers) (g2g) SPEalJIAD [E10L
(442) (o1) (gz3 mojaq Aifenprupul) SPEALBA0 JEYI0
(82) () afiteys vogeinaidag
(2e) (61) s99} [pucisssjoid pue feba
(2€) (ge) Buiuren pue asinon
& (6v) SJUBNS UOUENNSU0D
{ge) {s5) foueynsuoo [ewajxa aned pue ygng
(p¥) (92) Buisnianpy
(ss1) (zst) anypuadxa paje(ai 11
(56) (81 safireyo ainisg
{zot) - uay
SPEALIIAD
(6¥a'z) (ev6'1) sobem pue SOLE[es |2jo)
(£2) (s2) sjuaWNjoW] SiopaIg
(z20'2) (£26'L) [E1010nS|
(1) ajge[ieAR JON JBISISSY AJBOYIBH
(vg1) a|qe(ieAe JON BuisnN
(0£2) 3|qe|iBAE JON sisiwondaosy
(062) J|qe(ere JON s1anuQ
(681) 3|qe|ieA. 10N preog
(az1) 3|qE|ene 0N siosiaadng
(e92) d|qe|iene JoN awoabeuely
(979) 3|qe|feAR JON sJojpueH (B9
(ovE) ajqe(lene 10N aMJRASIUIWPY
(e9g) SIqe|RAE JON safiem pue sauees
safiem pue sajejes
paypneun paypny 0003
JPE] 60Ad

KAewwns ainypuadx3]

smyrpuadxy

gouewopad Buipen [B2LC1SIH



Page 54

WRUIOIALS [0IUO0D fBIE

Tmay @ | 83 0 wondsinyy

199YS 80UB[eq pue MOJ} YSeo [eoLO}SIH
€ UOJI93S

LOJUIOY | JUeIS) °



Page 55

pred usaq
Jou |ins ey Sy Y0293 Sem 0102 Y21e L€ je se Ajiqe| uoisuad SI0j00p [BjoL e
0LAd Ui [ended Bunjpom se ()00gF 2) Auedwo) ays AqQ pamo
Appqer) uoisuad Jojoop ul aseaoul 2y Buisn Auedwo? ay) 0} anp Ajebie| sisiyl e
jendeo Bupyiom woly pasesjal yseo o} anp sasso| Bugeiado
10 ayds Ui papi02al SeM Y} €3 J0 Moy} yseo Buyesado aAnisod jeuibiew v e
OLAd
(valig3) 1ens) buijesado ay) je sasso|
Buipiooas Auedwon ayy Aq pasnes Ajuiew st YZgGF JO Moy ysed aajebau ayl e
60Ad
sajep }193ys
aouBjEq OM] ISE] 8U]) 1B SB YGET JSA0 JO 9oueleq Ysed e pey Auedwiod ayl e
Asejuawiwo)

SJUNOD9E 8y} WOJ} S|qE|IPAR UOIEULIOI| U0 paseq

paAuap Aueduwo) sy} Jo Alewuns Mol ysed oy} smoys a)soddo ajqer oyl
Juswsajels

MO)j YSED B UJEJU02 JoU pIp Sjunoooe Juswsabeuew pue paypne sAuedwo) 8yl e

uonjesedeud jo siseg

158

0ue[eq ysed bujsoly

056
(268)

aouereq yses Buwadg
MO} ySES 13N

(09)
(6
vz
(9ps)

anppuadxa fepde)|
Xe|

EM L TREEIE )|

moy) ysea Bunesadg

(8ee)

avl
01
@

SI0pp0

si0jg8q

yooig

usweAow jepdes Guiom
vaua3s

LA

p3ipny
60Ad

0003

Mo} yses Arewwing

MITATIAO MO[J YSED)

189S 20UB|EQ pUE MO|} YSED {ED1I0ISIH



Page 56

9% 0102 NP &L | USPWED SH | dT1 ¥ UYL WEID DL0E &

SIIALIAIEIS NUEBR L SBJINDS

JNoJ%e Jueq n:IU pue Junoase u_mnnmu IUNCA2€ WWaND WEW BL) 7 1 SIUNGCISE jUBq §31Y; Ui S8ouUR|eq USED 1B19) mucmmw‘umg 3ADQE ﬁmr,u WIF JON
EEBERB3228 222 8BRS R e B8REBRBITS e
ESE55ScESfFE555dedddeddddgdggssErgysrEEEaEEas
2232333333233 2cs2233cccsss233c323333323333s0253
[ (05§30 yuow yoea jo Aep Bupjiom ise) ay} ue Aeoidhy s jjouked +OE - 002
ozy
952 - 009
-oop 22
S
— 96 - 000}
r
590t -
sl ——a——— + 00b'}
LAUOL 3L} 40 YIB| U0 S39 210}00p ALguows jo E&WT ;
2891 _ - 009'}
(19113) uspwes) SHN 01 JuswAed jual pue [HGEZ'03)
Arernigad jo yig) U0 S99} S10}00p $398) 510100p A=d 0} pasn Ajuanbasgns sem 1diadas yses ay |
10 JuawAed o} sajeja aseIIap Yses juanbasgns sy ‘J9BAUCD Alenuep J0 Uig | PUB Yip] U0 SSYOUBL Z Ul PaNIR0al SBm sasodind
HOO 84} Jo5 uoiuu |3 Buyeia) 1 04 8y woy 1dia0as Apsyent _ Aypinbi) Jo} s 19 34 woj Bujpun oI fEUCHPPE Y003 |

0102 Yy2iely - Auenuep woly sisA[eue Ysed yjuoil esjuj

(PanUNU0D) MITAFIAO MOTJ YSEB))

193YUS 30UB(EQ PUE MO} YSED |EJLIOISIH



Page 57

e 010¢ AP 9% | USPUWRD SHN | dT1 YN LoiUIoL | 1085 0107 &

S (L20S0 SPABMUO (L AN SIENIOY 2~ 44D 22.N0g —g % ‘ o ~ P oUE|Eq 4se m.._mm_xu
B3 191 g21) £l 98I 825 aduefeq yseo fuuadg
_ YEL3 O B0UBJE] YSED 1S3MC} Ym OLOZ 1SNBNY J0 pus oy} I pajoadxa St WoDIPEay YSEd 1S3MO] 3y} "M. Mmap“ ...”Hy WH““ “Mham MMM- Moy uses BN
#89 sjuawhed oy
0] ] ) 1 (Y] €] 3)Sqam pue seLafew Buiaxie
s10j00p 3y Aq uonnguuod Aewunjoa pue Auedwod auy Ag uopnquitad uaisuad ¢p|. 40 dn apew st uaisuad $10}00p ,

yruop "yiuow Jad %093 o} Buunowe Kypaen; Buisixs o juswafas PUe 1093 Jo 0L02 A 104 uoynguuos uoisuad @) (e) ) = @ () Bugunozay euolssajoid eba
sasuduioo pog Bny ui 10z, 3 J0 wewfed ay | StEaLe u| $10}20p 10} UOGNQUILG3 LoisUad Aed o1 sadxe Auedwog auL (1) (8} ) (8] W | W sBugaapy pueog
. (@ @ @ @ @ (@ IUBUAJIIBW SiEQ
_ 0102 NP | WO} 1933 M SaJes J0J0p Ut 3588:0U1 JO JordW] 8Y) 182340} MO USED Ut V) PapN|oL Sey juatsabeuely nw MM © MMW MM MMW sayddng 240
: (@ @ @) @ @ (@ suoyduosqns pue saa) diysiaquaiy
_ (sreause Ul Ajyuow) OBU0D Mau ay Japun Buiig pL0g J9qo1a0 o) Bugerat 1da0al used §LSy3 | I . . . = o) AN
| (saueape ul Ajuow) Jo.Ju02 pjo sy Japun Bulpq 0102 1deS o) bunejal 1djs08) ysed Ngop3 = (2) @ @ @ @ @ areyom pue Buuen IS

| Bumoyo) ayy 1 u
[ 10 dn apew 13,683 40 MOLM! USED YBIH *DL0Z 1GOII0 | LY SOUSLILIOD 14 I9BLUCD HOO Mau AU 1B PawLINSSE si jj | =~ (se) A. - (s2) ve) Wwauidojanag/uoddng 11
| = . 8) . - - sasuaon 4|
5 . (05) - - . jusuidinba 1
spJemuo 010g 1snBiny woy yjuous 1ad 4093 J0 w ) W ) v | @ (jany) 51500 [onex; pue avoydar]
Junowe ue Aq siojoop 1o} Aujqey uoisuad Bunsixe ey jo juswAedsi }seoaI0} — : ) ) @1 € | © safiieyp a0|ag § JuaY SaSIALg
seoue|eq [ejides Buryiom jo Buipuimun Buipnjour (24 (@n (en (21 {21 (@1 sa)iddng [eapai
010z 8unr 0g 0} 0L0Z Y2IBW L€ wouy pouad ayj 10} 8)yoid moj) ysed (s2) (se) (se) (s2) (s2) (se) uoisuad yRIg
pue asueuuopad Buipes) sAuedwod ay) ui sabueyd |eusjew ou ele alay} — (o) (02) (on) (7)) 02 | fon) 3Avd
0 ort) oyl ) sofiem pue saueEs
0102 AInF | e se %8253 Jo uomsod yseo Buiuado ue pey Auedwop ay ~ Mc“”w MNHW MQN: Mcw_w jﬁmﬂf‘m@l UOHNGUIUOD co_m_“_v“m S101500
0L0Z 120 | U0 Jejs o} pawnsse s| JoeNuod HOO [ [foz2) (os2) (022} (0z2) (0£2) (ez2) s34 $401900
Mmau ay] 010z 1das OE 0} dn papusixa si JoeAUod HOO PIO Bupsixa ayy ey — SMOJINO Yse)
:suondwinsse Buimoj|oy 625 6.5 586 bes YES 8¢ sdjadal fejoL
aly) uo paseq judwsbeuew Aq pasedaud s| aysoddo jseoaio) mojj yseoayl e |V v v vt v vl 13410
aysoddo papiaoid jsedsaloy Nw Mw M” Nw ”M NM auioadl B_HM
Moy yses Ajyjuow ay o} siy} Jo joedw| ay) Japisuod o} 3jqeun a10js18y} i & = i i . R DT HGE
ale apA "0L0Z Y2IeW L€ 1B uoiisod pua Jeah sy} woly 0L 0Z Sunr OF 1e Se j93ys i x p B - i RGO B - ELLOD HOO
aoue|eq ay) abpuq 0} Juaws)e)s moj; ysed e pasedaid jou sey juswabeuepyy e e
010z aunf Qg e se saouejeq Ysed |enjoe ayl wol 0}0g 28Q LE 04 Iseasloj  isedaoy  sedalcd  Isedalod  jsedalod 0003

O} MOy} yseD Ajyjuow Jo jseoalo) Juswabeurw sssuewiuns aysoddo ajge} ayL e ﬂ_.uaa 0l-AON 01990 oi-des  obny  omnr

Aigyusuwo) 0L0Z J2quiadaQ 0} AN WoJj 1Sesa10) Moy} yses Atewwing

0102 39qUuad9(] O3 UFNINO 1SEIIF0F MO[J Ysed A[PUOIA]

199Us aoue|eq pue moj} YSed [ealolsiH




Page 58

-4

$10}00p AQ UoINQUIUOD

uoisuad A1ejun|oa ay} apn|aul jou pip Aljiqel| ucisuad Bujpue)sino ay) jeu}
pasiape sey juawabeue (N0LEF :600Z UOIEN LE) 0LOZ YDIEWN LE Je Se Y0.93F
Buy|e)o} (se9) J0jo0p JO dO} UO UORNGLIUCD %y} "a'l) Sopiwe) AQ uoiNQIUoD
uoisuad ,sJojo0p o} Buigejal Aypqey Buipuejsino ybiy e sey Auedwod ay |
Aobuney

ui 81jUL9 yyjeay pal-do Jo sauped-jutof ayj st yaiym pajii aieoyjieaH
sjaine] AQ pamo Junowe X063 Sapnjoul 010 YoIeW LE 1€ Se S10jgep Jaylo
(mojaq pauie|dxa Jayuny) Aljiqel| uoisuad Jojoop

ay} Buifed jou Auedwio?) ayj ul ps}nsal Lyojym sI0}oe) 8y} JO auo S| 30UE|eq
Joyqap Buipue)sino Buoj jey) pajejs sey juswabeueyy ‘syjuow ¢ ueyy 1o}

alow pamo ale (%€G) siojqap apel} jo uojpodold ybiy e ‘0LoZ UdIen LE Je sy

exndes Bunjiopy

12€£3 Aq sanljiqel] |ejo} uey) ss3|

aJe S)aSSe |B)0} ) Se JuaAjosut Ajjeoiuyas) si Auedwa) syl ‘0L0Z Al LE 1e sy
$S0] Jeak JUaLIND S JO %] | Sjussasdal youm 36¢3 Jo syyoud

pauiejas Uim 0102 YoIBW LE 1B Se SaAIasal Jo [aAs] mo| e pey Auedwo) ay |

8°0¢ 8 sAep Joypalo apel|

£€3ce oy sAep 101q9p spel|,

Sld)

68 L1104 Spuny S1ap[oyaseys
(99€) (€18) Teak ay] 10} 550] 1N

S0p 8’} 8ouejeq Buuado - spjoud pauiejay

: - [eyde areys
SaAIasaY 7§ fende)

6€ Sov S]9SSE JaN

|(s) See (saniiiqeji)/siasse Jualuna 1aN
(282'1) (094) Sal)|iqe]| JuaLnd [ej0)

(s) (g) XE] voqRiodion)

(0a) (2¢) aW0DU) P3Liajep PUE SENIAYY

(o1) . SIOYPAID SO

(66) {er) 51500 AJUN2as [BI00S PUB SAXE] SAYID

o |los) (o5) Aunqen uoisuad s10100Q
(26¢) (S0€) IOPaID apesL
saniige) waunj

o 282’1 $60'L S}95SE JUaLIND (10}
18¢ /SE PUBY U| pUE jLEq JE YSE)

21 [t 300Ul paruooe pue sjuswAedald

611 L $10}gep JaylQ,

69 089 s10]qap apel|

- 62 62 %9018
S]aSSE JUALIND

144 75 5]95Se pax|} [B10L

48 0z Juswdinb3 aoyQ

0e 15 juawdinb3 Jandwon

d S)1asse paxiy
ﬂm%:m:: payipny 0003

° L-en-1e 60-IBi-1E

M3IAIRAQ

193ys aouejeq Arewwing

MITATIAO 193YS IDUE[eY

198Ys 9oue|Rq pUB MOY YSED [BOLIOISIH



Page 59

90A4 0} Juanbasqns SpEW SEM SISQUISW S 0} UORNGLISIP JSYUN} ON o

2002 Yaiey
L€ 18 Se uoljiw g°|3 0} Siyoid paulejal s} asealoul o} pabeuews pue 9OAA
Ul SJequISUl S} 0] SAISSa] JO UoNNQUISIP UoIjjiw Z 03 e spew Auedwo) ayl e

PaoUBILLIOD JOBJLOD 6¢ 500 [T 685'L Sve'l [0 aauefeq buiso})
HOO 1ua1no 3y} uaym GO0z Iidy | 1e se spyold paulejal JZ| 3 pey J0piwed e |- - - : z02) - Sisquiall of logi=ia
Auedwon ay {99e) (1) (128) e (A9} 102 Jeak oy} Joj (ssof)/oid 13y
Aq opew Sass0| 0} aNP Sem oA 30UIS SIeaA Y] JOAO SOAISSAI JO UCISOID 8Y] o L4 BRIz il Sl 4 ie uuﬁ_”n S
siyoud pauieay
$9s50| }au 0L Ad SH Jo %1 | 0} Bugenbs “eg3 Jo syoud N pawny Py—

paipny paypny pappny 0003

paulejal Yim SaAIasal JO [9A3] mo| e sey Auedwod 3y} 0102 YoIeiN LEIBSY e “w&_fm GOTA-IE  BO-ENE  [BNE  S0EN-IE  SOHIEILS
Aiejuswwo) SAAIaSAI UJ JUSWBAOWY

SIAFISIF UT JUIWIIAOTA]

198ys mocm_m.n pue Mojl YSED |BJUOISIH



Page 60

TU3WILQLALS [OALO [BRUEYL §
165YS GUB[RG PUE MOJ) YSBI RILOISH B
soueuvoped Buipel jeoucistH i

Luwns oajinoaxg yY

g Jea\ 0} | Jea A Joj suoiosold

b o938

UOjUIOY | JURIS) o



Page 61

1€

uojjoas
siy Jo ped 1oje] SMOj|0} 1By} Sajqel Ul papiaoad ale sBuipuy Arewwns Jno

(senuiw ur painseaw) adAj Ajiagoe jo yibus)

1noy Jad ssjel Jojoop
JuawAed aauadu)

awnjoa Ajagoe

:a1e suondwnsse asay| "Mojj Yseo pue

Aupqeold ocopiwen) 0} aARISUSS Jsow ale yaIym suondwnsse Ajijuapl o} pajsa}
$S81)S puB [apoW [BISUBUY Y} Ulylim suoljdwnsse syj palepisuod aAeY I

Kejuswiwo)

18poy je1oueun4 ay ul suojdwinsse Jayjo o} joedw Jjay} J8pisucd

pue asay} pajepdn o4 jou sey juswabeuew ‘J9ASMOH JOBJJUOD pIEMOH

uyor Jo uoiesseo pue Buibessapy asinN JoMsIg Joj awodu| peseatoul "B
S)oBNUOD 18Y10 Ul sabueyo Jusdal aie a18y) ey} puejsiapun os|e app “(ousw
Auanonpoud e) s Ayanoe jo yibus| pue sajel Jojoop ‘swnjoA AjlAloe Buipnjoul
PIq 3y} ul spew suojdwnsse ulep9d pajisiaal Ajusoal sey Juswabeuey
sasodind piq 8y} 1o} dsopiwes) Aq pasn

19POJy |BIOUBUIY JBSA-E BY) UO Paseq JoBUCD HOO MauU auy) Jepun Bunesado jo
1eah pay} 0} 3S114 8Y) JO} Tgd 1SB2910} Ss,Auedwo) ay) smoys eysoddo sjqe} ay |,

MIIAIRAQ

1SED2104 1R3A-E Ay} |
1310 Jyoid 1au pue uififew yq1ig3 o uoisose
| unynsal fabre) yoim Jjo1fed uo Jeak-uo-reak
asealou Aed vz © pawnsse sey juawsbeuey

wnuve 12d 9% 0 UoEKY! |

[uIfitew B 0} snp 918 S35E8.0U) Jea-uo-1eak
54 15e9210) [29A-3814) 3Y) O Yoea uj wntue sad |
000'0Z 10 3WwnjaA AJAITE (B10] PAWINSSE UO PaseY _

%8Gk %8Gk %8Gy | awooul o9, SE S8a},sI0j00(

00L 00z 0oL i (00D, (sijed) Annyoe fejoL
%b'E %EY | %hg ubrew yaL1g3
%#6"0S %0 1S | %0715 uibiew ssoin)

m Sid)

. |66t 9z | [ 140id JoN
(6€) (ce) ((Z4] uoeinaidaq

(174 962 goe vaug3

(6L5) (e28) | (-] SpEsyIang

feg) leg) Juay

(s292) (625'2) (8es'2) safiem pue sauees
£E5°E £65'C £IS'E yjoud ssoin|

(18) (69) (88) sIBYI0

(zg1) (sel) (e sayddng (eaipaiy

o |(1e) {2£1'e) (221'e) 834 ,810190Q
S9JES J0 1509

8£6'9 £€6'9 626'0 awosuj jgjo )

082 082 08L sjoRNU0d JAUIQ

008 009 009 | alWooul axjreld

892 B89L 8aL | dIHO

00 oo 0o _ 3LI0DUI BATURY

_. 06'Y o8e'Y 18E'% _l JOBLU0O HOO)

e awoau|
0003|

4 15892404 1522004
Tea) [N | JeaA
° 0RO HOO MaN >

19B1JUO3 HOO MBU Japun ¢ Jeaj O} | Jea ) 10} 18d JSe2a104

€ T8dX 0} T FBIX JOJ 2R 1582230

¢ Jeaj 0] | lesA 1oy suoioalold



Page 62

Aynqey suoisuad

Buipuejsino 1oy JuawAed apnjoul Jou saop ajisoddo jSEDa10) MO|} YSBO 3Y] e
juswAed pue uod3||0d yseo jo uondwnsse

ay) 0} anp Y6213 10 [|BJHOYS YSED B aouaiadxa o} sjoadxa sopjwe) ‘| JBIA U] e

10e4U0D HOO

Mmau ay) woly uopessusb mojy yses sjuasaidal }Seaslo) 8y} SoUsH "UMOoUNUN
Sem J9eAU0T HOO 3Y) 0 Juawasuawiwod ay) jo Buiwi ay) se (sanige)

pue sjasse) saosuejeq Hutuado Jo uoeISpISUOS SPN|oU] JOU pIp S}SEOAI0}aY| e

sopiwe) AQ pasn [spow
[BI1OURUY JRBA-E 8L} UO pPaskeq Joenuod HOO Mau ayl Jepun Bugelsado jo 1eak
P21y} O} 1sJi} 8Y] JO) MO} Ysea |seaalo} sAuedwao)) ay) smoys ajisoddo a|gejay] e

Aejuswwon

| 602 892 | () Moy ysed jan|
|(g22'9) {599') (632'9) Siuewhed (@01
(5] (oe) (0e) anppuadxa ende)
(69) (69) (69) Rouabiupuog
{s¥) (sp) (1) saupung
(o) (o1) {o1) 1U3A3 UBRYNSUCY)
{og) {0g) (s2) 3J/Sqam pue S[ELBJEW m..__ﬁx.@:r
(og) {0g) (32) sBunsey pueog
(62 (62) (92) S0UBUAIB SIED
{og) (0e) (52) sayddng 390
(0s) (0s) (ov) 20UBRINSY)|
{s) () (s suoduosqns pue ssa) disiaquialy
(gz) (23] (ce) wawnnisay
(z9) (o) (1¥) areyam pue uren g
(e (L¥) (or) S3suaaIT 11
(994) (c91) (0a1) wowdinba
(18) (68) (08) (18my) s1500 [} pUE BUOYCSR]
{28) (s8) v8) sabiey) a0IAISS P JUSY SaSiWalY
(181) (ve1) (v21) sayddns eaipapy
(e22) (202) (£9) JAVd
(s06'1) (1281 (ze8')) sabem pue ssuees
(L21'e) (2218) {8e6'2) s34 s1000Q
smopIne ysey
BEE'9 £€6'9 opL's sydiasal [ejo)
082 08L (1] ByIo
009 009 S0S awWwodu| agloeld
89z 892 89z dHD
0oy 00y ovz 3LI00U) BARUSDY|
06€'Y G8e'y 810'y 1eue) HOO
SMOJJu] YseD
SEDAI04 1SE02104 J5€32104 0003
s 2leo) } JB3)

ORIU0D HOO MON——>

JOBIUOD HOO M3U Japun ¢ JeaA O} | Jeaj 10} MOj} |Sed JSe2ai04

¢ Jeo X O] T Jea X FOJ MO[J YSed ISeI3I0]

£ JB3A 0] | 1834 10} suoloaiold



Page 63

BY'EEL 005'S MOj3g |
akpLl 105G eAogy|
_ SUSIA SWOH _
_ 68 000'2 Mojeg _
[ el 100'52 3A0gY
‘ ) |
_ sLay 000°23 ;%J _
6692 000'62-100'L Usamiag
. ce'6e 10062 anoqy| |
adf} Ananoe 10j uae) swp pue , =4t |
Aixa|dwod ay} o Jualssasse jusuabeuew _ ) eoud wun m [
spooyel sopiwed Aqles adud pun ayj e s|qeoidde JoN e | 30ud piq 20piwe) uo paseqg e Ayanoe sad aosud jun _ LTI
— = — —
| 1edA jo pua 8y je 42013 "
_ Aq souejeq ysed eseensp — [ 7
_ 8002 Ul [enjoe uey Jaybly | o
1|9 JO Oljes pawnsse ayj ajou LA 7
| sl G»w& ouKo 40 o %2113 Aq Juoid Jou asealoap — _
oM ‘JSASMOH "SpuaJ) |ESUOISIY UOC paseq 7 | 7
s Aynrjoe Jo sedA} pawnsse sjuswabeuepy e M SWN|OA (%eh) [
sanuso Ayagoe Ul 8SBAUOAP %SV 629’} SUsiA dwoH  — _ n
yjeay paj O PuUe saluad-ul-jjem 'sinoy | Jea, Jo pue 3y} je J00EF (%eP) gp8'2€ WD - . B
popusIe do punole saagenul Bumojoy | A0 30UBIEq Used SsEaioul — (%b) SO¥'6E Buoud — (%t )io0i6 A S iof _
aonpal |1 AJALOE |[RISA0 jey; uojdwnsse aseo aseq ey} | 40 _ (%9v) 000°2E DWIID  —
U0 paseq S| SWNjOA AJAROE JBMOT e _ wouy m_.\_ﬂ__nsoumw._ ‘| JBBA Ul _ dn apew ‘0gg‘gg sem (N|y (%LY) 000'62 :8uoud — | _
yses pue %22€3 Aq jyoid jou asealoul — aums Jo joedul ou yum 189k go dn |
| Angewosd o} uopdwinsse aaqisuas Alybiy :[Ilm SWIN|OA juaoal aly) Jeak sepusjed opetu si uoIssIwgns piq ay) 1ad |
e S| BWnjoA AjAgoe Jey) 1sabbns synsal ayl e AJAioe Ul BSBAIOUI %0L Y 8002 Ul ApAoe 8101, * 000°0Z 4O BWN|OA AYAIOR [BJO] o | awmnjon AyAlloy e
jdenuad HOO
Wawuwiod J5 AJARISUAS JO JUS)XT | P03 YIrY S 1E3A Snoindud | JeaA 10} suondwnssy ealy _

3LI00UI - Suolldwnsse Aoy

suondwmsse A53]

£ 1eaA O | hMo> 1o} suogdalold




Page 64

| yseo pue Ayuqenoid o} oeduu
jewiBlew e ui Jnsal o} pojoadxa wnuue Jad 00083
S| SUWIOOU] Ul ISEAIO3P %OL Y o JoAown} 0LAd yumaujul e | o) Bujenba ‘Yow tad 000'S93 . SWooul JIBYIO e

yseo pue Ajijiqeyjoid o} joedwl
|euiBrew e ul ynsai o} pajoadxa wnuue Jad goo‘0093
S1 SWODUI Ul 3SBAID0P %0L Y o Jaaown) QLA Wimauup e | 0} Bugenba ‘yuow 1ad 000'0S3 e BWOoDU| 82N0Bld e
! |

yseo pue Aqejuod o} oedus ,_

|euibiew e uj ynsal o} pajoadxo wnuue 1ad 000’8923 |
S 9WOOUI Ul 9SB3I39P %0L V | Jonouin) gLA4 yumaunu] e | o1 Bugenba ‘yuow 1ad QOO'YOF e diHD =
_ | S}0B13U02 JBYIQ
| joeRUOD HOO Mau sy Joj suus) JusuNo aly |
| yum 2ouepioaae uj sjabue) soueuuopad 3y}
188U 0] Sjie} J0piWeD) JUBAd Y] U} S10d 34} _ !
Aq pesodwi Buiaq wnuue 1ad »gpz3 03 dn jJo I
| Ajjeusd jo ysu e si aiay) jeiy Juswabeuew _
WO} puUBSIBpUN 8Mm ‘Uolippe U] e | m
7 soueldwos-uou Jo JUaAd | IESA O pus 8y} je %9eZ3 _ _
| sy} ui suonoe Bugebyiw Buiye} Japisuod pue Aq souejeq ysea aonpas - m
juewAed aAnuadul Joj BHAID 3y Bunsaw | 1 Jea) U1 49683 Aq jyold _
10 pooy]|ayjl] 84} SSOSSE P|NOYS J0pILE) e | 10u Buionpai Aq uosod |
yseopue | SSO| OJul 0PILIED 8E} — 19BAU0D HOO _
Ajpgejyosd oopiwes) o) |eajud pue aAl|suUss | Hnm Bunsixa ay) Japun JuswAed
Alyby si juswAed aajuadul pewnsseay| e | JuswAed SAUSILI JO [BAOWDY e SAIJUBOU] OU B1aM DIBY] e wnuue Jad awodu| 000‘00vF e | uawAed amjusdy| e
_ 19223U03 HOO
WauIwWo9 9 Auapisuas JoJuaixgy | piooas yord) s eak snojasig _ | deaj 10} suodwinssy ealy

(panuiuod) swoau - suondwinsse Aay

(penunuoo) suondumsse A33]




Page 65

s

soueLeA asIaApe Aue ssaippe o} sueld
uopoe yim sayjabo] papodal pue pasojuow
Apenbal aq pinoys siojeaipul AjAyonpold
panoidwi aq ued Aaponpoid alaym seale
Amuapi o1 f1anonpold S) 40 JUSLISSIsSe
pajlelap ayeuspun pjnoys yuswabeuep
uolpsod ysea pue Aljqeyord

S0piUES O} |EO[LID pue aanisuas Alybiy

s1 AAnoe Jad awn jey 1sebbns synsal ayl

| JB3A JO pua
ay) je Npyee3F Aq yseo 9onpas  —
| JeaA uly6zZy3 Aqauoid
jau Buonpai Aq uonisod
SSO} OJul JOPILED aYe} —
| Ajiagoe

| 1ad awm uy ssealou; seNuUIW G v

| SJISIA awoy
_ PUE SUOHE}NSLOD S9E}
-0}-aoe} Bupjepspun si0j00p
Aq uaye] aw} sapnjoul J se
Jojeledwoa ay|j-10}-a| € aq
0] Jou Ejep Buiysewyousq
oy} suapisuod Juawabeuepy
Inoy Jad sjjea z jo sbelane
ue e Bugesado sem
Auedwon ay) ‘uoljepunod
aien Aewnd ayy Aq Apnis
Buppewyousq ay) pue 6002
10} ejep AJlAlI0E uo paseg
Inoy Jad s|jea

g Bujwnsse si Auedwo)

ay; 1sabbns ||jeo 1ad

. sanuIul Q] pawNsse ay|

(e
sanuiw g1 Buipnjoul) IsIA awoy

(neo senuiw g} Buipnjout)
USiA 21Ulo Jad sanuiw GZ SJUlD e

|es Jad sajnuiw Q) BUoyd e

Jad SaJNUIW (9 SHSIA BWOH o |

(senuiw
ui painseaw) adAy
Aunjoe Jo yibua e

uonsod Appinby| pue

Angqenord sAuedwog ay) o) uogesidul
B} Ssesse pue sajel Jojoop ul sabueys
aimny Aue japouwl pinoys Juswabeuepy

yseo pue Aynqelyoud o} anmsuss AjyBiy
aJe sajes 10j00p jewp }sabbns synsal eyy

| JBBA JO pUd

ayl 1e 4263 Aq yseo aonpas -
9%0€ 10 | JeaA

urjyosd Jou JOOLF doNpaL  —

‘m

sajel 10jo0p utr aseaJloul .X.m v

oopiwed
Aq uoynguiuod uojsuad %l
i 1O @AISN[oul ale sajel 3y

(op0Z AINr | WoJy aseasoul
1uaoal ay) 210420) 0102
aunp- Aepy ui ajqedldde

sajel J0}o0p 3y Yim aul|

. 7 u| 8Je S9)e) pawWNsse ey

_ 08'6.23 sinoy 0020 O} WHluplw o
| 0t'993 :ybiupiw o} sinoy 000 e
A SPUa9aA

08'6/3 :sunoy gpg0 o) WbluplW  «

027293 Wblupiw 0} s1n0Y 0061 * |

_ shepyeam

Jnoy
Jad sajel 10300

[ Juswwoa 19

Auapsuas jo Jualxg

p4023J yoey} sJeak snoinald

| 4e9A J0j suonduinssy

L J
s99} ,s10)00(
v

S5[es J0 1500 - suondwnsse Aay]

(panupnuod) suondumsse 493

£ JEaA 0} | 183 JO} suolosfold



Page 66

yseo pue Woud ui uogonpal jJusjeanba ue
Ul JinsaJ A|pe0.q {[IM }SO3 |EJudWaloUl Aue
pue ainjeu ui paxy Ajabie| aje speaylanQ

[euiBlew e ui ynsal 0} pajoadxa
S| SPEAYISAO U 9SBAIOUl %G Y e

s321n0sal

Uewny uo apeuwl JuswisaAul snolald

0} enp ogejs Ajpeoiq ulewal o} si (suajpuey
|le2 ‘sasinu) aalopuom jeuonesado

JuaLInND ayj Jey} paje)ls sey juewebeuepy

ysea pue jyoid uj uoonpal jusjeAinba ue

_
7 ysea pue Ajijiqejyoid o} Joedw
_
_

i | 1BaA
ul Y213 Aq yseo aonpal  —

| Jeap

wnuue Jad 4293
OLAL Ul yjuow 1ad YZQ3 o o} Buigenba ‘ygjuowl Jad Y9GF e

SPeayIaA0 JBYIO e |

u JInsal Ajpeauq [|Im }S09 [EejusWwaIoul Aue u1%9z13 Aq yoid Jou sonpar - wnuue Jad uoyiu 623 sofem |
pue ainjeu ui paxy Ajabiej ele sjsod Aeqd o ‘lm JjosAed uj aseaIOUl %G Y e 0LAd Ul Yuow 1ad 1223 e | o] Buijenba ‘Yuow Jed )| LZ2F e PUE SBLEIBS e

_ | anypuadxy |
. AjAjjIsues Jo Juoixy | piodad 3okl S B3k SNoIASLd _ | Jea, Joj suondwinssy eoly

_ JUSWIWIOD | ©)

ainupuadxa - suondwnsse Ay

(penunuod) suonduwmsse Ao

€ JESA O] | Jeaj ._.M suonosloly



e

wayed yses
JUBLIND Yum auyj u; sieadde uogduinsse ay] o

OLAd UM aujju] e

YUOW JUBLIND AU U[ e

_ sabem _

pue saUeleS e

Page 67

weyed yseo
juaLng yum au)| ul sieadde uopdunsse ayl e

OLAd Ymaulju} e

ypuow | Bumoyioy
oy ui juswAed Alyluop e

599} 10]00( e

uawAied __

3010AUI

SULId) JORIUOD JoBNuOd uodn sAep Q€ UIylim UOIID3||00 _

JUoLIND yym auy| ul sieadde uopdwnsse 8y} e | HOO Jusuno Al ym auiiu| yum sieause uy sbuiiq AYuop e 1OBJUOD HOO e _
| uoyd3||09
juawWwWos 1o AUASUaS Jo Juslxy |  p40dal Yord) SJesh Snolaald L 483/, s03 suondwunssy ealy

MO[} YseD

- suonduwnsse Asy

(penunuod) suondunsse A5

£ Jeap 0} | 1BOA O} m:o:ow._ohn_



Page 68

€163, 0 | 1e3, 10) suagelaig v
188y$ 0UETRq PUBR MDY YSBD fBIUOISHH ‘t
aoyewjoped Bupes eoucis 2
Alewnwins aapnaang '}

JUBLLUOJIAUS [0JJU0D [BIdURUI4

G UO11998

uoJLLIOY | JUBIS) °



Page 69

66

010z 1snBny Aq ue|d juswaaoidw)| BdIAI3S 3Y) Ul UOOE SiL} 8}9|dwoo 0} pAJIWILLOD

aAey pue siy} sesiubodas Auedwio) ay] 'siaquuaw pleoy |[e Joj pauysp Aueao aq pjnoys saljiqisuadssy ‘esnoH saiuedwo)

woyy SpI033s 0} Buipiosoe sopiwEe) §O JojoalIp Alojnje)s e jou ) ays yBnoyjie Seoueul) PUB JUSWILOIIAUS |04U0D o Buinosdw
10} JyBisiano ue sey saeq spepely ‘ajdwexs Jod Apealje sonqisuodsal pauydp APEaj0 aney SISgLUBLL pleog SWOS e

Kjawn} Jou pue sAj0ea1 8 PjNOM SUIS0UOD SSBIPPE 0} SUOROE PIEOY JeL} 3Si

ybiy e sem alay) Jey jsabbns pinom sy} 1sed sy ul Ajuenbaiyul piay Buiaq sbunesu yim paubily “A|pusyj-1asn si jey) Jeulio)
® ul pajuasaud AJuesseoeu Jou pue aje| Useq Uso Sey pIeoq ay) 0} pejuasald uoHeULOU! JEL) PajUBWILIOD SBY uswobeuepy] o

Jaquiaw pieog A19AS Jo) Sajol auyag -

S@apILIWD S} pue pieoq ay} 0} pajuasaid AJUALIND UONBLLIOU| MBIASY -

‘SE pajou useq

aney sessa001d pireog anoidun o} USYE) aq O} SUOHOY ‘8bUByD JaAllap o} payelp ue|d juswoanoiduil aolnlss e sey Auedwod eyl e
800z W Auedwwio) sy Jo uopisod yses ayj Ul Uoje1oualap B WO 3S0Je Suiaduoa asay |
-Ajyyuow Bugasiy usaq SeY J3)ILLWICD SOUBWAA0S 3Jeiodio] pue JUBUL] S SLISOUOD aouewaaob [edjuno-uou ssalppe
o] “podes siy) woyy Bujsue sjuiod Juawenocidw SS21Ppe 0} SSNLLLCD S8OUBUIBACY [BIIUID B pIsn Auedwo) ay} ‘2002 W

podes NS |EanLD B 0} esuocdsal u| “Auedwiod ey Buioey sl oyioads Yim [Bap 0} pasn Uasq aAeY pieog 3l 0} Sa9)IWWoo-gNS e
JUSWILIOD pUB 3DIAISS 0} UOHEWIOI 3ouBWIOopad pue adueul Yjm S10j03i1Q Snss) 0} sueld Auedwo? sy ‘play a9 o}

anp jou s| Bupeaw pleog e 19yM SYJUOLL BUj U] "L | A Ul Yjuow Jsyjo Kiana pieog ay} jo sbuyaaw pjoy o) sueid Auedwio) ay]
sieak

Joud ur awes ay} sem Aouanbay Bunealu jey; puejsiapun ap) siseq Auapenb e uo jaw si0jo8ulq JO pIEcd 34 0LA Buunq e |

ABojouyo9] pue juawabeuepy uogeuo| -

rawabebus olignd pue Aunuawo)  —
juswabeuew ssuUDIpsiN  —
juswanoidull pue Ajjenb agiues -
upne ey —

:Buipnjoul preog ay} poddns
1ey; sdnosb Bunjiom Jo jas-qns e aje asByl =

UEIDIU|D-LOU B S| OYM JOJORUIP SAINIAX3
-uou B AQ paJieyd S) S9JWILCo-qns yoeg e

Q0UBUIBADY) [BOIUNID —
aoueusanog) ajesodio)) pue aJjueul{ -
:soaquwog-gns Aq papoddns s| pieog 9yl e |

auo Apuaund s| Aofew
siy) ‘pieog Sy uo sueiuo Jo Auolew e aq

1SNW 2J8y] 1Y} 8UIULS)SP S3jolUe SAuedwo)

9| "SUBIDIUI[3-UOU pUE SUBIDIUID UBamiaq
|enbe Ajybnos si siopanp Jo jiids ayy e
asnoH
sajuedwoy) Woly PauUIE)qo Spi0Jal U0 paseq
sopiwe) jo Jopanp Aojniels ay; si Jojoallg |
2AN23x3 | AjUQ "SI0J0BIIP BANDDXS
-UOU PUE SAIINDSXS SSPN{OUL YIIYm siojoang
j0 pleog jewioul ue sey Auedwo) syl e
SSauIsng 3y} Jo |04u0d pue
juawafieuew aAI}d3YS Y} ainsua o} pieoy
ay} Aq paydope saunp3adoid ay} uo juswuwoy

Kreyuowwiod uopdesxy

SNJ0y JO BAIY

JUSWIUCIIAUT [01U0D) [BIOUBUIS

JINIONFIG IDVLUIIA0L)

JUSWLOJIAULS [0JUO0D [BIDUEUI 4



Page 70

ob

_ Auedwon ayj jo uopisod [BiSUBUl 3y} PUBJSIAPUN O] SN Ued pleoq ay) Jey) Jeulo) e uj pieog sy}
| 0y uoneuuoju eaueul Ajawn Joayap o} Auiqedes pue Ayoedes ay) Sey Wes] aduBuly aY} JOYIdYM JBPISUCD pinoys Auedwo)) ay)
S10J0alIp AANDBXD

-UOU 3Y) UIyliM JUBUNGIOR palenb e S| 913y} 'JOASMOH JUBJUNODJE payllenb Wexa Ue S| Wea} 3aueul ay) Jo JaquiaLl Jay)aN
600¢ 49gqWwaAop ul abeg o} pajelbiw Auedwo) ay) “wajsAs Bugunoooe

abeg ey} Buisn Jo sousuadxs sAey SJUSLUYINISS] Yl0g ‘alouusypng ‘Wea} SOUBUL SY1 JO S1aquinu U] 9SBaIoU| ue sjussaidal siyj
010Z sunp Ul pajiniaal uaag aAeY asay} jo yjog -ajdoad om} jo wes} asueuy [[ews e sey Aueduio) ay|

dosm e
sAep ¢ uo swp-Ped Buryiom SI oym painIoal
Apuasas sem sabeuepy aoueuIy MaU Y e
a|doad omy
| Jo wesa} soukeul Jlews e sey Auedulo) 3y] e

| asodind 104 J4 SI Juawpedag
| 32UBUI{ 3y} JAYIIYM U0 JUIWUWOD

uosJad e yans yrudal o} aoe|d
u) suejd ou Ajua1Ino ale aI8Y) ‘JOASMOH ‘pepesu aq Aeuw JojoalIp [euoyesado aAuelsans e jey) pasiubosal usaq sey Y osly

syjuoul -z} xau

Y} ul SHN a3yl uiyum pajoadxa sabueyd sy yim Ajjeoadsa uawguiodde ay) Bujew usym O3 S} JO 1S (IS 9Y} SJOpISU0d
Auedwoy ayy jey) Juepodw s| 3| “siseq aw Jed e uo ysod sy Gulj|y si Si0joaUIp 8ANDaXa-UOU aU} Jo auo Apuawung 'L 102
Kenueyp Aq siseq Jusueuuad e uo psjujodde aq |m 03D € Jeyl padoy si 3| Jusuguiodde 03D SAJUEISQNS JUSLND OU S| S1dY ]
pesijeas

A|Iny g 0} }24 sey sjuewuaacidw 30IAISS JBpIM Ul 8jol e Aejd 0} aoioppom [EDIUNO ay} Jo [enuslod ay} ‘os|y “pasiin Japun Buieq
wes] Juswabeuew Jojuas ay) 0} ps| sey siyl ‘03D snoiaald ay) uo Juapuadap Jaao alam Aay) Jey) pasiuboosl sey pleog ayl
Auedwo 3y} JO JUSWUOIAUS [OL)UOD |elouRUY 3y} aAcidwi O} was yim pajinioal Sem asusliadxa Jipne pue sdueul)

UNM 13QWISLL PIROY [EUOHPPE UY ‘(pJeog ey} o) uojeuuojul [eroueul jo Suiode: sjenbapeul pue aje| ybnoiy) pasuapins)
S|0JJUOD [BIDUBUY Uil SOSSAUYESM 319M 816U} JeY) paysijqGeisa pieog ay} ‘siy) Jo }jnsal e sy ‘Juaajosul Isiym Guipen Auedwo)
au) 0} pa| aABY PIN0Y SIY] MO} Used yym wajqoid jegualod e aq Aew 213y} jey; pasiubooal jsiy pieog ayj 600Z Bulng

pieog ay} uo uolejuasaldal 10}00p Buoss ayj o] anp |aAs| preog sy} 1e a[qe A|jes|uljo uaaq sey Auedwo) sy}

‘Alesuc)siH -Auedwio) ayj jo sjuswabueue sguewaaob ayj eroidwi 0} s10j0311( O preog 8y} Jo Jas |[NS sauewaaob ajelodios
8|y} 8SEaJOU| 0] SeM SIY] "SI0}23lIp [BIIUID-UOU SAIINDSX3-UOU 93Jy} pajiruoal Auedio) ay) 200Z Ul panss! Lodal NS e

ul wisionud 0} asuodsal u) ‘uonesiueblo ayy ujyum sdeb (s (|4 0} S10}03lIp SAINDBXa-UOU payinidal sey Auedwo) sy} awy JaAQ

_ SIBUOISSILILICD pue S4E) [BI0] YuMm Buipnjoul 'suoroauucd Awouoos yjeay [eso] poob sey plieog ay)

1sny a1e0 Aiewpd (220 e pue jsh} Japiaoid ajnoe uopuoT] ablie| e je Buipn|oul ‘suoyesiuefio SHN 2410 UM
$9]0J SAINOOXS-UOU YIM SJSQLUIAL PIEOE SSPNjOUL SIY| "SHN S41 Uiym pasusuadxa Ajybiy aq o) sieadde pJeog jusuno ay|.

_
m suonesiuebio SHN
| 19410 yum pue Awouooa [820] @yl UIyum yloq
| SHN 2u} JO 8oualadxa aAeY SiaqUIaW plecg e
| s|seq awi
ued e uo isad sy} Buyy si S101931p SAINDSXD
| -uou ayj jo suo Aguauny -| | gz Aenuer Aq
| pajly s13sod sy} jeyy padoy s1 3] wsuiuiodde
03D 9AUBISqNS OU AJUALINO SI1318Y| e
JJels [ed1U)2-UsU PUE |EDIUIID UB3MISq
fenba Ajybnos st s1ojpauipjojydsay) e
uoljisodwos pieog 3yj UO JUIWWOH

Aejuewiuios uondaaxy

$n20} Jo ealy

JUSWUOAAUT [0JJU07) fRISUBUI

WE] JUIWISEUEA]

JUBLWIUOIIAUS JOAUOCD |ejoueU|




Page 71

154

samaw Apanonpoud
Buimaiaal uaym s1apiaosd HOO 48yjo
S19d 9y} woy Aagoe siy) Joj Buipuny [euonippe y@ss o} Auedwo) ay) pajgeus ynm ||am a1edwod jou ssop Auedwod ayl
_ SIY] "puewWwap AJIAROR [SUORIPPE J9OL O} SSIN0SA) PUE SYIYS 10)00p [EUCIIPPE BUIMOI|0) NY BUIMS JO JNS3I B SB SIS00 Pasealdll 181 15966ns spodas Buppewyousq '19ASMOH e |
Auenb o) a|jqe sem AuedwoD ay] "Ny duwms O} aNp AUEDLIUDIS SsBaIOUl SIBAS] Ayagoe mes Auedwod au) 60A- Ul JBU) 8JOU My e | sepinad HOO fayenb
aoueuuopad [ealuld pue Ajanonpoid ‘esueuy sjeibajul pue sussouod papodal 3y} uo pjing pjnoys y6iy e se pasiubooal st pue SaWoNO jEANND
pieog ey 0} spodes souewIopad “souet Ayaganpoid Buisn uaym siapinaid HOO Jeyo jsulebe Apood psuuopad Auediwod panoldiul sey Auedwo) ay) Hodal Sy S2UIS e
By} 1By} PAMOYS Yolym Hodes Bupjieunyousq jusoal e woy pede ‘AyAionpoid uo pieog 3y} 0} SpEW Ua3q jou arey syoday e 100z W
Auanonpold uo maia apim-Auedwod uodal NS |eoIHS B 8ouls os asow ‘Auedwo) |
e anib o) pajeibajul aq 0} Jeadde Jou Saop §52201d SiLf) “JAASMOH “S|BA3) Apananpoid palisap aAsiyoe jou op Aay Jl siojoop _ oy} uo shao} auy uaaq sey Bugodas |
{enpiaipul JsuieBe usye} uogoe PUe SBYJILILICD SOUBLISACS) [EDIUND BY) 0) pajcdal 34 [jiM SMBIASI 858U JO SILLOOINO 8Y] e | souewIopad pue aouewsanch |eauy e |
| sisEq ajdWes B Uo PaJoONpUOd 8q [[IM SMIIA) 9S3Y] "HIYS B U} udas sjuaned Jo Jiys uo spew abed xau auy
_ sjjeo Bumaiaal ybnouyy ajduwlexa Joj “SI0}00p [eNpPIAIPLI JO AAjlonpold dy} m3jas) 0} aoejd ul sjuswabuene sey Auedwo) 3yl e UD SIY} L0 PRJUSWIWOD aaeY app ‘Buodal

| 800Z Ut pieog 3y} 0} 9pew JSJl JoMm Spoda) asaY) "SARORYS S| aoueusopad [esjulo sAuedwog ayj jey) Japisuod pieog ay pue ejoueuly Ul Bpew aq UBd SjuawaAoIdw)
Buposw asyWwWoD Yoes 0} spew si podal v “sjeblie) pue spiepugls jsuiebe souewiopad pue Ajjjenb J1aA00 pinom asay] “pJeog jeyy pasiubooas sey Auedwog 3yl e
SU} 0] PUB SINIULLIOD SIUBUISACY) [EOIUN|D SU) O} Souewsaaob pue aoueuuouad [eauld uo apew ale sxoed Bujpodal pleog e | pleog 2yj 0} Buipodas jo Ayjenb uo Juswwo)

Ajuswiod uopdesxgy SN0y Jo ey |

UALILOAIAUT [041U0Y) |eiduBUI4

preog o 01 Juproday

JUSWILOIAUS [04}U09 [BIDUBUI




Page 72

pleauo} 6uioB Ayjqeyyosd pue Ayanonpoid Bulaup o) Aay aq |jim Juawiabeuell [euolelado JOIUSS Ul JUSWISAAU] ue ‘uleby
soueuuoyad [aAa] @dIAeS
UO paseq SUOISIap ayelw O} uorewlojul ay] yim juawpedsp aoueuy ayj apinold |im Buinodes au) sojales pue Bujjunoooe ajuad
1509 Buronpoiju) "aouspIAs uo uey) Jaylel "Aj9ANNul Spew uaaq aAey (9al4 [eAoy syl Je saoines Buisojo ‘sag) sioj00p bumno
‘B-a) suoneledo Uo suoIs|IB(Q "SUOISITSP [euogesado S)ewWw O} JUSIOWNS UOELLIOJUI |RISURBUL PR Jou Sey pieog ay) ‘A|jeouolsiH
wajsAs abes ay) uo paledaid aq ||Im SJUNCIVE jeY} JBAA [Ny JSIY Y} 3G JjIM LLAL
Aem AfaLun B Ul umop pasold uaaq jou
ABY SJUNOIDE PUd YUOLW “A||EOLIC}SIH "PUS LJUOL OB J3JJE UQOS LMOP Pasojo 8q 0} paau ||IM sjunadoe ‘Ajawi aq o} Buitodas
pie0g 104 "SISEq ]0RNUOD AQ 10E5UCS B UO sbeuew pue podal Aj9jeINooE a10W UBD pleod ay) jew os wa)sAs abeg ay) uiyum
papiosal Ajsjeinaoe 3q 0} SWodul pue s}soo annbai [m siy| -Buipodar anuao 3so0 1oj Aloedes sey sbeg jey) puejsiapun apn
20USPIAS LD UBL J3YJEl uoimul
uo apeur aie apiaoid 0} S3OIAISS LOIYM UO SUOISIOap 310Ja18y ] "SJOBJJU0I 10 S30IAISS J0 Ajljiqejyold ay) uo uoneulou
3y} aAey jou op pieog ay| -Auedwon ayj ul paysiqe;sa Buiaq isnl Ajuo si Buipodal ausd 1s0 Buinoedal Jo sl -
papaau A3y} JeuLo; e uj uoijeLusoju) sy pieog ay)
Buiaib uewp Jayies “1atedaid ay) 10} JUSIUSAUOCD Jeula) e Uf pajuasald Usyo alam spodal aoueul “spodal aoueul jo Aue)y  —
uoisod
[eioueuy s,Auedwon ay) uo Bupjew uoisioap pue abuajjeys pleog aAI}03Y3 10} NP } el pinom spodal asueuy Jo
6uiqe) aje “Bugasaw ay; Jo adueape Ul uey) Jeyiel sbugosuw pieog Je pajqe} a1am Aay) usyo "spodsl saueuy Jo ssaulpWl  —
‘papnijoul swsiopuy
‘pleoq ay; Aq paAadal spodal [ejoueuy ay} YiIm PaysIES Jou alam pieag sy} ‘paonpold alam sjunoooe juawafeuew ybnoyy
sjunogae Juswabeuew sonpoid padjay sjuejunodae [ewaxa ay} wajsAs Gujjunoose
abeg ay) 0] bunelbiw Auedwo) ay) 0} Joud "Sjuncade pud Jeak aonpoid 0} sjuejuncdse jeulaxa sAojdwe Auedwo) ay|

speuw

aq ued syuawabueve Buipodal |ejoueuy

3y} ul suawsAoidwi Jaypng eyl soueInsse

awos seAb yoym ‘pancidunl uaeq Ajjuasel
sey Ayjiqedes pue Ajoedes soueuy ay| e

sbujesw pieog Juanbay aiow Buney
pue wajsAs abeg ay) ojuo ejep jeroueuy
10 uoijelbiw se yans *‘Buprodal jeroueuy
anasdw o) padojaasp usag aAEY SUOIY e
Aem Jesjo e ul pajuasaud 1o Ajpwin
ussq Jou sey Bugiodas [ejoueuy ‘AjjeolOISIH e
Auedwio?) ay} jo sjuawabuelse
Buypodal jeisueuyy sy} Uo JusWIWOY

Asejuowwiod uopdesxy

sn20j} Jo easy |
|

JUSWIUOIIAUT J0JUOD) [BIDUBUIH

3unzodas [epueur,]

JUBWUOIAUS |OJIUOD [BIDUBUIS



Page 73

Auedwog) ayp jo azis ay) 0} SNp UOKOUN) JIpNe [BuajUl OU S| aIBY] e
Auedwo) au} JO JUSLIUOIIAUS |OIIUOD SY) UO A|9SJBAPE JUSLWILUOD JOU PIp SIOlpne [BUdXd 3y e
010z Ain ul ade|d aye) 0) pajoadxa SJUNDJJE 0L A JO IIPNE [BLIAXT e
pouad Loys B 10} papusixe Jayjel Inq ‘pamaual Bujag Jou 30B1U0D HOO 8y} 0} anp w1aouca bulob jo Joadsal ul sem
101 1d90Xa, 9y "SJUNDISE GOAL Sl UO panss| sem uojuido 10} jdaoxs, U eyl paysi|geIse sey Jusiiabeuew yym suoissnosiq

azis s1y} Jo Auedwo)) e Jo lipne ue Joj [ensnun jou si
SIY] ‘SOUBUISA0S) UM pableyn asoyy 0} Hoday ushum e yjm Auedwo) ay} pepiaod jou dAey SIoypne |eussixe ay) siy) sjdseq e

pIOYSaJy] JIPNE a8y} SA0GE JAAOUIN] U] 9SE3IOU] 8Y) O} 3np 0A ul pabueyo syl e
jipne ||n} e Joj
pioysaly; ay) mojaq Bujeq Jeaown) o} anp sem siy] “swibal ypne soueinsse pajiwi) & o} 103[gns sem AuedwoD ay) GOAL 0} Jold e

waouoo buiob |
0] 8Np SJUN0Y9E U UojUIdO Ypne 10} 1daoxX3, e |

JuswuoIAuS _
|QJJUOD 3y} UO SIUBLULIOD SSISAPE ON o

2218 ||lews o} enp
60Ad 13UN JipNe 80UBINSSE PajiWlf [BUJSIXT

Auedwo) jjews
e Jo} pajoadxa Se uoljoun} JIpNe [eulajul ON e

sjuawabueie Jpne uo JuaWWo)

Areyuawnod uondasxy

£n20y Jo ealy

JUBLLUOIAUT |01IUOY) [eIoueUlS

SIUSWAZUEIIE PNy

JUSLUUOJIAUS [043U0D |BIDUBUI-



Page 74

Ja18] uonew.uoo Ageinodge [enoe4 Qg

010z Jeqwadaq 0} 010z AN wouj 1Seds.10) Moy ysea Ajyiuopy 9
uoljeuLIojul JO $82In0s [edidulld ‘g

Juswebebus Jo sepeT Y

sdoipuaddy

uojuioy | Jueis) o



Page 75

z3tad

SEOAPPG N0 ATLAUIO) 0} NOA TEm FaaFe . AT A3 orAERpOT I AP w

'sosiape [puos3jod B0 IRy put I5d
a1 poe fredmor) oo 16 PuLosd 2WTART [[8 Loy woRmada-03 [y JADII [ N -

Happ
>apun JnoTL 50 01 peprsad 3g s poe QEEAT 3G | armbat 3m LONTWIOIUT
pus )JUL PRI P spIo303 Bup JIEAI[aZ W ST Q2 PIBOPSP FAEY TENIN @

:suopdumsse Z0vmoj0f A3 O PISEY LS/ Y b
smondmneay

“parurunioa sy uswaEAUD i i £ o 31 @3 G ANOTE T $8 BBFK PRUTOI SR
11 PaTIMOTT I [ETIE TUO §E PRTESYES &6 TW 335 LOGE QL 34) Hear o o fvd o: safe

004 *uonardmos Tryy D0 “onc e 1) paoy g pu O

“FAlI PIEPUTAS 1€ 53] I0G OF PAPPE 34 s =smdm japed Jo 1w pus IVA  TF

0] 110 138 SB NP 84,Q] € PUE reundBo s vo paads a
Pa9U [ S/ I [FRIJE I JO TEITIRRISE IO GO PISEY 28 POE 069'9CF ¥ paxy 3q ([ 533}
T30 Q) “Naoa S uo pAtdnae ATTESIdII UM Y PO PIAJOATT [[BfS pUT fqrqusmodsas

30 3a782p 3y vodn postq a7 33 0 “apPwd LEoEy 1 AXIOT P ul ¥
ssag

‘SR PAPTRTITE 031 13IgNs 2q L31n1 3208 3APE T [EOOIIFPY 3 uSefio yo i3]
asmredac ¥ j0 1olqos 3 2q s ST Uyl 3ApE X0 SUORPPE anoba aod prags TP
1 doe 30 nomord Ay IPNEL 300 SOP FR MO JO 2de26 311 IMNOp JO IUEPLOAs IP 0T TE

sajApw XL

L0 s po ssocam 1 Jo Dimqumodsaa 3ot 35 g g o
D 30 FHERE € U 3RS SIOIP ATy "0 Y IV (WSO 36 i SELS I 253
Lmaiuedias 3o “UmE 1 O S nege e B 0 o sog ey
.iﬂgﬁgiﬂi!{'%..ﬂw*xn&é‘g 8z

44023 T 7 PATFEILOS BORRRLO) U I JO DRI ¥
3t augUos o) fuadwo?) S Jo SICIAP P Wey UonguasaIdar Wi T TmRSS [ 3 LT

URTRY) PAuEIGo TOURITAIT] Iy 30 Seanooe prty
1p wgues 03 Suedwo) SY) Jo WOIIMD 2@ Al popiaoad ag [ wodsz mo jo sador Iy 92

UTPAULD BH J0) POLUAG JBPIAGLS RINOH | 100 T (O MUINEY E5U(ING JuspUITEpU]
UeEwED SHR

0102 AINP 1 | LBPW2D SHN | o H0) UOJUISL) WRID 0162 B

“muired (77 N gonxzory, 3ne) ¥ 4q paudhs £[enueus tmaq swy T nom satadrad 353q

70y JJEP, TR TEIED0P | IWITHAD tIm. Joud MO INOPIA NEWM0P esp Lot 7o

paou[d 3q PMOGE TR OF PLik BOVEIE PUY BASLIS 01 19fqns ATE 431 1wt S152Q 1P U0
Stiop 31 sy, nai oy 1edaz 0 30 tjER Aoys feur om wausdiBur oq yo asmed s Suema g2

&

1D BYs © P PP® puUE JEWIO] 20 d woquaiedrmy  +z
BN MITAIT I L)AL O] TTDILD I PUE MDA D4s PRI suonEDRdo
PuE SSOUTSTI N JO SYATE 3T JO SR 11 (10q PAAA] 3q [[Im Tom Ine Ja adessayy ¢z

HI0m, SO0 L) JUEAS(RS 30 %P...huﬂ_ TR S h—.:e Darsrogur sn dary it o

Briveus 30juat pur P Ao do-0o 3 39 pue furdumry 3 jo spioaaz

POE MOOq S C1 ST PROTALIIIN 34K [ M IHf tuiyone ]0d 3] Pambas e

ST HTNOITE PUE UORYUNOUL Araixd PUE (GFUGIEAEU S JO UONBUTORED JIPME L. 3583 3Y)
51 5[ 3D YORVLLO) UL [EUTXD pus Juvwatizus Emm ud paseq aq Aew ypom ng 72

o xipuaddy’ trno 125
sprom Jo ado3s aup 32403 rewp Aurdusor) S jo YET ™ oprord on 13odor v aredsd U spy LT

Niom jo 3dadg z

SIAREMO
30 pue si013ap moA jo AmasuodsaT jo sEaTz dsoz atp sost osea) nolm
AD[RQ TA0 135 $IIAIS I IPA0d [n g TT D} TEIDIOY ] IWEIL) IITAL UO S15¢q Jeh MO £133
RTPUOD puE SuLm) PaEpURs 00 JO v SPeaddy paydEn ) gum mipolor Ansjsal L

(I 3p.) B3paIE) SEIN 20J {, Auednior)

313,) 3914235 TPIAOI SMOE ] 10 100 G “PIHTTT S0PRTED J0 (M) ASLSY sEITsag

1apuURdapu] P 01 GOGERT O S[BIPTN (jU6 ' [T DI UOWIOK T IS J1om 3 JO
Suipursuispun Mo umyuo> o1 Sumua 5T o ‘91z 2UA[ ZZ U0 WS SIEND ZIT o1 PRy {1

uoganposju| [

UapWED SHN 49} 83juas

43PIACId EINOH JO 3N A 'PEJIWIT SOPIWE] Jo

sug Je3]
OO 0302 2un{ 47
XY 12 02D] Pre
L2 852 G2(Q e L TNIETE] 1213 IO UORUILIT IY1 20,
pimpla RICPTE] 1913 JO Uok W o
g v
AT uDjWwE WY Ad0 AN

uopuoe
Avy) svRued IS ¢
pasdsoy seoovg 15
uap@e) SHN

NG/ XO Fu ™G

uojuIOY | JueIC) o
JUSWAGE3UD JO NI Y

saoipuadady



Page 76

yebng

pux Lumd myio sy o pasapmp Apdwoad 3q grgs snp GG S An6sT 2aI0pTAdIpUT UT: 20
1597300[ JO LU0 ¥ PIOAYS “TOT IS 01 WONYPI AT $INSSL IUSpusdapon Lue 30U Isaxnuy
30 NP> LI¥ DR A 2R 3B PP 104 pun Furprspun ¢ TSN voITOqT
nnan sapz 3y jo Fnpursopom mod wnyyos nof FWI SR O STmR I 0 Fupxde g

suepr wransdo 1o 203] s P o1 s

> Buppaopmn o os op 01 W2t 3G 30 [T 3] TeIeY] L) jo Argodlqo g

2apniasd proas rep diystomps Yo fue pegouspt 100 SAYY S, STVRL 39310 I5¥] 3T TP
ﬁdgﬂééuc .—EWUGHQ E—._UHHD-HJUEEUH% E«Nﬂ -ﬁﬁuﬂﬂg
3P PPDU T AEipY) DUMbLD PRI 10 ‘2soqE 7 ¢ Ydedund w mo 135 3solR 105 SAsg

G00Z G090 Z1 60 Mod 0 paixodazam pu GH0g PREQ 9 pREp B[

youndudus s1eredas ¥ 01330[qas sem Ghesn 1Y T o as0yy i S
abmuasivﬁgagaeﬂiﬂgg_@ageuem_s
351A12G SIOH] §Q 1) AP JO FIOWSSY P om3 £q papr 0 T UQ oM
EEpUT 01 19 3tp £q parSta rva TT M) BOWIOHT UM Toq pAeu aq pRoys 3

‘0 Op 03 3391 2q PO 10 A1anaiqe mn aoipnfud pos BT sn maaag

drgsaogepl Rupo A 51 2121 §t soonstassy oS a7e sy wwek 2o snopard 2 Saunp
2um {un 1z YO MO LG AARY VAP IR JO LO0E 10 L JT SPUFISUMIID eI Ul
samzduron yam 9P UK /M Yangm o1 103355 3y} 1157 norssoyord oo Buramacd s aq]

t6

£6

117

pus 130

“Kiuqusuodssa mo o3 fenontodard

11 pRaagns 3wy Aur jo 1ed 9y 02 ‘dea 3k 03 1alqus 'poE 0p0°a00'ZF jo Iunau
E-Enﬂuﬂa-s/&uﬁ%s Jo suonp PO SWIA WU

@ 1IN0 228 SR S wo P 2q [egs Imun i sup isgﬁagﬁbi!—u:o

%]

£3nqu)) 30 UoRERIMIT

TN VOIBOLL, NS PUE T9d 21 g
B pus Summn vy peaie 5q [P URRY NI 313 3 UORDRIPOW 30 JSIDpEUs LUy

TOTKTRITR

s TwpEASIPIMGD 153373 pUE 310§ [y Ul SBUTLO0I (4 YDIG% § POI  STCEE uo
suersiacid >y Buiprpaat ‘upoy ook 4q 1848 sygraaRput 30 FTOE

Aty 300 03 ¥148u 4no avrroavd uy urpog v.uv yons 01 zoud sn jo

200 fina *{q pRamoar 0aq 0 ‘01 PITIIoE APWAS|E ATy oo onge synTed 3tp Jo coomdnge

poe 5149 2annadsas 2 3z Jou [m 1TRUDTEBE Ry JO uogEuAN 20 Andxa 3y T,

a3 9 Jo voprwr Bye Apimp; 1 nak g squied >q (s TonwOTIIR
Jopap oy FeBin s e ™ pOTF 3q {¥ms 3m M O) 2O
50 01 3mp pur 4q poarmom s9susdna pUE S35 [[E poE RN 1G3LRIERD M o g ydufeed

T INO 135 K€ 53] ﬁu&-»ﬂ-énuubunuﬁ-ui? wonatdies uo anzs ‘(acqe [ ydulend

TrIno 195 3501 Sugpror) pateur o ST angs. 1 Sue oy

unpuRD SHN 40) EjAIRS SOPIAIG SINOH 10 WO U J0 ASIARY SEoUSNg JudRUGCRpL)
uopuE] SHN

bL

€L

<L

010Z AINP GL | UBPWED SHN | ¢ Wi UOjL0UL JURID) 0i0Z @

€ obrg

smEpind [Esnps L0/pue sme| [qegdds 1o
arigap i Sumq ot soaunefin ag) Y poacaxd uvd . v PIYMLE 1053 AN »

10 mowsRSun ay

3o .

Forrear 0 MW B LC 22} moidoosz o1y nad e
[puoRsy ¥ 8 i

“uswaieBua siy) J6 swee) ay) Jo Aue Jo e praew W ek o

El Frdos sp Sy o1nofer TRe Sonur uohij!—b.:.
u-_uﬁcrvﬁvﬁﬂ.?:uim:u..zotnﬁ..ukr nuun:n... =u

{q pepreTx2 Armina 1o perronuo=) fjnotsid s unmue) pmaowBefm sy

LITSTLTTRTIT Y

oLoz
£u( £z 30 aunpep Surwods mad jo asurape n g0z Am{ § 330339 30 U TONEAPIUGY Mok
703 7oday yerp ¥ sredand e an “smeq § n_uEn ¥ U0 AQYQIEAE ST DODELIA)UL ey Furwmssy  Z 5

010T Stm[ 42 05 YToA T00 IIVTUNRNGD ) DIAKS I *Sjquswn moL yivw dBULPpISOE U] (9

BiRyawyy
L ) BONSOY] ISy SFWTY JEO03IY
L6T}1800 ou mowy
GE-TI0Z -3pod 1WOg
2d yuwgy shepareg

H80|[0) S¥ DI TPRIM JO $TMRIIP "1UD0INY $,FTT M) UOILI0Y ) Jreis)
©23507p apqudnd 5q QUi S30ALL 21 | DL 42 01 4USK PUE PRSP Aq (U SNOAIINO €€

uapwtesad @3 s48p O1 predun OTIWAT M 5|q Aue
uo 1anar sdurs giuow x13d o7 J0 2 ¥ e SRy sausiar e ppr vl 1q80 DY dATMIIA 2§

uawafefny oy ja vogermIeI uo 10 *wodaz |suY Jro paasz
A NO 20u0 pANFSt x| [ SIY AT FACAT MO Jo uonmwdsand uo qelsd are Sy In0 1€

saeg jo Juawseg
@i 00
m 1onhaa nok SLEN TORIB JO 5IN03 I[EUCSTST T 3G O3 A TPISE0D am 31 SuswnTeiu
saceuras 03 3785 Sorulissuos Aq wom ano jo amsuadims Anaodwal /spasppy mo
10 TUIULIUAUWOI My ul SAVRP WO Fusun 1o ©3 3500 5q2 I1eT0r ©F MAALIPUS Tk S0
JA0QE INO 39§ $IILI PIONMOISIP ST 18 PaTIvL 3 ||Un $99) [RUONPPY pasTEN fueDg AUt
Jupq 3308 mp rap s rrEusdwon of 1o 1uaunGeua S o Fnbares Uy POAOALT YIOM £xd
Kuv 10; 573 [suomppr 1t 38w o 1R 2y 2497 am Your ou are suondmmese a1 YT G
(pom mo Surpusdsns 30 37usAPs Ut NuA QIM S)4 KASSIP 4 I RIUTSIOID
tpns ) 0 far 102 30 oM I dols O) ey
mo jo 1ed 10 (2 10§ JE—— sty uuu:! g tp Fuunp rpousd onarsmy @

\APWED SH 0] #OINCS WRINGLY SINOH 17 IND 8L Ja MIIARS T5IIEIG WopLEdopY)
UEPWED SHN




Page 77

9 obed
656) Y foum| P
gy ) - iti{iln};
- o L ¥ L
SV
R AT ) i Qs
.lvba.t...-l P.:tu
lﬂ!’.(w.
2 u._?ﬁts_...._!;c_!u..!ilﬂnlsil._...a
ALFTVMNOLINDS 0L
ey a - e s lbgrpa s e
i O P A I3 T SO
gl!‘{ili o I3 s W Ty ——; g
= i, e e . e U
mimpe i »
Py - iy =y by aj
e - - - entied {fiduen muinn
o by g s s by vy i i sury ” \J g el un,

g T

Toyeyoal s #h sary 2 % SV oyl st -J-IT!_. Ja.lj.ll!l_-cllbl. ey T

o ot A 70 1 0 0 1 AN e 2 € P ) Gy SN p ) g, 2 gy
i ar s s s sensaio g £ bkl e s e s . 1 A7) OCAe )

ALITIIVIT 40 NOLLVLIAT]
sl ey
L ¥ T o l
I IS S Y e
e 1w by e e -y ¥ e
B e g, i e i L s vy P )
a2 T RETT 3 (PP TN
(23] 4 un o m &y |gw pon
iurrpay Yo i o T i N Ao S U TR 36 40 A T
SumpVie (o miboiuce
) e ¢ W N A Formy A W —
!;Ifllil.l..lx-l. Loy =

Rl.lvl.-‘l‘llﬂ_lll‘l!.’ l_IEl..ll S T

NOLLYDLINIA
Apsrveds)

r o ahbephise Loy Safe NI S N
=TT F e ! ooy .....I....‘

E_aayi e 0

lr_-rli‘!kn.hhliuliqil‘lrﬂgﬂdj!‘i
B Tt = luﬂ_!r
Ci iy S e i+ LTI o

COEANINYA AITTEVIT QELNIT

1

‘(23m3 nencddho, 2p) . WP dTT

S e, maey ooy ﬁnui.suzsdzi-.slmux.&sﬁ:ugisai:

vxipusddy

0102 AN 9L | UBPWED SHIN | ¢ %N UojuIcy eI 0102 6

g otivg
(D) 3sary 35 dnuary uapume) "WPULD SHN 0 IPY24G VO
aairaaan \‘hv e i 7o LRI F 0% \.‘.. seeeaie o —vuﬁwnw
L 4 2/ et 1P sl

-Aq paaifc pus pafpamouye 1saafelioa Jo suud T
d'T1210 NOINEOHL INVIO
Aoy samox.

S33) s 3o Ldoo prsopud g Sormruas poe Furdis £q

g pue v satpuaddy ut p sso Supnpi 'I5UI] SN JO SWII 3 01 JBWREE mok
par 1 mad 3o urp PUNING twaguos prnom nal 1 myared 3q proys M Tt

“Kued yes Jo 3annmsaadaa paspowpne Ap ¢ &g padis poe Sums

T £53[ET ANIDTP 2q 10U T TSy I G1 VENKE 40 SUQAIPPT ‘SITNTPLEWY

Ay sanued 34 LRaAaa Spett Asnomasd (10w 30 3oTma T IYIYA} SULR] PUE SDTURITES
dox snotasad [z sopasradas pur enuas /nmuariun s o1 Somuer sonwd

ap :unirj pazife sunm AmMIS 3m MO 035 0oL A 1IEDLOD Mo sy pracde UQ

Let

suue; jo sourjdesay

Tews eI Jo

s erRio 23 ;0 1red s puz 1uevodun uk vy $a4) ST R SR JR VoRIUN(U03
QI PODINPUN PUE PEoa 3q PIOIS Y[ F33] FTR U100 a8 A A 31 so susuniedus
sTR @1 A1dde Touo] srp o) v Xpuaddy ut papmyduy PLE SL) PPY YL

P

S 37 1T SIIUISIOTOAS Y} JO UUBKIIPISUCD
1Yy e3¢ uoa8 3q A[UQ |[ 1WASUO3 (PTG IPSTCD BINFA MG 30T dsodmd

Auy 205 LW UL ID SjoYm 1T PAIERAID 20 padupoadal ‘ERSN B 10 EIOYS 1] STOIND

>tp 01 £doa e s 1 S 203 Apamypze pasedard ag [ poe T E stuoda mg

Tar

Lot

» puE suwE3

JowsFeSus sy sreunwan Saa nvd 13qme
“ov1d m sprendayes s1zndosddu ind ol appusod jou 5111 5] passsp spreadges vadosdde

T T T L L ]
WWPEED SHN

(34

ok




Page 78

530=g
o TR s
T e e . " & !‘»‘.iij]’ii
g mp e N e o K o -
NOILLVIGENK GNV SELOESICT
i g
o o ty i oY i v A '
ot B ey G e e . e
- o gt B - . e P At
- ~ A v N
pau 2.0 LAFETEn
ey dq 0 mml dg s pra o 4 e
bsng (R0 fuye I Spun g—
@ sy 36 s o Juitisd y -
SHIVTD NOLLVNDRMILL
A ) A, % 3w wacwey v s T Y aramy ul g s
At el P AL i ey T N ol vyt A
S b ] 1 D L ) ol
SILLYLS TVNOLLVNEILNI
Caral gt i 3 35 1300 0 g Y i s 2 e P
o o e s iy 24 A P Ty o g Y T
'1.}1.—'.115‘!&1} ¥ g B
g v 5 YR T e i S AT e ey it
FSTH IV XVL ININL ANV SNOLIDVSNVAL BVIINLD
= (maoipo
ii..ll.!!!'. T - "y R ey
s , L e gy

.. ey et
tl.__ .l_.....li/l! s......!—_l.l _!.l.rl.rlr-l:l Ieil..ll!..l..l..w

asovD FATEvA 20

e 0 Tshe g g0 li#l.l_ir!;t_!fz!ii-thaslll
o AT 0 UES e,

.E._nliﬂcﬂ!u-ﬂhue!ﬁ:;

oy o - ! .

oy Cr |y ey 3 s il ¥ & 01 9 vl
e ] i.la...rfa v e

!!'\.!.li‘ y: iy i

Al x‘i!‘i l.sll-b ijl.ﬂui‘ai -

0660 1OV (SILIAVA (PNHT. IO STRODD) SIOVALNUD

H4ha) O P JO Py y n e yom
st dqaon nok px el E»E.di;s.i-ainsd. T e g pavmaod AL

AVTONINSAADD

o, st PURALLY G4 ARy T&:Eu_asucésﬂa\._.
dn 3 3m03 30 s nof Ty gpes 100 18 44 'pa aha sy and

v Tpsotdy

(11

e

GLOZ AINP 91 | USPWED SHN | 7T XN UONLCYL WRID 0102 ©

138wy

Anumotimes ey 4531 % s s Iragan g 01408 sautad s umdad o o (e op o) pov (b poc Jpygac oglams
i o oy e TRETPm Y I Upea - a0 1k |qag, Wiyt SumTeni B st m R e NI T onk sous
A (I PRI AT 5 b ot Paaratln 3 PIRG i G2 3212338 I AVK] Y LI WA ) 1] DI R L AWE A6 T )]

ADIAWES ¥NO

I A2 e L A 2208 . sl
W pasal s i AN 1 rouLamd uy o vakon

- AR BATR W LNUYIN AP 4 L] R
03 N84 0T 31 03 0 2431 TR P PP i 7a” ANV [TERING) 7 b Vs om smmaiyg SR Suvcy Ay

Ianzn po usiasd wy ety 4

aris PO 12 5 1] g3 O 1 AUTRESEIELR Sea) I @A 10 NIRD
P FUr fEPR S YR P DI G130 XA AL SN WL U

e

133070 U 10 ] g3

doet o o e Eiioie v A ke 1 e R 1 et ST ey
P sty 50625y S AR YRR, S SR S o A
Vi i A 3G 112 R Pt 3l 33811 (2T ILUT TR 1117 B et g L 2 L) - ST
B T M LY L] P b LL1E M R | ‘_o-...lfl.st)l_‘i-.; U 2 0 W g
o s L a4 ity = P i 4| el T e ) AR T vald g B B
B R A A e =

SINARND0T YO T A0 ALITIEISNOASTY.

1y Sapuiciy o Cvsess o)

00 LI U] EFAOI"ED G LT 1) i mal LN A I

SHIdVL ANV 53008 J0 ATHSHINRO

210§ i e W b
g ) W an) 1) Wi a1 &g
it ur o) (rzmis Qo J0 ne g 3y,

05 mrakEia o o unorpy
A6\ 21 T 37 9 URLIGDUN SN

ALITIEVTT J0 NOALY LTI’ 40 34005

v \pI0ds




Page 79

o elag

5Si s, e oy < famdawyy
>p _E vﬁ_ﬂx gig u..._ yga fmnasood e
MR RIET I JV R ) UO LONYPAIID LI @
‘Bavaopa;
3 uo wondaam 4q woda pun suonasosd sloedoory I malaw e 3 1Y

(swopadfard o)) T40Z PV ZLOZ YOreN 1€ Bupuo Lrral sy sa3 SuaRososd
eefom; pew |LOT RATH ¢ Smpud Seek D3 s0 mEYno UL €

Wy e jo yudap pur Yoron Suprew
sxsmmpopad-optn Lox qien fop o soRooboIn g womn wWems 00 JOUKD)  §7

Harrduaor) 2y §q pAUTIDAIP D@ SLD] INW  «

aulpgrrs do o
OGO ID .

sgemgpds (Dang syoods dumlaod 99
Eﬂg?vgg:déﬂlhwgk!ﬂﬁls%
pUm S0¥ @ 0100 HnquIves PO Easup L 00 NWWeD 8T

1102 Pk it Bt 49k proumm o o owugDpad aop o4 sl p OTR
PRI 1§ papud il e s 30y Rl sde uoneRmY @O P YOLLIEA
W oTTaa (PR Ave 203 3015%) Fonnqraves s ap (2 o ome) £

‘BLOT P 35 0 474 3 09 voTamY
oo pe vLLDYT Timigopon s sufpur o $Somams 3o Smeb oin Sppatd R34 TT

Qunazdw ) i pvok
u@ﬂ&.vﬁ.vu}su!gigd—ﬁilz—n
pop 1l [rouvul 3g) jo ypd Wuspen 7 g o PR (2T

030F yosagy 1§ PIPUD Ak DI 10) SRS SUPE PN Z

%ggvﬁg&uﬂis}go‘& -
suscuepainad 2330p 10 L0APD g1 0: SR LInf 6 TELOPIGG

P G107 N 16 Bapsr ol g 305 emsiiad rosty 30 g usip 1 .
102 T 1 Ferpua sral povsta) A 5 o Dl

p 03 mak puw gz G 15 PP 3y Wl Fopes poo o

dpepopad
YOl SPaA. D0 J0 MEmoD X ta; S warn Ly g imonn ¢ vappardpmany It

Aroweg epRnooxy [ 3

2o0ds 300 30 WYBO3 SUPTIY Iy PUE 25k J0 26T AP AGER 200 1 4
RO, J0 DOOE

GI0Z AMPOL | UBPWED SHN ! o) N umiwouy o9 0102 &

..lf ........ “?lﬂ..cv..v..ﬁln
) e 01 e LD o1 N “CaVashind st ng) 0 IO [ lll... -«-.l.-.....tl I-.—t H
o el vesd Yus g v, mp &) G Hl.l-u.!( L L T P L .!1'1!! re

9 a1 g e tw ARG 4B 8 2 JERINA) BTN X7 Y
AN b A T S s s b a by t....\I. I s e e i.
.s-..!lw.l.-.!jll- e )\acll-..?a:..}rnﬂ.}!}vﬁl!!
e _! v .l- ua-la

...Iﬂ.i......ao ..lll.-.l.(l.i?.l-’ . ] v

(omiZ WL (S0 - ugpwss Anplati 5! -.l!? G0 .lﬁ.a.n!ﬂ.ii.talvue!.zl.!\
L g 1 n . y lxﬁ._. pamae
i v .

AR A7 o M J. g phrind g U pam i gy Tt ) g
'r!!.rzvll’ .“l .E-lilb‘! -y -n{!! _!II._E_\.:.I\.F " e PI.
J.]. - [

IOVNTILOAIONI VIVE




Page 80

ez s ws prnbas 26, e 200algp 20p 35| 10R0p 30 Bacpioar
2 29) farduaon) :p 3o FmoALS diEueo por e R JP ITWEEM I I 2

30 deszs rrusdes 30 DO [FUOUPHT FOyR TTAT K

s am “apoqe WO ¢ o FuagIsk
e oy Do o peeg (9

0102 AMr G LaNB) SH | g1 NN udluioy; e 0102 ©

[

womnoup Py i 21 un gam fppen
UURIGIALD SO0 [FIIUTL) (TG 1 17 Tanadon s0) enar SXWMO R S TF

ORUND IOATV PORE IR0
?Eggggﬁwﬂiﬂiﬂg.ﬂﬁu«g
24p w0 fuadeioy 3 J0 uDURTRND yTie ToON TP WS povey powTIg PAY QR | €

WGURJAEG [ORO0D STy E]

OUR ‘7 IE PP
O URI A1 I8 OGTGEIND KITpOTE Badeal I RIRCIAGY AR Mipw peay, )

wwocniosd np @ unEDan. 20
WO Jep @ PP 5 PPV 1) Isbir SRy SO 00 RAwaNkd Y, 5T

COIDIP CRpOw s
#Enﬁﬁiiiﬂiigrﬂ
I&EQQ_{&__!E‘? a8, womied uo-rs Fepi QLT wugy
15 W sk, ;v b e ot onind QT ippusa S e A N Py

womitEesdn
x) Zmo por pos np por tuogamad campy @ “xEmanyadapun
P 120 i @ rocofom o igaeew dracy fonfem opoass g 3

qﬂaz.-—gﬁgq BT Hp
1o 2o 2 cpmpay W S ¢ 131!?3:5:%13..? Ty

Apmidy puc mop =) ¥

Taancndxd S0 @ FPOFRE GIQLITM e DY 10 13301
o uantkTnT M WONURNG W AL 0T (IR I MR [0 JATTPUSE MY W03 Py

I B
1€ @ QU GRUY 1y W QIS P YOI §© MR [Tt X0 o0 ImkRT)  (f

VLIRS s o s prindn =

DR
A jo yyonl GUO Ag J0 HNOW AP W YA ¥ VLIHE O SO «
faoaund 37qpm) dur pur paucusdom og) DwieLs Jwan 0 o

lanrtiotess

Y gunmmangdin

MIFSOVIE U TR L] J0 A AKX FOUTIEN PUX CADTIN JUGLL A

ey wapie sy wilisw por AR L) o

Rawnanges 7p oo P g g 4y, utdumem I pem Ly

w0 haaooa & juxio kope Nppe woy I pae B Do oy pu
wpoudi 5162 P 15 apwr tmal up jo e 05 eenmiond A e R oY ¢




Page 81

IS

OLOZ AP QL | UBpB] SHN | JT M VOILGY) WRIB 0102 &

sabeueyy ioiuag ‘sibu| Beio) e
Bupnsuo) wnauj

JoBeueyy josloid ‘IO YN
uspwed SHN

Jobeuew ssueul awn Yed ‘Juelsy uaydals e

wee} juswebeuep

aAgN2aXT JejyD soulo) ‘BulpoD) BRYIIN °

@apiLIOD 3oUBILBACD ajelodio) pue 3oueu|d ‘sajae(] SHAUEN e
Jeyo ‘prog AW o

Jojoaaig aANoeXT 109 JnAeN g =

QAINBX3 181YD tLSIU| ‘POOH SSWer e

wesa] diysiapes

pajiwr dsopiwed

:sjenpiA|pu) Buimo)|oj ay) yljm asuspuodsaiiod pabueyoxs Jo/pue SUOISSNISIP Pi8Y SM HIOM INO Bunonpuos uj

UONEWIOFUT JO $30mO0s TedpPUE{ g

seolpuaddy



Page 82

4}

(yz) 95 19l (821) £l 981 g ore 199 168 aaueleq yses Guiso|g|
9% \9t (g21) gl %81 825 o 198 88 925 souefeq ysea Buuado
(08) (so1) 882 (1) (€L1) (zwE) {pS1) (82€) 0€E (161) Mo} Ysea 16N
(659) {v89) (268) (s29) (200 (622) (991) (0se) (@) z61) swewded 0]
(1) 0 (1 () () (€ . (0 (0 @ aysqam pue seusjew Gugaxmey
(2) (@ @ - (@ (s) - - - () Bununoooy eucissajoig reba]
(1 (Y] 18] m () w (1) - . - sbugeapy pieog
(@ @ (t4] (@ @ @ : @ - - 3oUBUBJURW SIBD
() (©) (] (€) ® v - {©) - ) sayddng 800
(€) () (® (e © (€ (2 - - (] aouRINSy|
(2) (@ (@) @ @ @ (@) = = ) su0;jduasqns pue saa} diysiaquiawl [eLOISSL0.d
A - . - ) (9 = C) - - uawpnoay
(2) (2 (@ (@ (@ @ . (e} . . ame)am pue Bujue)) yeig
. (s2) . - (s2) o) - - : (ve) Juswidoeasquoddng |
- - 8 - - - - - . - sasuear 1|
b B (o) E B = - = = = juawdinba 1|
] ) N} () 7} (8) (0) ] (0) (1) (1ary) s1500 janey) pue auoydeie
- . - (81) (€2) (s) - : . (8 safiieyg aoinag 3 jusy sasiuald
(21 (21 (@) (e1) (1) (21) (9) - (9) (0) sa1ddng edipayy
(s2) (s2) (se) (se) (se) (se) (s2) . - - uaisuad yeig
(02) {02) (02) (02) (02) (02) - (02) - : JAVd
(ov1) (o¥)) (ov1) {ov1) (or)) (082) (0e1) - . (951) sabem pue sauefes
(0z21) (oz1) (ozt) (oz1) {oz1) . . - - - uonnquiued uosuad S10100
(0z2) (0s2) (022) {022 {0z2) (e22) - (022 - (€) see4 siojooQ
SMojina ysed
6.5 6.5 586 [ [ 198 [ % 68 9 sydiadal [ejo)
1 12 i 71 1 bl 3 2l - 0 B3Y0
05 05 05 05 05 0§ ok 02 02 - auloau) sa)joelg
9 9 9 9 v9 9 . - 9 - diHO
1Sy T2 1% - - - - - - - 10BIJU0D M3U - J9B1UOD HOO
- - 507 90 90y 852 . - €52 9 1OBAUOD PjO - IENUOD HOO
SMOpuI Yysed
04 jsesaiog jse92104 15ei04 15892104 ysesau0d i Y39M £ 398 2 %98M 1 388 0003
1-93Qq 0}-AON 01120 o1-das oi-Bny ok-np syeam Aq jseaiod ¢Lne

0102 1990}20 | J0 ajep Hejs Joenjuod HOO mau Buiunsse 010z 1aqwadsaq o) A|nf Wwol) JSesd1o) mojy ysea Alewwung

0107 F2quao9(J 03 (10T An[ wro3J 15822307 MO[F Used A[IUON D)

saoipuaddy



MEE AN L SCWED SN - g7 MA M wing ARD0EE T

Page 83

paINTT] depraE)
SOEERG 70 RIDR 0 R §FRSY B0 S HE

GloE Amesy xed

T DM AGEIIVY W) TR U

Peaig] ATy nury

aA
1

s

~ersonsnd s Oy permqunis Spadatd sk V04 2
U403 pALDI FUOARE O pOMYLANS UG ALY Y M TRRMURSAR) [UT LoD -

1soda) T G/ SEEARIL IMAE) AJE )0 AEAT T ND AN .

<HEMOPO) T SR I 0107 KM -1
PRY £T] XN voRriag) Tun A prashud paery DUPHINY I 5042 ST PR SARY S

PORUTY SOPYIY) JO waprg muiy (abpusdape aq1 e prodag
\re sy

AN MY UTULRIY) N B Baay,

SAT AT Y AT )

KV DN TR
ST DY Ry

LI AT §i

eie1eiliiNve]

J91339] UONEULIFUOD Aoenooe [enyde ‘(Q

sadipuaddy



Page 84



Page 85 Agenda Ite%g

North Central London

NHS NORTH CENTRAL LONDON BOROUGHS BARNET, CAMDEN,
ENFIELD, HARINGEY, ISLINGTON
WARDS: ALL

REPORT TITLE: Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Clinical Strategy

REPORT OF: Rob Mack, Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee Support Officer

FOR SUBMISSION TO: DATE: 31/10/11
North Central London Joint Health Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

SUMMARY OF REPORT:

Attached is the Secretary of State’s letter regarding the Independent Review Panel’s
(IRP) recommendations and decision on the Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Clinical
Strategy, along with the IRP’s recommendations to the Secretary of State.

CONTACT OFFICER:

Rob Mack

Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Support Officer
Haringey Council

RECOMMENDATIONS:
The Committee is asked to note:

The recommendations from the Secretary of State’s and the IRP report.
The JHOSC will be looking at how these areas can be explored at an additional meeting

on 14" November. The purpose of this meeting is to examine the plans for
implementation.

Rob Mack, Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee Support Officer

DATE: 31/10/11

Report to Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 87

From the Rt Hon Andrew Lansley CBE MP
Secretary of State for Health

Department
of Health

POC1_625192

Richmond House

Councillor Alev Cazimoglu 79 Whitehall

Lond.
Chair, Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny Panel SWIZHZ;J;
Enfield Council
: i Tel: 020 7210 3000
SCI'lltll‘ly Services Mb-sofs@dh.gsi.gov.uk
PO Box 50
B Block

Civic Centre
Silver Street

Enfield EN1 3XA
12 SEP 201

e pos CW,JW Gbalm«g@\

BARNET, ENFIELD AND HARINGEY CLINICAL STRATEGY
ALTERNATIVE PROPOSALS REPORT AND REFERRAL FROM
ENFIELD COUNCIL AND INITIAL INDEPENDENT
RECONFIGURATION PANEL ASSESSMENT

Further to your Scrutiny Panel’s referral letter of 20 February 2011 and
your Council’s report and supporting documents of 14 April 2011
concerning the Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Clinical Strategy, I asked
the Independent Reconfiguration Panel (IRP) for its advice on this matter.

The Panel has now completed its initial assessment and shared its advice
with me.

A copy of the Panel’s initial assessment is appended to this letter.

The Panel will publish its advice on [ September 2011 at
www.irpanel.org.uk

In order to make a decision on this matter, I have considered the concerns
raised by your Scrutiny Panel, the contents of your Council’s report to me
and have taken into account the IRP’s advice.



Page 88

Grounds for referral by Enfield Council’s Health Scrutiny Panel
Essentially, your referral to me was made on the grounds that:

e the four key tests designed to build confidence within the service,
with patients and communities have not been met; and

e the variation to the provision of local services is not in the best
interests of the residents of Barnet, Enfield and Haringey.

I will now take each of the points you have raised in turn and set down
undercover of this letter my response to your Council’s report to me of 14
April 2011 in the context of the Panel’s advice to me.

The four tests for service change
I know we all share a commitment to improving health and healthcare.

Where this requires change in the configuration of services, I believe the
local NHS in conjunction with its partners needs to lead these processes
to build confidence within the service and with the patients and
communities we all serve.

As an integral part of its assessment, the Panel considered the
documentation provided by NHS London regarding its application of the
four tests to the BEH clinical strategy.

This consideration was taken in the context of the relevant guidance to
the NHS and that the four tests are being applied retrospectively in this
case.

In the Panel’s opinion, the process appears to have been robust and the
consideration of the evidence compiled thorough and well balanced.

The Panel acknowledges that sections of the clinical and wider
community in Enfield are unhappy with aspects of the proposals that will
see some services consolidated away from Chase Farm.

The Panel goes on further to say that was always the case and remains so.
Nevertheless, the Clinical Strategy is designed to best meet the needs of
the wider population across the whole of Barnet, Enfield and Haringey.



Page 89

H ? Department
Q. 7 of Health

Representations seen by the IRP from Haringey GP commissioners and
councillors in Barnet and in Haringey have stressed this point.

Proposals not in the best interests of the local NHS

As part of its initial assessment, the Panel also looked closely at the
impact of the proposed changes under the BEH clinical strategy, and how
these might affect local patients.

The Panel is clear that the case for change is the right one. No viable
alternative clinical proposals have been put forward since NHS London
undertook its own assurances against the four tests for service change,
taking into account current and prospective patient choice (a key
component of those four tests).

[ understand the local NHS believes the drivers for change under the BEH
clinical strategy are centred on getting the best outcomes for patients
across both primary and secondary care with the development of primary
care services already having been introduced in each of the boroughs of
Barnet, Enficld and Haringey.

Future of Enfield hospital (report from Enfield Council)

At our meeting on 10 March 2010, I offered the Local Authority, GP
commissioners and the local NHS the opportunity to work up alternative
proposals against the current BEH clinical strategy.

Your report to me of 14 April 2011 sets down ten recommendations,
which are not as I am sure you will agree alternative clinical options for
service change.

Your report says, “at this time, the Council states Enfield GP Consortium
is unable to offer any guide to what is their preferred option.

Instead, the Council believes Enfield GPs will simply support any
decision I as Secretary of State for Health might take and do not want to
support any particular options in advance of that decision”.

Further, your report goes on to say, “we [Enfield Council] believe there is
no single alternative option to the BEH clinical strategy that will deliver



Page 90

viability, but that I as Secretary of State for Health, following the
Council’s ten recommendations, can achieve clinical safety, meet local
taxpayers’ demands and secure long term viability.

In its advice to me, the Panel states that the report submitted by your
Council understandably highlights local concerns and calls for a retention
of the status quo with a similar level of clinical services at North
Middlesex and Chase Farm as at present.

However, it does not, in the Panel’s view, provide any credible alternative
to the current proposals or address the increasing and real concerns about
the safety and sustainability of current services that underpin the clinical
case for change.

I am sure you will agree with me that the safety of patients is paramount.

This is one of the reasons why I believe that in supporting the Panel’s
advice, the case for change should proceed.

I believe that any further delay to implementing change may be
detrimental to patients and the services they access.

Initial IRP advice

Essentially, the Panel believes your Scrutiny Panel’s referral is not
suitable for full review.

I support the Panel’s advice to me in full.

I am satisfied the IRP’s advice on this important issue is in the interests of
the local health service and I do hope your Committee will continue to
work with local NHS partners in the best interest of patients.

Next steps

Having covered off issues concerning the IRP, I will now turn to the
important themes of organisational change and the future commissioning
of acute hospital services for the Barnet, Enfield and Haringey

geography.




Page 91

Department
of Health

Organisational change

In accepting the Panel's advice, I am today writing separately to NHS
London to issue a direction using the powers in section 8 of the NHS Act
2006.

I am directing NHS London to work with Barnet and Chase Farm
Hospitals NHS Trust and North Middlesex University Hospital NHS
Trust to assess the feasibility of transferring Chase Farm Hospital to the
North Middlesex University Hospital NHS Trust with a view to ensuring
this happens if the assessment of the merits of doing so supports this.

I have asked NHS London to report back to me with the findings of its
feasibility study no later than 16 December 2011.

Future commissioning arrangements

I have discussed issues of organisational change and future
commissioning arrangements with NHS London.

It is clear to me the most effective way to deliver services will change
over time.

For example, as new models of service delivery for urgent and emergency
care networks are brought forward, clinical techniques and new
approaches to clinical staffing and IT are developed and the needs of the
local population change.

I believe it is right that if in future, local Clinical Commissioning Groups
assess that a need for services at Chase Farm is unmet, then it will be
within their gift to commission new services on that basis.

As part of any new local management structure following future
organisational change, I would in any case expect that organisation to
review its future clinical service provision to ensure it meets the needs of
its local population.

I am copying this letter to:

Dame Ruth Carnall, Chief Executive, NHS London




Page 92

Dr Peter Barrett, Chair, Independent Reconfiguration Panel

Councillor Doug Taylor, Leader, Enfield Council

Baroness Wall, Chair, Barnet and Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust
Mark Easton, Chief Executive, Barnet and Chase Farm Hospitals NHS
Trust

David Hooper, Chair, North Middlesex Hospitals NHS Trust

Clare Panniker, Chief Executive, North Middlesex Hospitals NHS Trust
Councillor Gideon Bull, Chair, North Central London Joint Health
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Councillor Dilek Dogus, Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Setvices,
Haringey Council

Councillor Helena Hart, Public Health, Barnet Council

John Lynch, Chair, Enfield LINk

Paula Khan, Cluster Chair, NHS North Central London

Caroline Taylor, Cluster Chief Executive, NHS North Central London

i

ANDREW LANSLEY CBE




Page 93

IRP

6" Floor
157-197 Buckingham Palace Road
London
SW1w 9SP
The Rt Hon Andrew Lansley CBE MP
Secretary of State for Health
Richmond House
79 Whitehall
London SW1A 2NS
8 July 2011

Dear Secretary of State

REFERRAL TO SECRETARY OF STATE FOR HEALTH
Enfield Council Health Scrutiny Panel
Barnet Enfield Haringey Clinical Strategy

Thank you for forwarding copies of the referral letter and supporting documentation from
Cllrs Mike Rye and Christine Hamilton, Chair and Vice Chairman, Enfield Health Scrutiny
Panel (HSP). NHS London provided initial assessment information. Letters were also
received from Nick de Bois MP and David Burrowes MP and from Mr Kierran McGregor,
Secretary, Save Chase Farm. A list of all the documents received is at Appendix One.

The IRP has undertaken an initial assessment, in accordance with our agreed protocol for
handling contested proposals for the reconfiguration of NHS services. The IRP considers
each referral on its merits and its advice in this case is set out below. The Panel concludes
that this referral is not suitable for full review.

Background

Between June and October 2007, Barnet, Enfield and Haringey PCTs undertook public
consultation on proposals for changes to local healthcare services, in particular the
distribution of services between Barnet, Chase Farm and North Middlesex Hospitals. The
proposals related to a wide range of existing hospital-based services including accident and
emergency services, inpatient and day surgery, maternity and paediatric services. The
proposals would also allow for the strengthening of local primary and community services,
including the creation of new primary care centres for diagnostic and outpatient services.

The public consultation document, Your health, Your future, Safer Closer Better, set out two
options for a future model of services:

° Planned Care is concentrated on the Chase Farm site
o Chase Farm becomes a community hospital

The Joint Scrutiny Committee of the London Boroughs of Barnet, Enfield and Haringey and
the Hertfordshire County Council responded to the consultation in October 2007 expressing

Independent Reconfiguration Panel
Tel: 020 7389 8045/6

E Mail: info@irpanel.org.uk  Website: www.irpanel.org.uk




Page 94

IRP

major concerns about the deliverability of the proposed changes and stating that it was
unable to support either option.

The Barnet Enfield and Haringey Clinical Strategy Project Board responded to the Joint
Scrutiny Committee’s concerns in November 2007. In the same month, the Project Board
advised the Boards of the Barnet, Enfield and Haringey PCTs that Option 1 was its
recommended option. The three PCT Boards met on 11 December 2007 and accepted the
recommendation.

At its meeting in January 2008, the Joint Scrutiny Committee considered the PCTs’ decision
and referred the matter to the Secretary of State for Health on 31 March 2008. Following an
initial assessment, the IRP undertook a full review of the proposals - known as the Barnet
Enfield Haringey (BEH) Clinical Strategy - and submitted its report to the Secretary of State
on 31 July 2008. The Panel concluded that change was essential to ensure high quality
health services for local people. It supported the proposals but made sixteen
recommendations, that must be adhered to, to ensure safe, sustainable and accessible
services. The Panel supported proposals for the centralisation of A&E services and
consultant-led maternity care at Barnet and North Middlesex Hospitals, an urgent care unit
and planned care based at Chase Farm Hospital and endorsed the intention to improve
primary care services throughout the locality. The Secretary of State for Health accepted the
IRP’s advice in full on 4 September 2008.

Since the Secretary of State’s decision in 2008, work has continued to implement the BEH
Clinical Strategy. Developments to primary care services have been introduced in each of
the boroughs of Barnet, Enfield and Haringey. Urgent Care Centres have opened at Chase
Farm and North Middlesex Hospitals and walk-in centres in Finchley and Edmonton
(though the latter is due to reduce its opening hours from 1 October 2011). Some clinical
services have been consolidated within Barnet and Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust and
North Middlesex University Hospital NHS Trust.

Implementation of the BEH Clinical Strategy was halted in the summer of 2010 when a
moratorium on all significant service changes was introduced pending review against four
tests for service change identified by the Secretary of State. The Revision to the Operating
Framework for the NHS in England 2010-11 and a letter to the NHS dated 29 July 2010
from the NHS Chief Executive on service reconfiguration provided guidance on how this
should be approached.

A Strategic Co-ordination Group (SCG) — comprising representatives from relevant local
authorities, LINks, local GPs, acute trust clinicians and PCTs - was formed to assess the
BEH Clinical Strategy against the four tests and to report to a London-wide review panel
(that included external input and membership) established by NHS London. The SCG
commissioned UCL Partners to provide an independent analysis of whether the four tests
had been met. It also convened a Clinical Review Panel to review the clinical evidence for
the service changes envisaged in the BEH Clinical Strategy and to ascertain whether any
change in circumstance or evidence had taken place in the three years since the original
consultation.

Independent Reconfiguration Panel
Tel: 020 7389 8045/6

E Mail: info@irpanel.org.uk  Website: www.irpanel.org.uk




Page 95

IRP

The SCG met on 30 November 2010 to consider the evidence provided by UCL Partners and
others. It agreed with the Clinical Review Panel’s conclusion that the case for change had
increased since 2007. The SCG submitted its report to NHS London on 6 December 2010
concluding “that the balance of evidence and stakeholder views is in favour of the Strategy.
We have reached a consensus and would wish to recommend to you [NHS London] that,
from the evidence provided to us, the four tests laid down by the Secretary of State...have
been met.”

The NHS London review panel affirmed that the materials submitted by the SCG reflected a
true assessment and that on balance the tests had been met. On 26 January 2011, a Board
meeting of NHS London confirmed that the BEH Clinical Strategy had met the four tests
and noted the implication of its decision that implementation of the Strategy would re-
commence.

Prior to this, Enfield HSP met on 24 November 2010 to consider its own view of the
application of the four tests and on 26 November 2010 wrote to the Chair of the BEH Co-
ordination Group to advise that in the HSP’s view the tests had not been met. HSP members
met representatives of UCL Partners on 19 January 2011 to discuss its findings and
requested further information, which was provided on 28 January 2011. At a meeting on 1
February 2011, Enfield HSP resolved to refer the BEH Clinical Strategy to the Secretary of
State.

On 10 March 2011, the Secretary of State met a cross-party delegation of local MPs and
Enfield councillors to discuss the BEH Clinical Strategy. At the meeting, the Secretary of
State invited local stakeholders to submit to him alternative options to the Strategy. Enfield
Council submitted a report, Future of Enfield Hospitals: Report to the Secretary of State for
Health, on 14 April 2011.

The Secretary of State sought initial assessment advice from the IRP on 11 May 2011
requesting that the Panel’s advice should incorporate the IRP’s views about NHS London’s
application of the four tests in this case and the contents of the report submitted by Enfield
Council. The Secretary of State also requested that, in considering options for service
change, the Panel’s advice should not be restricted by current organisational boundaries.

Basis for referral
The HSP’s letter of referral of 20 February 2011 states that:

“On Tuesday 1 February 2011 Enfield Health Scrutiny Panel agreed to exercise its power
of referral to the Secretary of State for Health pursuant to Section 7 of the Health and Social
Care Act 2001.

Independent Reconfiguration Panel
Tel: 020 7389 8045/6

E Mail: info@irpanel.org.uk  Website: www.irpanel.org.uk




Page 96

IRP

The Health Scrutiny Panel noted the decision of NHS London at their Board meeting on 26
January 2011 to recommend that the Barnet Enfield and Haringey Clinical Strategy had met
the four new tests for reconfiguration based on the BEH Strategic Co-ordination Group’s
assessment and that the BEH strategy should recommence.

The Health Scrutiny Panel considers that the four key tests designed to build confidence
within the service, with patients and communities have not been met and is referring the
matter as the proposed variation to the provision of services is not in the best interests of the
residents of Barnet, Enfield and Haringey.”

IRP view

The Panel notes:

e Guidance on the application of the four tests for service reconfiguration was issued to
the NHS on 29 July 2010 (letter from Chief Executive of the NHS in England, Gateway
ref 14543)

e Following the issue of that guidance, NHS London, together with the local NHS, has
put in place a robust process for the assessment of relevant reconfiguration schemes and
conducted a thorough retrospective assessment of the BEH Clinical Strategy against the
four tests that incorporated external input

e Enfield HSP, at its meeting on 24 November 2010, concluded that the four tests had not
been met — this conclusion was reached without reference to the detailed analysis
conducted by UCL Partners which was not available until 1 December 2010 (after the
deadline by which stakeholders had been asked to respond)

e Further to a meeting with UCL Partners, on 19 January 2011, Enfield HSP remained
unconvinced that the tests had been met

e Since the Secretary of State’s invitation to local stakeholders to submit alternative
strategies (at the meeting of 10 March 2011), no new evidence has been presented that
constitutes a substantive alternative to the BEH Clinical Strategy

e The Clinical Review Panel, in offering its advice to NHS London, concluded that “the
clinical case for change has in fact increased over the past few years”

e A Strategic Options Appraisal prepared by Barnet and Chase Farm Hospitals NHS Trust
(dated 14 January 2011) set out a contingency plan should the BEH Clinical Strategy
not be approved for continued implementation — the options considered by the Trust in
the paper are not in preference to the original strategy, nor has their impact been
assessed against the needs of the overall population in Barnet, Enfield and Haringey

e Representations made to the IRP by Enfield MPs have suggested that changes to the
existing organisational structures of local hospital trusts could facilitate better options
for services serving Enfield residents

e Because of the locations of the hospitals, the services they provide and the populations
they serve, collaboration across PCT and local authority boundaries is essential to
deliver any major change

e Enfield HSP, in its letter of referral of 20 February 2011, states “It is our view that
primary care must be in place and seen to be working before withdrawal or changes
occur at the [Chase Farm] hospital”

Independent Reconfiguration Panel
Tel: 020 7389 8045/6

E Mail: info@irpanel.org.uk  Website: www.irpanel.org.uk




Page 97

IRP

Conclusion
The IRP offers its advice on a case-by-case basis taking account of the specific
circumstances and issues of each referral.

In requesting initial assessment advice from the IRP, you asked that the Panel incorporate
views about NHS London’s application of the four tests in this case and the contents of the
report submitted by Enfield Council. You also requested that, in considering options for
service change, the Panel’s advice should not be restricted by current organisational
boundaries.

The Panel has considered the documentation provided by NHS London regarding its
application of the four tests to the BEH Clinical Strategy. This consideration is in the
context of the relevant guidance to the NHS and that the four tests are being applied
retrospectively in this case. In the Panel’s opinion, the process appears to have been robust
and the consideration of the evidence compiled thorough and well-balanced. It is true that
sections of the clinical and wider community in Enfield are unhappy with aspects of the
proposals that will see some services consolidated away from Chase Farm Hospital. That
was always the case and remains so. Nevertheless, the Clinical Strategy is designed to best
meet the needs of the wider population across the whole of Barnet, Enfield and Haringey.
Representations seen by the IRP - from Haringey GP commissioners and councillors in
Barnet and in Haringey - have stressed this point.

Serious concerns have also been raised about the implications of not completing the
implementation of the strategy for services at the North Middlesex Hospital following its
refurbishment under a PFI scheme. Indeed, Enfield Council itself agreed a motion in
November 2010 that no decisions should undermine the quality and viability of the North
Middlesex Hospital. The adverse service and financial consequences of a change in direction
at this stage are a legitimate concern that would be felt by residents of Enfield and Haringey.
The report submitted by Enfield Council understandably highlights local concerns and calls
for a retention of the status-quo with a similar level of clinical services at North Middlesex
and Chase Farm Hospitals as at present. However, it does not, in the IRP’s view, provide
any credible alternative to the current proposals or address the increasing and real concerns
about the safety and sustainability of current services that underpin the clinical case for
change.

The status quo has real downside risk in terms of the current safety and sustainability of
local services. The ongoing safety and quality of these services must be the highest priority
for all concerned. The implementation of the BEH Clinical Strategy requires close co-
ordination of effort across two providers. Representations made to the IRP have suggested
that the needs of Enfield residents might be better served by the separation of the Barnet and
Chase Farm NHS Trust allowing for the creation of a new foundation trust comprising North
Middlesex and Chase Farm hospitals. The IRP was not presented with evidence to assess the
possible benefits of this organisational change on service configuration. It is for local
commissioners and providers of the services to explore this matter further, under the
guidance of NHS London, to establish how it might help deliver the safe and sustainable
services that local residents need. For reasons of clinical risk management, effective

Independent Reconfiguration Panel
Tel: 020 7389 8045/6

E Mail: info@irpanel.org.uk  Website: www.irpanel.org.uk




Page 98

IRP

engagement of all relevant parties and financial viability, these issues should only be
explored within the existing framework for implementation of the BEH Clinical Strategy.

The IRP does not consider that a full review would add any value in this instance. There are
no new substantive proposals or decisions to be reviewed. Concerns raised by Enfield HSP,
such as its wish to see appropriate primary care services in place and working before
changes are made to services at Chase Farm Hospital, were covered in the IRP’s
recommendations in 2008 along with other actions that were required. They remain as
relevant now as then.

Yours sincerely

S

f F s -,
Atpr ot

Dr Peter Barrett CBE DL
Chair, IRP

Independent Reconfiguration Panel
Tel: 020 7389 8045/6
E Mail: info@irpanel.org.uk  Website: www.irpanel.org.uk




Page 99

IRP

APPENDIX ONE

LIST OF DOCUMENTS

Enfield Council Health Scrutiny Panel

1 Letter of referral and attachments from Cllr Mike Rye, Enfield HSP Chair, to
Secretary of State for Health, 20 February 2011
Attachments:

2 Letter to Chair of Co-ordination Group, NHS Enfield, from Enfield HSP Chair, 26
November 2011

3 Extract from UCL Partners Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Clinical Strategy Report
assessing the level of support for the Strategy amongst General Practitioners

4 Letter to HSP Chair from BEH Clinical Strategy Senior Responsible Officer, 1
December 2010

5 Letter to Chief Executive, NHS London, from BEH Clinical Strategy Senior
Responsible Officer, 6 December 2010

6 Letter to Chair and Vice Chairman, Enfield HSP, Chief executive, NHS London, 13
December 2010

7 Response to questions from Enfield HSP following presentation by Dr Helen Barratt,
UCL partners and Prof Hilary Pickes, member of Clinical Review Team, 28 January
2011

8 Enfield LINk response to Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Clinical Strategy Clinical
Review Panel Report, November 2010

9 Letters to IRP Chair from Cllr Alev Cazimoglu, Chair, Enfield Health and Wellbeing
Scrutiny Panel, 19 May and 16 June 2011

10 Letter to IRP Chair from Cllr Doug Taylor, Leader of the Council, Enfield Council, 6
July 2011

NHS London

1 NHS London Board paper NHS London’s assurance review of Barnet, Enfield and
Haringey Clinical Strategy against the four new tests for reconfiguration

2 Strategic Co-ordination Group submissions

3 BEH Strategic Co-ordination Group meeting papers, 30 November 2010

4 NHS London Board paper Quality Assurance Framework for reconfiguration
Schemes, 19 October 2010

5 Future of Enfield Hospitals: Report to the Secretary of State for Health submitted on
14 April 2011

6 Future of Enfield Hospitals: Report to the Secretary of State for Health submitted on
14 April 2011 — Record of Submissions

7 BEH Clinical Strategy Update for IRP, 24 February 2011

8 NHS Comments on Enfield Council’s report to the Secretary of State for Health on

the Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Clinical Strategy, 23 June 2011

Independent Reconfiguration Panel
Tel: 020 7389 8045/6

E Mail: info@irpanel.org.uk  Website: www.irpanel.org.uk




Page 100

IRP

Other information received

1

2

(O8]

AN D

Letter to Joint Director of Commissioning, NHS Enfield and London Borough of
Enfield, from Haringey GP Commissioning Consortium, 13 April 2011

Letter to Secretary of State for Health from Chair, Haringey Council shadow Health
and Wellbeing Board, undated

Letter to IRP Chair from Nick de Bois MP and David Burrowes MP, 14 June 2011
Letter to IRP Chair from Mr Kierran McGregor, Secretary, Save Chase Farm, 10
June 2011

Letter to IRP from Mr John Sturman, 9 June 2011

Emails and attachments from Mr Donald Smith, 27 June and 7 July 2011

Letter to Secretary of State for Health from Cabinet Member for Public Health,
London Borough of Barnet, 22 June 2011

Independent Reconfiguration Panel
Tel: 020 7389 8045/6

E Mail: info@irpanel.org.uk  Website: www.irpanel.org.uk




1 L0C 41990100 ;51 €
saplwwo) Aunniosg

pue MaIAISAQ Y}|edaH JUIOf uopuo |esjudd YoN
pioyug pue AabulieH
‘Jouleg ‘uojbuljs| ‘uspuwen jo ybnoiog uopuo-

Agenda Item 8

Page 101

a.e9d Jo [apow ay) bunuawas|dw
:S9JIAIDS 192UBD UOPUOT]

uopuo’] SIWINVYDOUYUd

SHN YiEoHUOPUO']



Page 102

uopuo”] SIININVYDONYd

SHN YHEaHUOpPUOoT

SuoljepuUBWIWOI8.
9y} pasJopua sey |Iounoy) 45) uopuo .

aAllloddns sjuspuodsal Aaains Jo Juad Jad Gg
1an0 — s|esodoud uo Juswabebus Yyuow-¢ SAISUBIXT

010¢Z 1snbny :aJed JO |9PON -
6002 Jeqwada( :8bueyo Joj ase) -
9910A Jualjed buoais ainsus 0] |[sued Juaned -

aJed )sijeloads pue siaoued Jalel ‘aled [elauab pue
SJ92UBd UoWWOI ‘sisoubelp Ales :seale YIoM 98Iy -

SYJUoOW Z| JOAO Bujlom SueIoIulD G -

aJed Jo |9pow a3y} buidojanag



Page 103

uopuo”] SIWIWV YD OHYd

SHN Y} EsHUOPUOT]

Jallleq e aq Jou pjnoys salepunog jeuonesiueblio
‘PaUOISSILIWOD 8q pjnoys sAemyied aaisusyaidwo) -

M) 00) UO 3|ge|leAe aJe sjuaw]eal] uowwod
:s9)IS Auew 00] uo aoe|d buye) si Auebuns jsijeloadg .

pasipJepue)s aq p|noys aJed pue juswieal|

1SIX8 SBWO09)JN0 puUe SS829e Ul saljljenbaul
JNJ UOPUOT Ul 80US||99XS JO Seale ale aJay| -

sajel |BAIAINS BAlle|al Jalood
Buisneod ul Jojoe] Jolew e usaaqg sey sisoubelp Jajeq] -

abueyd 10} ased ay|



Page 104

uopuo”] SIININVYDONYd

SHN Y} EsHUOPUOT]

sAemyied pasipiepuels buliaAlap swa)sAs pajesbalul
JO Jeaquinu [|ews e ul Jay)}abo] buiylom SIBpInOd -

SaJ]uad Isljeloads ojul s18oued Jalel

10J S92IAIBS [B216UNS JO uonepIosuod Jayln4 "Abojoouo

ainoe pue Alabins xajdwoo-uou ‘Adelayiowayd se yons
‘SOOIAIBS J92UBD UOWWOD JO UOISIAOJId |BOO| pOpUBIXT -

saljilenbaul yjeay

pue sajel ayeydn bulusalos ‘soljsoubelp 0] Ssedoe 495
‘ssaualeme ol|gnd Buissaippe Aq sisoubeip Ajjes snoadw| -

a.e92 Jo |[apow a3y L



Page 105

uopuo”] SIININVYDONYd

SHN YiESHUOPUOT]

sebessaw aAlIsod bunjowoud

pue sanss| uone|ndod [eoo| Buisiubooal ‘A||eoo|
sso90.4d siyj poddns |jIm spaeoq bBuleq|op) pue yjjesH -

18g0100 uI buijodal

— Auond e se sisoubelp Ajes pue uonuanaid pajos|es
sey pJeog juswanoidw| yjjeaH uopuo] mopeys ay| -

sisoubeip Ajuea anoidwi 0] suoluaAIBluI

pPaseq 82UapIAS BAIJ0BYS JSow ay] Ajnuapl 0] SI Wiy -
SsaAljejuasaldal
Jualjed pue s)adxs onsoubelp ‘sjue}NSUod

yljeay algnd ‘sdo Jo buinsisuod dnoib Buijiop -

sisoubeip Ajie3



Page 106

uopuo”] SIWIWV YD OHYd

SHN YHEaHUOpPUOoT

Jaqwe)dag ul SIBUOISSIWWOD 0] SUOIIBPUSWILLIODDY

SJOUOISSILIWOD pue sladxa [eoluld |euJalxa ‘ue||idey
‘S9SJNU ‘Sqo BUIA|OAUI pa)a|dwod ssad0uad aoueInNsSsSy  «

Jaoue ) UopuoT pue Jusodsaln) 8y, -

aunr 0¢ uo sue|d
992IAI8S pue wo)sAs paniwgns swa)sAs pasodosd om| -

Allunwwod Jaoued yum diysiauued
ul padojanap uoneoljioads walsAs Jaoued pajelbaju| .

81ed J9oue?d ssajwess aoualladxs sjualjed
Jey) ainsua 0] Jaylabo) buiyiom sjeyidsoy jo sdnois .

swa)sAs 1aoued pajeibalul



Page 107

SININV H5SH O HYdd

SHN Lp{€spliopuot

YN'syu dyuopuo[@)iadued
sallanb Jayun4 .

7190UBD/S80IAI9S AN SYU dyuopuo] MMM//-dly
uoljewJojul Jaypun

uwnne aje| ul seapiwwo’) Aunniog pue
MBIAJIBAQ UleaH yum suoneoldwi |eoo) s|qissod aieys -

Buluue|d
92IAJIBS JI8Y) Ul swalsAs pajelsbajul yoddns 0] snunuo) .

sdajs }xaN



Page 108

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 109 Agenda ltem 9

Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (JHOSC) for
North Central London Sector

31 October 2011

Future Work Plan

1. Introduction

1.1 This report outlines the work plan for future meetings of the JHOSC.
14 November (Haringey)

1.2  This will be a special meeting to consider the issue of the Barnet, Enfield and
Haringey Clinical Strategy.

5 December (Barnet)
1.3  Items for this meeting are currently as follows:

1. Transforming Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) - In-
patient Services for young people living in Barnet, Enfield & Haringey

2. QIPP Performance
3. Urgent Care
4. Vascular surgery
5. Future work plan
Future Meetings:
1.4 Further meetings of the Committee will take place as follows:
e Monday 16 January — Camden
e Monday 27 February - Islington

1.5 Agenda items for these meetings will be agreed in due course.



Page 110

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Declarations of interest
	4 Minutes
	5 North Central London Primary Care Strategy
	Interim report on PC Strategy for JOSC v1 0submitted_20111020
	The future landscape of Primary Care 111011_Appendix A
	110922 - JHOSC CAMIDOC full report (2)

	6 Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Clinical Strategy
	625192 Cllr Alev Cazimoglu (2)
	IRP_referral advice - beh 08 07 11

	8 Cancer Model of Care
	9 Future Work Plan

